
TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2017, 7:00PM 
NEWMARKET TOWN HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

6:00PM NON-PUBLIC MEETING PURSUANT TO RSA 91-A:3,Il(a) - PERSONNEL 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Public Forum (Public Forum is an opportunity for the public to address the Town Council. All 
comments should be addressed to the Chair of the Council. No person will be allowed to speak 
longer than five (5) minutes.) 

3. Public Hearing - None 

4. Town Council to Consider Acceptance of Minutes 

a. September 20, 2017 Non-Public Meeting Minutes 
b. September 20, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 

5. Report of the Town Administrator 

a. Diane Hardy - Introduction to the CIP process and to present recommendations made by the 
CIP Committee. 

6. Committee Reports 

7. Old Business 

a. Resolutions/Ordinances in the 2"d Reading 

i. Resolution #201712018-15 - Resolution Authorizing the Town Administrator to enter 
into an agreement with Educational Building Consultants, Access AIV and Daniels 
Electric for Tm11n Council Dais Improvements. 

b. Resolutions/Ordinances in the 3rd Reading - None 

c. * Items Laid on the Table - 

Page 1 of 142



i. Resolution #2015/2016-52 - Resolution Authorizing the Designation of a portion of Rt. 
152 as an Economic Recovery Zone (This Resolution is tabled from the June 15, 2016 
Council Meeting pending Planning Board action). 

8. New Business/Correspondence 

a. 1f own Council to Consider Nominations, Appointments and Elections 

i. NCDC- Carl Blackstone -Term Expires December 2019 
ii. Energy & Environment Advis01y Committee - William Turner - Term Expires March 

2020 
iii. Energy & Environment Advisory Committee - Daniel Smith - Term Expires March 2020 

b. Resolutions/Ordinances in the !51 Reading 

i. Resolution 2017/2018-16 -Resolution Authorizing the Town Administrator enter into a 
Contract with Educational Building Consultants for Town Hall Office Improvements. 

ii. Ordinance No. 1 - 2017/2018 =Amendments to Chapter 32 Zoning of the Newmarket 
Municipal Code regarding New Road Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) District. 

c. Correspondence to the Town Council 

d. Closing Comments by Town Councilors 

e. Next Council Meeting- October 18, 2017 

9. Adjournment 

*items will remain on the table unless an unanimous vote of the Council removes said item. 
Page 2 of 142



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
7 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

7:00 PM September 20, 2017 8 

9 
10 
11 
12 PRESENT: Council Chairman Dale Pike, Council Vice Chairman Toni Weinstein, Councilor Amy Thompson, 
13 Councilor Gretchen Kast, Councilor Kyle Bowden, Councilor Casey Finch 
14 
15 EXCUSED: Councilor Amy Burns 
16 
17 ALSO PRESENT: Town Administrator Steve Fournier, Facilities Director Greg Maries, Water & Wastewater 
18 Superintendent Sean Greig, Public Works Director/Fire Chief Rick Malasky 
19 

20 AGENDA 
21 
22 Chairman Dale Pike welcomed everyone to the September 20, 2017 Newmarket Town Council Meeting 
23 and called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
24 
25 Chairman Pike stated that that Councilor Amy Burns was excused. 
26 
27 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to seal the minutes of the Non-Public Session, which was seconded 
28 by Councilor Thompson. Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the motion to seal the 
29 minutes of the Non-Public Session was approved by a vote of 5-0 with 1 abstention. 
30 
31 Tax Deeds for Map/lots RS-165 and Ul-108 
32 
33 Councilor Thompson made a motion to accept the Jax Deeds for Map/Lots R5-165 and U2-108, which was 
34 seconded by Councilor Kast. Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the motion to accept 
35 the Tax Deeds for Map/Lots R5-165 and U2-108 was approved by a vote of 5-0 with 1 abstention. 
36 
37 PUBLIC FORUM 
38 
39 Chairman Pike opened the Public Forum at 7:02 pm. 
40 

Page 3 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

41 Rose-Anne Kwaks, Chairman of the CIP Committee, stated she was interested in Resolution #2017 /2018- 
42 15 which was up for a first reading tonight, and Town Administrator Fournier said that they would not act 
43 on it until the second reading. Ms. Kwaks stated that she was very concerned about an issue that was 
44 brought up to her, and asked what the cost would be to fix the Town Council Dais. Town Administrator 
45 Fournier said the cost would be "not to exceed $10,000" for the complete rewiring and woodworking. Ms. 
46 Kwaks asked how necessary this was, and Town Administrator Fournier stated that they had been having 
47 wiring issues with the microphones for some time. 
48 
49 Ms. Kwaks asked what percent of the cost was for the wiring, and asked if that could be done without the 
SO rest of the updating. Town Administrator Fournier said he would discuss it with the Council at the next 
51 meeting. Ms. Kwaks said they needed $10,000 to fix the Tiger Building. Town Administrator Fournier 
52 explained that the money for the wiring would come from the Cable Fund and money for the Tiger Building 
53 would come from the Building Improvements Capital Reserve Fund. He said the Facilities Director was 
54 now going through all the buildings and would have a report later this year. Vice-Chair Weinstein asked 
SS what the Tiger Building was, and Ms. Kwaks said it was a historical building which housed a historic artifact 
56 and was in complete disrepair. She said if $10,000 could be found in the budget, she would like to see that 
57 done before anything else. 
58 
59 Chairman Pike closed the Public Forum at 7:02 pm 
60 
61 PUBLIC HEARING - None 
62 
63 TOWN COUNCIL TO CONSIDER ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
64 
65 Acceptance of the Minutes of the Joint Town Council/School Board Meeting of August 30, 2017 

66 
67 Councilor Thompson made a motion to accept the minutes of the Joint Town Council/School Board 
68 Meeting of August 30, 2017, which was seconded by Vice-Chair Weinstein. 
69 
70 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the minutes of the Joint Town Council/School Board 
71 Meeting of August 30, 2017 were approved by a vote of 5-0 with 1 abstention. 
72 
73 Acceptance of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 6, 2017 
74 
75 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 6, 
76 2017, which was seconded by Councilor Bowden. 
77 
78 Changes/Corrections: Chairman Pike corrected "GCA" to GZA on page 3 of the minutes, line 124. 

79 
80 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 6, 
81 2017 were approved as amended by a vote of 6-0. 
82 
83 Acceptance of the Minutes of the Non-Public Session of September 6, 2017 
84 

2 

Page 4 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

85 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve the minutes of the Non-Public Session of September 6, 
86 2017, which was seconded by Councilor Kast. 
87 
88 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the minutes of the Non-Public Session of September 
89 6, 2017 were approved by a vote 6-0. 
90 
91 REPORT OF THE TOWN ADMINSTRATOR 
92 
93 Town Administrator Steve Fournier stated that the Paving Projects for this year had begun last week with 
94 the start of the reclamation of New Road. He said Granite Street had been done and they were currently 
95 paving on the hill in Downtown, which they expected to complete in 3 weeks. He said they had gone out 
96 to RFP for the update of the Town Financial Software System and received 3 proposals, which were quite 
97 extensive and currently under review by a team composed of IT, Finance, the Town Clerk and other 
98 departments. He said they had the funding for the first-year lease payment in the Current Budget. 
99 

100 Town Administrator Fournier said there was nothing out of the ordinary with the FY2018 Budget at this 
101 time, and said the Revenue Budget would not be included until the Tax Rate was set in a few weeks. He 
102 said currently budget revenue estimates were zero, but said the Town was also doing well there. He stated 
103 that he received the lawsuit for NHDOT vs. the Town of Newmarket for the South Route 108 Widening 
104 Project. He said the State filed a Summary Judgement against the Town, and they would be filing their 
105 reply shortly. 
106 
107 Town Administrator Fournier announced a procedural change that would have all motions made by Vice- 
108 Chair Weinstein going forward to prevent confusion. 
109 
110 Discussion: Councilor Kast asked for the status on the joint community challenge to the MS4 situation, 
111 and Town Administrator Fournier said he had not yet received that information. Vice-Chair Weinstein 
112 commented that the Police Report statistics given for heroin-related overdoses and deaths had declined, 
113 which said a lot about the work of the Newmarket Police Department. 
114 
115 Chairman Pike had a question on the Facilities Report with regard to the Stormwater Integrated Pest 
116 Management Program. Facilities Director Maries explained that part of their Stormwater Program 
117 included looking at pests, fertilizers, herbicides and pesticides and creating a plan on how that worked as 
118 part of their Stormwater Compliance MS4 Program. Chairman Pike also pointed out a misprint under the 
119 CIP Report which should state that the CIP would submit their formal recommendations by October l51• 

120 
121 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
122 
123 Councilor Kast reported on the Capital Improvements Program {CIP} Committee. She first cleared up the 
124 Issue of the amendment to their Rules and Procedures from the last meeting with regard to ex-officio 
125 members. She said Town departments had provided facilities tours to the Committee on September 11th, 
126 and that Department Heads had presented requests for CIP review for the School and the Town, on 
127 September 14th and 181h respectively. She said a common concern heard by Department Heads was proper 

3 

Page 5 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

128 support of asset maintenance. She said though it was not part of the CIP Process per se, it was key for 
129 protecting assets to insure the realization of full life value for those assets. 
130 
131 Councilor Kast said deliberations and preparations of CIP recommendations were scheduled for Monday 
132 September 25th, and Thursday September 23th if more time was needed. She stated that she agreed that 
133 the Council should have more details of the CIP, particularly with long-range planning. Chairman Pike said 
134 the Town Council would hear directly from the CIP Committee at theirfirst meeting in October, and would 
135 have time to talk about the process. 
136 
137 OLD BUSINESS 
138 
139 ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS IN THE 2No READING 
140 
141 Resolution #2017 /2018-08 Authorization to Withdraw $25,000 from the Sewer CIP for Pumping Station 
142 Improvements Preliminary Engineering 
143 
144 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve Resolution #2017/2018-08 Authorization to withdraw 
145 $25,000 from the Sewer CJP for Pumping Station Improvements Preliminary Engineering, which was 
146 seconded by Councilor Thompson. 
147 
148 Water & Wastewater Superintendent Seam Greig stated that the Town had 6 pumping stations which 
149 pumped wastewater to the Wastewater Treatment Plant. He said they had started looking at the stations 
150 and performed some evaluations on what needed to be done, and planned to start a list of prioritized 
151 items. He said this resolution would provide engineering to figure out how to best do the work, and they 
152 would then get back to the Town Council to ask for any additional monies needed to move to the next 
153 step of the design and building of the work. He said the Sewer Capital Reserve Fund had approximately 
154 $580,000 currently. 
155 
156 Discussion: Councilor Thompson pointed out that the resolution said funds were to come from the Sewer 
157 CIP, which should be the Sewer Capital Reserve Fund. She said the two were perpetually confused, and 
158 that the CIP was a plan which had nothing to do with funds or funding. Chairman Pike asked about the bid 
159 process, and Water & Wastewater Superintendent Greig said they had gone through the process of 
160 getting an engineering firm that had provided costs. He said he was here because the amount being 
161 requested was over $10,000. 
162 
163 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and Resolution #2017/2018-08 Authorization to withdraw 
164 $25,000 from the Sewer C/P for Pumping Station Improvements Preliminary Engineering was approved by 
165 a vote of 6-0. 
166 
167 Resolution #2017 /2018-09 Operation of Keno Games in the Town of Newmarket 
168 
169 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve Resolution #2017 /2018-09 Operation of Keno Games in 
170 the Town of Newmarket, which was seconded by Councilor Thompson. 
171 

4 

Page 6 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

172 Town Administrator Fournier explained that in order to fund some aspects of Full Day Kindergarten, the 
173 New Hampshire State Legislature had passed Bill 191 allowing Keno Games in certain establishments. He 
174 said as part of that bill, municipalities were required to vote on whether or not to authorize Keno in their 
175 communities. He explained that the vote tonight was whether or not to place the question on the Ballot 
176 in March, and said the Town Council would need to hold a Public Hearing on the issue. 
177 
178 Councilor Bowden asked how much of the money raised by Keno actually went to the Kindergarten 
179 Educational Trust Fund. Town Administrator Fournier said it was usually the amount raised minus the 
180 costs to run the program. Vice-Chair Weinstein said she had given the issue a lot of thought and wanted 
181 to express some of her concerns to the Council and the community. She said Newmarket had voted to 
182 fund full-day Kindergarten a few years ago because they valued education. She said she felt strongly that 
183 it was the responsibility of the State to fund education and fund it adequately in the State of New 
184 Hampshire. She said she did not think this policy did that, and said she could not in good faith support the 
185 resolution and would be voting against it tonight. 
186 
187 Councilor Thompson said she seconded everything Councilor Weinstein said and for the same reasons. 
188 She said this would put an unfair burden on towns like Newmarket, and she felt the positives did not 
189 outweigh the negatives and she would also be voting against it tonight. Councilor Kast said she also agreed 
190 but with the exception that it should be put to a vote to allow the townspeople to decide. Councilor Finch 
191 said he shared some of the same concerns with using Keno to fund Kindergarten but that he felt torn on 
192 whether or not the voters should be able to choose. 
193 
194 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and Resolution #2017/2018-09 Operation of Keno Games 
195 in the Town of Newmarket was approved by a vote of 4-2. 
196 
197 Resolution #2017/2018-10 Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter into a Contract with 
198 Educational Building Consultants for Door Replacement and Opener Addition at the Sunrise Center 

199 
200 Town Administrator Fournier stated that there was an error in this resolution and it should read: to 
201 withdraw up to $9,950 from the Building Improvements Capital Reserve Fund, and said there was currently 
202 $249,747 in the fund. He said he had found out that the Newmarket Housing Authority could provide up 
203 to $5,000 towards the project, but said they would only withdraw the amount needed. 

204 
205 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to amend Resolution #2017/2018-10 to specify that funds would be 
206 withdrawn from the Building Improvements Capital Reserve Fund, which was seconded by Councilor 
207 Thompson. Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the motion to amend Resolution 
208 #2017/2018-10 was approved by a vote of 6-0. 
209 
210 Facilities Director Maries stated that the resolution was to replace the 2 exterior side doors at the Sunrise 
211 Sunset Center, as they were rusted out. He said they would be replaced with 2 steel doors with steel 
212 frames, and an ADA opener at the main entrance (right side) to be in compliance with ADA access. He said 
213 the current front door was technically only an egress by code and not an entrance. Vice-Chair Weinstein 
214 asked about the up-coming installation of the access security system for the Town, and Facilities Director 
215 Maries said the system they were putting in would allow for that. 

5 

Page 7 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

216 
217 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and Resolution #2017/2018-10 Authorizing the Town 
218 Administrator to Enter into a Contract with Educational Building Consultants for Door Replacement and 
219 Opener Addition at the Sunrise Center was approved as amended by a vote of 6-0. 
220 
221 Resolution #2017/2018-11 Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter into a Contract with Affinity 
222 Lighting for Town Street and Decorative Lighting Upgrades 
223 
224 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve Resolution #2017/2018-11 Authorizing the Town 
225 Administrator to enter into a Contract with Affinity Lighting for Town Street and Decorative Lighting 
226 Upgrades which was seconded by Councilor Bowden. 
227 
228 Town Administrator Fournier said the Town had been working on replacing the Downtown decorative 
229 lighting with LED lighting and replacing the cobra-head lighting throughout the Town. He said they had 
230 worked with Eversource to secure funding as a part of their Energy Rebate Program, and had applied to 
231 the Community Development Finance Authority {CDFA) for a 2.5% loan to fund the project and should 
232 know if their application had been approved in about 3 weeks. He said that this would replace every 
233 streetlight in Town with LED lighting, as well as the decorative lighting in the Downtown area. He explained 
234 that both types of lighting were billed differently, with streetlights billed on a flat basis and parking lots 
235 and Downtown lights City Metered. 
236 
237 Town Administrator Fournier said the initial proposal was from Affinity Lighting in Dover and they had 
238 received one other proposal from Energy Management Consultants. He said he was recommending 
239 Affinity Lighting due to their proximity, and said the company was also working with a number of other 
240 communities in the area. He stressed that the project would only go forward with approval of the CDFA 
241 Loan and would not be done without CDFA authorization, though Eversource was already committed. 
242 
243 Discussion: Councilor Thompson asked about the timeframe if the loan went through, and Town 
244 Administrator Fournier said the decorative lighting would be done by the end of this calendar year and 
245 the street lighting done early in 2018. Councilor Thompson asked why they needed to vote on this tonight 
246 if it was contingent on the loan. Town Administrator Fournier said he wanted the flexibility to be able to 
247 move forward when the loan was approved so they could begin manufacturing the cobra-head lighting. 
248 He said if the loan does not go through he would have to start over and obtain new prices to reapply. 

249 
250 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and Resolution #2017/2018-11 Authorizing the Town 
251 Administrator to enter into a Contract with Affinity Lighting for Town Street and Decorative Lighting 
252 Upgrades was approved by a vote of 6-0. 
253 
254 Resolution #2017 /2018-12 Increase of Sewer Rates 
255 
256 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve Resolution #2017/2018-12 Increase of Sewer Rates which 
257 was seconded by Councilor Bowden. 
258 

6 

Page 8 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

259 Water & Wastewater Superintendent Greig stated that when the Town started with the Wastewater 
260 Treatment Plant years ago he had come to the Council with several plans on how to pay for it. He said the 
261 Town Council at that time decided not to have a one-time increase but to increase over time by 76 
262 cents/year on the Sewer Rate, and said he was before the Council to ask for the yearly increase. He said 
263 there would be a few more years of increases until they reached the projected $13.50/cubic foot, adding 
264 that 100 cubic feet equaled 750 gallons. 
265 
266 Discussion: Councilor Thompson felt it was hard for her to know what to do as she was not on Town sewer 
267 or water. Water & Wastewater Superintendent Greig said he created the numbers and the model which 
268 had been confirmed by Wright Pierce. He explained that if they stopped doing the yearly increases while 
269 starting to make payments on the Wastewater Treatment Plant, there would be a lack of funds at some 
270 point. 
271 
272 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and Resolution #2017/2018-12 Increase of Sewer Rates 
273 was approved by a vote of 6-0. 
274 
275 Resolution #2017 /2018-13 Increase of Water Rates 
276 
277 Vice Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve Resolution #2017 /2018-13 Increase of Water Rates which 
278 was seconded by Councilor Bowden. 
279 
280 Water & Wastewater Superintendent Greig stated that Water Rates had not moved since 2010, and felt 
281 they needed to start moving rates up or they would be at a deficit. He said all the goals put forward for 
282 the Water Department by the Town Council in 2011 had been completed, which included the Macintosh 
283 Well, the Tucker Well, and moving the water mains on North Main Street. He said they needed to start 
284 increasing water rates to keep up with the cost of chemicals, and said another problem in the past year 
285 was the drought. 
286 
287 Discussion: Councilor Kast asked if this was a one-time increase, and Water & Wastewater Superintendent 
288 Greig said he would be coming back to the Council, as Asset Management had forecast a cost of $8 million 
289 over the next 10 years for water main replacement. He said they also did not know the cost of treatment 
290 for the Macintosh Well or the costs to bring the Tucker Well online, and said they would be coming back 
291 to the Council to begin a study to look into those costs and come up with a plan which had the least impact 
292 on water users. 
293 
294 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and Resolution #2017/2018-13 Increase of Water Rates 
295 was approved by a vote of 6-0, 
296 
297 Resolution #2017/2018-14 Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter into a Contract with 
298 Securadyne for a Visual Surveillance and Controlled Access System 
299 
300 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve Resolution #2017/2018-14 Authorizing the Town 
301 Administrator to Enter into a Contract with Securadyne for a Visual Surveillance and Controlled Access 
302 System, which was seconded by Councilor Thompson. 

7 

Page 9 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

303 
304 Town Administrator Fournier stated that he needed an amendment to the resolution to read: to withdraw 
305 up to $23,711.50 from the Building Improvements Capital Reserve Fund and $23,711.50 from the 
306 Dispatch/Police Equipment Capital Reserve Fund. He said the Building Improvement Fund had a balance 
307 of $249,747 and the Police Equipment Fund had a balance of $182,842. 
308 
309 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve the above amendment to Resolution #2017/2018-14, 
310 which was seconded by Councilor Thompson. Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the 
311 amendment was approved by a vote of 5-0 (Councilor Finch was out of the room during the vote). 
312 
313 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and Resolution #2017/2018-14 Authorizing the Town 
314 Administrator to Enter into a Contract with Securadyne for a Visual Surveillance and Controlled Access 
315 System was approved as amended by a vote of 6-0. 
316 
317 ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS IN THE 3RD READING - None 
318 
319 ITEMS LAID ON THE TABLE 
320 
321 Resolution #2015/2016-52 Authorizing the Designation of a Portion of Route 152 as an Economic Recovery 
322 Zone. (This Resolution is tabled from the June 15, 2016 Council Meeting pending Planning Board action.) 
323 
324 Resolution #2017/2018-07 Resolution Authorizing the Town Administrator to enter into an Agreement 
325 with Industrial Protection Services to Purchase a 2017 Zodiac Mi/Pro ERB 400 Rescue Boat, and withdraw 
326 $19,550 from the previously-established Fire Rescue Capital Reserve Fund. (This Resolution is tabled from 
327 the September 6, 2017 Council Meeting.) {Town Administrator requests this item be taken off the Table 
328 for action.) 
329 
330 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to remove Resolution #2017/2018-07 from the Table, which was 
331 seconded by Councilor Bowden and approved by the Council with a vote of 6-0. 
332 
333 Fire Chief Rick Malasky said he had provided the calls for service and all of the quotes as requested by the 
334 Council. 
335 
336 Discussion: Vice-Chair Weinstein asked for an explanation of the difference between the current boat and 
337 what the new boat would provide. Fire Chief Malasky said they currently had an aluminum fishing boat 
338 which was easily tipped over, and that the new Zodiac MilPro ERB 400 Rescue Boat was a military- 
339 approved inflatable craft. Councilor Thompson asked if use would increase with the new boat. Fire Chief 
340 Malasky said not all communities had boats but he did not see calls for service increasing. Councilor 
341 Thompson asked if Town personnel would go with the boat if a call came through, and Fire Chief Malasky 
342 said only their personnel would take out the boat. 
343 
344 Councilor Kast asked about maintenance costs, and Fire Chief Malasky said there would be no 
345 maintenance, and said it was a military-approved boat which would reach the end of is useful life after 20 
346 years. He said the boat they currently had was a huge liability, and said that training would be needed on 

8 

Page 10 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

347 the new boat. Chairman Pike asked if the Fire Department would sell the old boat, and Fire Chief Malasky 
348 said he was not sure as the boat was purchased by the Police Department. Town Administrator Fournier 
349 said they would need to look at the grant used to purchase the boat as there might be Federal rules they 
350 needed to follow. 
351 
352 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and Resolution #2017/2018-07 Resolution Authorizing the 
353 Town Administrator to enter into an Agreement with Industrial Protection Services to Purchase a 2017 
354 Zodiac Mi/Pro ERB 400 Rescue Boat, and withdraw $19,550 from the previously-established Fire Rescue 
355 Capital Reserve Fund was approved by a vote of 6-0. 
356 
357 NEW BUSINESS /CORRESPONDENCE 
358 
359 TOWN COUNCIL TO CONSIDER NOMINATIONS, APPOINTMENTS AND ELECTIONS 
360 
361 Energy & Environment Advisory Committee 
362 Candidate: Donald Sanders - Term Expires March 2020 
363 
364 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve the nomination of Donald Sanders as a member of the 
365 Energy & Environment Advisory Committee - Term Expiring March 2020, which was seconded by 
366 Councilor Kast. 
367 
368 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the nomination of Donald Sanders as a member of 
369 the Energy & Environment Advisory Committee was approved by a vote of 6-0. 
370 
371 Capital Improvement Program {CIP} Committee 
372 Candidate: Russell Simon- Term Expires March 2020 
373 
374 Vice-Chair Weinstein made a motion to approve the nomination of Russell Simon as a member of the 
375 CIP Committee - Term Expiring March 2020, which was seconded by Councilor Bowden. 
376 
377 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the nomination of Russell Simon as a member of 
378 the C/P Committee was approved by a vote of 6-0. 
379 
380 ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS IN THE 151 READING 
381 
382 Resolution #2017 /2018-15 Resolution Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter into an Agreement 
383 with Educational Building Consultants, Access TV, and Daniels Electric for Town Council Dais 
384 Improvements 
385 
386 Chairman Pike read Resolution #2017/2018-15 Resolution Authorizing the Town Administrator to Enter 
387 into an Agreement with Educational Building Consultants, Access TV, and Daniels Electric for Town Council 
388 Dais Improvements in full. 
389 
390 CORRESPONDENCE - None 
391 

9 

Page 11 of 142



Town Council Regular Meeting 
September 20, 2017 

392 CLOSING COMMENTS 
393 
394 Council Representative to the Energy & Environment Advisory Committee 
395 
396 Vice-Chair Weinstein reminded the Council that they needed to appoint a Town Council Representative 
397 to the Energy & Environment Advisory Committee, and said she volunteered for the position. 
398 
399 Councilor Thompson made a motion to appoint Vice-Chair Weinstein as Council Representative to the 
400 Energy & Environment Advisory Committee which was seconded by Councilor Kast. 
401 
402 Town Administrator Fournier polled the Council and the appointment of Vice-Chair Weinstein as Council 
403 Representative to the Energy & Environment Advisory Committee was approved by a vote of 6-0. 
404 
405 NEXT MEETING: Next regular Town Council Meeting is scheduled for October 4, 2017. 
406 
407 ADJOURNMENT 
408 
409 Chairman Pike adjourned the meeting at 8:08 pm. 
410 

411 Respectfully submitted, 

412 Patricia Denmark, Recording Secretary 

10 

Page 12 of 142



STEPHEN R. FOURNIER 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 

FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 
CHARTEREDJANUARY 1, 1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
OFFICE of the TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 

REPORT OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
October 4, 2017 

Dispatch Service: The Chiefs and I have begun meeting with representatives from the Town of Newfields to 
provide dispatch services to the community once again. I will keep the Council posted. 

Downtown Project: Dubois King, the Town's contracted engineer has reviewed the punch list of items for the 
downtown project and feels that the project is complete. NHDOT will come on site to provide us with a certificate of 
completion after a walk through within the next few weeks. 

NHMA Annual Conference: The NHMA's annual conference will be held November 15 and 16 in Manchester 
NH. I am attaching copies of the schedule overview and some of the preliminary programming that they will have. If 
you are interested in attending, please let me know and we can register you. 

Capital Improvement Plan: The Community Development Director will be attending the meeting to present to the 
Town Council the Capital Improvement Plan. Please note that this is an overview and the detail discussion will be 
held during our budget workshop on October 28. 

ONGOING PROJECTS 

***This section will not be reported on orally to the Town Council at the meeting, but will use this as a 
chance to update on any developments in ongoing projects.v=" 

MRI Efficiency Study: We continue to work on these goals. 

Emergency Management: Waiting for the grant award. 

LED Lighting: Waiting for approval from CDFA. 

NHDOT v Town of Newmarket: The Town has answered the State's request for summary judgement; we are 
waiting for the judge to rule. 

Out of Office: I will be out of the office at the ICMA conference in San Antonio October 19 -27. 

Stephen R. Fournier 
Town Administrator 

TOWN HALL • 186 MAIN STREET • NEWMARKET • NEW HAMPSHIRE • 03857 
TEL: (603) 659-3617 • FAX: (603) 659-8508 • sfournier@newmarketnh.gov 

www.ncwmarketnh.gov 

Page 13 of 142



EST.1941 

NEW HAMPSHIRE MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 
NHMA 
The New Hampshire Muni�ipal Association (NHMA) is pleased to anno�ce its 76th Annual 
Conference, with the theme The Challenge of Change! This is New Hampshire's premier conference 
for municipal officials, featuring over 50 educational sessions on timely and relevant topics, as well 
as ample opportunities to meet and greet with exhibitors ready to offer you the latest products and 
services. 

Registration Information will be available end of September. Please frequent our website at 
www.nhmunicipal.org/annualconference to find the most up to date information. 

Keynote Speaker 
Jan Mcinnis 

• Motivational Speaker 
. Author 

. Humorist 

What other people said about Jan 
Mclnnis ... 

"Jan was the star attraction at our 
annual conference, she was upbeat & 
topical and had the audience in stitches. 
She was also a true pleasure to work 
with; professional, timely and low 
maintenance" 

Page 14 of 142



1:30-2:45p.m. Concurrent Sessions 

3:15-4:30p.m. Concurrent Sessions 

Session Topics 
) 

ACA-New Regulation 
Conflicts of Interest 

Parking 
A parking garage is located adjacent to the Radisson Hotel. 
With validation, parking fees are $6 per vehicle. Attendees staying at 
the hotel may park overnight for $12. 

Conference Information 

Exhibit Hall 
Visit - the Exhibit Hall on Wednesday and Thursday to · meet 
representatives from more than 100 private firms, nonprofit 
organizations and government agencies providing products and 
services catering to local government. Break times offer ample 
opportunity to explore booths and talk with vendors. From accounting 
services to wastewater management systems, you'll find it all in the 
Exhibit Hall! 

• Legislative Update 
• Right-to-Know Law 

• 

• Appropriate Municipal Management of Street Wastes 
• Police Liability & Qualified Immunity 
• The conference will offer sessions in Assessing, Employment, 

Welfare and much more! 

N,e'j Session Tracks! 
Two new tracks are being offered this year: 

I J 
• Law Enforcement Track 

Public Works Track 

• 

Keynote Speaker 
Salon A 

Exhibit Hall Opens 

Opening Breakfast Buffet 
Armory 

Thursday, November 16, 2017 
7:30a.m. Registration Opens 

Exhibit Hall Opens 

8-9a.m. , Opening Breakfast 
Exhibit Hall 

2:45-3:lSp.m. Afternoon Break-Expo Hall 

lOa.m. 

4:30-5:30p.m. Exhibit Hall Reception 

10-10:45a.m. Morning Break-Expo Haff 

10:45-12p.m. Concurrent Sessions 

8-9a.m. 

9-lOa.m. 

12-1:15p.m. Exhibit Hall Luncheon 

Conference Schedule 
Wednesday, November 15, 2017 

7:30a.m. Registration Opens 
Outside of Exhibit Hall 

9-10:15a.m. Concurrent Sessions 

10:15-10:45a.m. Morning Break 
Exhibit Hall 

Conference Registration 

You must be NHMA Member (employee/representative), 
or a member of an NHMA Affiliate Group to attend. 

10:45-Up.m. Concurrent Sessions 

12-1: 15p.m. Municipal Advocate of the 
Year Award Luncheon 
Armory 

1:30-2:45p.m. Concurrent Sessions 

2:45-3:15p.m. Afternoon Break 
ri J •, I 

Exhibit haU r ,.. I ,· 
I • 

3:15-4:30pm Concurrent Sessions 

Page 15 of 142



Jl NHMA 
lifiiti 1¥iifi1 #rdiiitiif!HitifrSh u:: I 

2017 NHMA Conference Session Descriptions 

Wednesday, November 15, 2017 

10:45 a.m. Sessions 
A Toolkit for Local Regulation of Agriculture 
Conflicts surrounding farms are on the rise-be it neighbors challenging farmers, 
farmers engaging in activities that stretch or exceed what constitutes agriculture, 
or entrenched attitudes about property rights. In this session, attendees will 
receive the new agriculture "Toolkit," designed to guide farmers and municipal 
decision-makers to develop farm-friendly regulatory environments. The Toolkit will 
(1) identify and provide a .flow chart of state laws governing farming and 
agricultural activities; (2) provides a checklist for assessing the farm friendliness of 
local regulations and policies; (3) discuss the relationship between state laws and 
town laws; and (4) share resources for assistance for farmers and municipalities to 
address conflicts. 
Amy Manzelli, Managing Attorney, BCM Environmental & Land Law, PLLC 
Theresa Walker, Consultant Environmental Planner, Rockingham Planing Commission 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Land Use & Environment 

Accessory pwelling Units 
This lecture explores the passage of Senate Bill 146 and the adoption of RSA's 
674:72 & :73, which preempts local regulation of accessory dwelling units. Join Ben 
Frost of New Hampshire Housing to learn how this recent legal development 
impacts your community, your land use ordinances, and quite possibly your 
property tax assessments. 
Ben Frost, Attorney, Director, Public & Legal Affairs, New Hampshire 
Hosted by: New Hampshire Association of Assessing Officers 
Track: Assessing 

I " 
•,1 .' r 

I ' 1' i ,, ' I/ 

', 
i;Jjt 

I ii\' 1, 
' I' I 

I ' 

I I -", 

,, . 
I 

Page 1 of 21 
I . 

Page 16 of 142



Building Stronger Voter Support for Your Budget 
Do you want strong voter approval for town plans and budgets, transparency in 
government operations, more effective delivery of services, and sustained high 

, voter satisfaction with town officials and their work? Join this experienced panel of 
speakers to learn how strategic governance can help your municipality achieve 
these results, using the Town of Amherst as a model. The panelists will also discuss 
how strategic governance can increase your success with master planning and 
capital improvements planning. Ample time will be reserved for questions. 
Mike Aki/lion, Director & Senior Strategist, The Center for Strategic Governance 
Sarah Marchant, Senior Strategist, The Center for Strategic Governance 

.- Dwight Brew, Chair, Board of Selectmen, Town of Amherst 
Jim O'Mara, Town Administrator, Town of Amherst 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance 

Cooperative Procurement for NH Towns and Cities 
Collaborative purchasing efforts are underway throughout the state. Join 
presenters Doug Ross (Purchasing Manager, Concord), Ann Legere (Purchasing 
Agent, Dover) and Jeff Titus (Purchasing & Contract Services Manager, Keene) who 
will discuss the good, the bad, and the ugly regarding municipal procurement. 
Doug Ross, Purchasing Manager, City of Concord 
Ann Legere, Purchasing Agent, City of Dover 
Jeff Titus, Purchasing & Contract Services Manager, City of Keene 
Hosted by: NH Government Finance Officers Association 
Track: Finance & Taxation 

Get Energized: Financing for Energy Efficiency and Capital Improvement Projects 
Energy efficiency saves money and the environment in the long term-but costs 
money in the short term. Presenters in this session will provide information about 
available grants and financing mechanisms for energy efficiency and capital 
projects. Attendees will also hear how municipal officials have used grants and 
other available programs to overcome the challenges associated with capital 
appropriations. 
Scott Maslansky, NHCDFA 
Heather Gronlund, Business Program Specialist, USDA REAP-Grants and Loans 
Butch Burbank, Town Manager, Town of Lincoln 
Hosted by: NHSaves 
Track: Emerald and Energy 

I, , 

Page 2 of 21 

Page 17 of 142



Public Sector Pensions: A National Perspective and Effective Use as a 
Recruitment Tool 
This session) hosted by the National League of Cities) will focus on public sector 
retirement as a tool for recruitment and-retention of quality public servants. NLC 
staff will lead the conversation with an overview of national and state retirement 
initiatives) followed by a detailed discussion by leading experts on retirement 
administration and policy. This session will delve into the key issues municipal 
leaders should consider when using benefits as a recruitment tool for public 
employees to balance both human resource/workforce needs and fiscal 
responsibility) with a specific focus on developing a compensation package to 
attract young talent. 
Anita Yadavalli, Director of City Fiscal Policy, National League of Cities 
Jean-Pierre Aubry, Director of State and Local Research, Center for Retirement Research at 
Boston College 
Ron Smith, Director of Actuarial Services, ICMA-RC 
Hosted by: National League of Cities 
Track: Employment and Finance & Taxation 

Role and Responsibilities of Elected Officials 
Elected bodies are charged with making decisions and taking action in the best 
interests of the communities they represent) which often involves balancing 
competing interests. Newly elected officials are expected to properly and lawfully 
discharge their responsibilities) despite being given little prior guidance. This 
program will focus on elected officials) fiduciary obligations to their communities, 
specifically addressing confidentiality and ethical obligations, the role of the 
elected official whenactingin his or her individual capacity) and effective relations 
between elected officials and municipal employees. 
Mark Broth, Shareholder, Drummond Woodsum & MacMahon 
Anna Cole, Attorney, Drummond Woodsum 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Employment 

Working Together: Sharing Services between the Town and the School 
The Town of Newmarket and the Newmarket School District are undertaking a "one 
town" philosophy) in which the town and the school will share services) including a 
shared finance director and facilities director and combined IT and HR 
departments. In this session) Town Administrator Steve Fournier and 
Superintendent of Schools Meredith Nadeau will discuss how the town and school 
were able to accomplish service sharing, how they implement the shared services) 

Page 3 of 21 

Page 18 of 142



and issues they face now and in the future. This is a great session for municipal 
officials involved in service sharing or who are considering service sharing with 
another municipality or school district. 
Steve Fournier, Town Administrator, Town of Newmarket 
Meredith Nadeau, Superintendent of Schools, Newmarket School District 

Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance 

1:30 p.m. Sessions 
Creative Approaches to Tax Collection for Manufactured Housing 
Dealing with delinquent property taxes on manufactured housing is one of the most 
perplexing problems that tax collectors and governing bodies face. The law does 
not work to the municipality's advantage, and efforts to find a legislative solution 
have failed repeatedly. But some municipalities have found ways to work with 
manufactured housing park owners to achieve solutions that work for all parties- 
or at least allow them to minimize their losses. Local officials and a representative 
of manufactured park owners will talk about what has worked for them and offer 
ideas for others. 
Dawn Enwright, Tax Collector, Town of Derry 
Tara Reardon, Director, ROC-NH 
Michael Iache, Tax Collector, City of Concord 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Finance & Taxation 

"Dark Store" Tax Fight - The Dilemma of Big Box Retail Appeals 
In a controversial method known as the "dark store loophole" big box retailers are 
lowering their property tax assessments by having their new stores compared to 
sales of older, closed buildings. This lecture discusses this method and the effects 
it is having on communities where the lowered assessments are having an impact. 
Peter Korpacz, MAI, CRE, FR/CS, Founder & President, Korpacz Realty Advisors, Inc. 
Hosted by: Hampshire Association of Assessing Officals 
Tracie Assessing 

Energy Challenges: Finding Financial Savings for Energy Efficiency Projects 
This session features a panel of municipal officials who have navigated the 
challenges of identifying and implementing energy efficiency projects. They will 
share their real-world stories and provide guidance for attendees on how to 
identify projects and gauge the actual energy and maintenance benefits that will 
be realized. 

I ' Page 4 of 21 

Page 19 of 142



Butch Burbank, Town Manager, Town of Lincoln 
Timothy Ball, Business Administrator, SAU 88 (Lebanon) 
Matthew Wilson 
Hosted by: N HSaves 
Track: Emerald and Energy 

GASB 74/75 and Making Good Decisions 
The session will address the transition from GASB 43/45 to GASB 74/75 and real 
world implications. The GASB 74 transition presents a good time for public sector 
employers to re-evaluate their contribution policy and understand better the long 
term impact of their OPE� Trust. The presentation will also include benchmarking 
data on what others are doing. 
Randy Gomez, Principal, Nyhart 
Hosted by: NH Government Finance Officers Association 
Track: Finance & Taxation 

Healthcare Reform Update 
This session will provide an update on current and pending Healthcare Reform 
requirements affecting governmental employers. Learn about the· latest legislative 
and regulatory developments and their potential impact on your strategic planning 
decisions. 
Darlene Simmons, Member & Enrollee Engagement Manager, HealthTrust 
Dave Law, Benefits and Coverage Counsel, HealthTrust 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance 

New Rurallsrn: Better Communities through Local Innovation 
How are other communities providing healthy food, helping those aging in place, 
saving energy, and providing livable wage jobs? What are the attributes of 
successful locally-driven initiatives? Over the past few years, a team of planners 
from New Hampshire, Maine, and Vermont have been working to identify key 
elements shared by successful local initiatives to solve everyday challenges. This 
session will give you information to bring back to your communities on how other 
small towns are combining lessons from the past with today's technology and 
knowledge to solve tomorrow's challenges. 
Tara Bamford, Planning Consultant, NNECAPA 
Jo Anne Carr, DLP, Director of Planning & Economic Development, Town of Jaffrey & NNECAPA 
Hosted by: NH Association of Regional Planning Commissions 
Track: Land Use & Environment 

' I Page 5 of 21 

Page 20 of 142



Roadway Damage Fee Ordinance 
After nearly seven years of litigation, the New Hampshire Supreme Court issued an 
Order which found that Concord's excavation fee ordinance, which charges utilities 
a fee to excavate paved roadways, is valid under New Hampshire law. Concord 
enacted this ordinance after years of research showed the city's paved roadways 
were suffering deterioration as a result of utility excavations. In this session, 
Concord City Solicitor Jim Kennedy will discuss road deterioration issues due to 
utility excavations, Concord's ordinance, and the lenghty litigation that resulted. 
Jim Kennedy, City Attorney, Concord 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance and Public Works 

Smart Solar Siting for New Hampshire Communities 
Across the Granite State, solar energy has become a popular choice for 
communities to reduce their energy costs and meet environmental and 
sustainability goals. While the technologies are proven and the benefits are 
tangible, barriers to implementation remain, and chief among them is siting. This 
session will discuss important aspects of proper solar siting from diverse viewpoints 
and best practices for communities to consider and implement. The session will 
also cover opportunities for streamlined projects and increased understanding 
moving forward so that all NH communities have the knowledge and ability to take 
advantage of local clean energy resources. 
Ted Vansant, Owner, New England Commercial Solar Services 
Sherrie Trefry, Director of Energy & Environmental Services, VHB 
Michael Behrmann, Director, NH Clean Tech Council 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Energy 

What 30 Mapping Means for Municipalities 
There is new technology that is changing the way municipal buildings and 
infrastructure features are inspected, surveyed, designed and constructed. 
Whether inspecting a water tower, surveying the features of a dam face, or 
designing some new valuable piece of municipal infrastructure, 30 laser scanning 
is fast gaining widespread acceptance in the municipal marketplace. Attendees of 
this session will learn the benefits of this emerging technology, including safety, 
efficiency, accuracy, and cost-savings, as well as its uses, which extend far beyond 
just surveying buildings and bridges. 
Michael Carter, LLS, Doucet Survey, Inc. 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 

I. Page 6 of 21 

Page 21 of 142



Track: Technology & Communications 

3:15 p.m. Sessions 
Dernvstifvingthe MS4 Permit 
New Hampshire's new MS4 permit was released on January 18, 2017, and goes into 
effect July 2018. While seemingly daunting, many communities are already well on 
their �ay to compliance with their existing storrnwaterprograms. This session will 
provide an overview of the new permit, walk through some easy first steps to 
compliance, provide examples of how other communities and institutions are 
approaching the permit requirements, and share available resources. 
Jennifer Czysz; Interim Executive Director, Nashua Regional Planning Commission 
Julie Labranche, Senior Planner, Rockingham Planning Commission 
Barbara McMillan, Watershed Outreach Coordinator, NH Department of Environmental Services 
Tim Puls, Research Engineer, UNH Stormwater Center 
Hosted by: NH Association of Regional Planning Commissions 
Track: Land Use & Environment 

Internal Controls In Local Governments 
Municipalities, both large and small, have a responsibility to implement and 
maintain an effective system of internal controls. This session will explain the 
"theoretical" objectives of such a system, and will offer helpful advice for meeting 
those objectives in "real world" New Hampshire municipal environments. Proper 
segregation of duties, along with other practical policies and procedures will be 
highlighted. 
Scott Eagen, Associate, Plodzik & Sanderson, P.A. 
Hosted by: NH Government Finance Officers Association 
Track: Finance & Taxation 

Legislative Update 
Members of N HMA's Government Affairs staff will provide their annual update on 
legislation affecting local government. The discussion will include an explanation of 
the 2018-19 state budget's distribution of meals and rooms tax revenue, highway 
block grants, water and wastewater grants, and flood control payments, as well as 
supplemental highway and bridge funding. Other significant developments include 
new laws affecting voter registration, municipal record retention, local 
authorization of keno operations, the Right-to-Know Law, and tax exemptions and 
credits. The session will also include an update on activities of legislative 
committees studying utility valuation, regulation of short-term rentals, 
rescheduling of elections, delinquent taxes on mobile homes, and other issues. 

Page 7 of 21 

Page 22 of 142



Cordell Johnston, Government Affairs Counsel, NH Municipal Association 
Barbara Reid, Government Finance Advisor, NH Municipal Association 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance 

LUCA and BEYOND: The Census' Local Update of Census Addresses and 2020 
Operations 
This presentation will describe the basics of LUCA (Local Update of. Census 
Addresses), who can participate and why they should do so. It will give a quick 
overview of the software available for the project, and then explain how it sets the 
playing-field for the 2020 Census. The presentation will also explain how the 2020 
Census will be carried out as we move forward over the next few years. 
Mike Horgan, Assistant Regional Census Manager, US Census Bureau 
Alexandra Barker, Data Dissemination Specialist, US Census Bureau 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Traci<: Technology & Communications 

NH Utility Appeals - Update 
Since 2014, several utility companies have appealed their assessments in multiple 
communities throughout New Hampshire. Join Attorney Christopher Boldt to learn 
the history behind these utility appeals and to get an update on recent court 
decisions and pending litigation. 
Christopher Boldt, Attorney, Donahue, Tucker & Ciandella, PLLC 
Hosted by: NH Association of Assessing Officials 
Track: Assessing 

Stranger Streets 
If a Class VI road is washed out, can the town really do nothing? Can public works 
cut trees on a scenic road? Do there really need to be summer cottages on a 
highway to summer cottages? Join Attorneys Matt Serge and Margaret Byrnes to 
learn about the "stranger" side of municipal road law, including emergency lanes, 
scenic roads, highways to summer cottages, and winter roads. 
Margaret Byrnes, Staff Attorney, NH Municipal Association 
Matthew Serge, Attorney, Drummon Woodsum & MacMahon 

Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance and Public Works 

Page 8 of 21 

Page 23 of 142



Thursday, November 16, 2017 

9:00 a.m. Sessions 
,can Short-Term Rental Arrangements Increase Home Values? A Case for Airbnb 
and Other Home-Sharing Arrangements. 
This lecture looks at the concept of the sharing economy as it affects housing prices 
and the growing conflict playing out between home sharing and local regulations. 
Jamila Jefferson-Jones, Associate Proffessor of Law, University of Missouri - Kansas City 
Hosted by: Hampshire Association of Assessing Officers 
Track: Assessing 

Drones: The Sky Has Limits 
With more than 2,500 drones already registered in New Hampshire, local 
governments are just beginning to navigate applicable federal laws in order to 
implement appropriate local controls. Attorney Christopher Hawkins of the Devine 
Millimet law firm will explain the impacts of the Federal Aviation Administration's 
2016 drone regulations and New Hampshire laws that apply to drone use. Mike 
Gillis, Media Services Manager in Dover, will discuss Dover's drone policy and 
describe the challenges and benefits of municipal use of drones. 
Christopher Hawkins, Attorney, Devine Millimet 
Mike Gillis, Media Services Manager, City of Dover 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Technology & Communications 

Effective Approaches to Employee Discipline 
This program will help public sector supervisors understand the meaning of "just 
cause/ which is the standard for administration of discipline and discharge 
incorporated in most collective bargaining agreements. The presentation will help 
supervisors understand how labor arbitrators assess employer decision-making 
and the steps they need to take to have disciplinary actions upheld. The speakers 
will emphasize that "just cause" requires employees be treated fairly, and an 
employer who is perceived as treating employees fairly will see better outcomes in 
disputed matters before arbitrators, courts, and administrative agencies. Fair 
treatment is also at the core of effective supervision, as well as employee 
productivity and job satisfaction. Back by popular demand, this program was 
previously presented in regional seminars across the state by Attorneys Broth and 
Cole. 
Anna Cole, Attorney, Drummond Woodsum & MacMahon 

Page 9 of 21 

Page 24 of 142



Mark Broth, Shareholder, Drummond Woodsum & MacMahon 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Associaiton 
Track: Employment 

Electronic Waste in NH-Time to Cash In? 
Electronic waste management is experiencing a crisis. Dwindling capacity for 
recycling and increased costs are affecting every municipal budget. There is even 
potential for end markets to become full, leaving New Hampshire with either no 
outlets or prohibitively expensive outlets. This workshop will review both market 
drivers and nearby state recovery programs to use as a model in addressing 
electronic waste issues. 
Mike Durfor, Executive Director, Northast Resource Recovery Association 
Hosted by: Northeast Resource Recovery Association 
Track: Public Works 

Energy Challenges: Finding Financial Savings for Energy Efficiency Projects 
This session features a panel of municipal officials who have navigated the 
challenges of identifying and implementing energy efficiency projects. They will 
share their real-world stories and provide guidance for attendees on how to 
identify projects and gauge the actual energy and maintenance benefits that will 
be realized. 
Butch Burbank, Town Manager, Town of Lincoln 
Timothy Ball, Business Administrator, SAU 88 {Lebanon) 
Matthew Wilson, 
Hosted by: NHSaves 
Track: Emerald and Energy 

Lean in Local Government - Getting Started! 
This workshop will acquaint participants with Lean process improvement 
techniques and principles, including practical examples of Lean projects in New 
Hampshire municipalities. Attendees will learn what it takes to initiate a Lean 
program in their communities. There are four modules: 
• Brief overview of Lean principles 
• The roles and responsibilities of leaders, managers, employees, and Lean 
practitioners 
• Core components of a l<aizen event 
• Panel discussion - Lean projects in NH municipalities 
Kate McGovern, Lean in Local Government - Getting Started, NH Bureau of Education & Training 

Page 10 of 21 

Page 25 of 142



Annie Dove, Director of Information Technology, City of Dover 
Shaun Mulholland, Town Administrator, Town of Allenstown 
Dean E. Shankle, Jr., Ph.D., Town Administrator, Town of Hooksett 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance 

Post-Closure Care of Solid Waste Landfills 
This session will provide an overview of the post-closure care requirements for 
closed solid waste landfills. During the post-closure care period, the permittee has 
specific obligations to regularly inspect, monitor, and maintain the landfill in 
conformity with the solid waste rules. The speaker will discuss why post-closure 
care of landfills is important and the benefits of a well managed monitoring and 
maintenance program. 
Linda Birmingham, Supervisor, Complialnce Assurance Section, NH Department of 
Environmental Services 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Tracie Assessing 

Right-to-Know Law and Law Enforcement 
The disclosure of police records is governed in part by the Right-to-Know Law and 
in part by rules imported from federal law under the Freedom of Information Act 
(FOIA}. This workshop will answer many questions about withholding records 
compiled for law enforcement purposes when disclosure would interfere with 
enforcement proceedings or based on other FOIA factors. Attention will also be 
paid to disclosure exemptions found in other New Hampshire statutes. 
Stephen Buckley, Legal Services Counsel, NH Municipal Association 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Tracie Law Enforcement 

Utility Assistance Panel 
Utilities, especially heat, are a major expense for residents and municipal welfare 
offices. This utility assistance panel will provide information on assistance 
programs and New ·Hampshire utility and assistance regulations. Representatives 
from Eversource, Unitil and Liberty Utilities will also provide information and 
answer questions. 
Celeste Lovett, Fuel Assistance Program Administrator, Office of Energy and Planning 
Amanda Noonan, Consumer Affairs Director, NH Public Utilities Commission 
Gerald C. Walsh, Fuel Assistance Program Director, Southern NH Services, Inc. 
Janice Johnson, Customer Service Consultant, Eversource Credit & Collection 

Page 11 of 21 

Page 26 of 142



Susan Corson, Customer Assistance Program Coordinator, Unitil 
Allison O'Neil, Collections Supervisor, Liberty Utilities 
Hosted by: NH Local Welfare Administrators Association 
Track: Welfare 

10:45 a.m. Sessions 
Active Shooter Training for Law Enforcement 
In recent decades, the incidences of workplace violence involving firearms has 
continued to rise. It is crucial for workplaces to adjust accordingly by preparing 
their business and employees to deal with an active shooter situation. This training 
includes topics such as protocol for an active shooter situation, how to implement 
the appropriate safeguards, behaviors that represent pre-incident indicators and 
more. 
David Goldstein, Chief of Police, City of Franklin Police Department 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Law Enforcement 

Appropriate Municipal Management of Street Wastes 
Street wastes (i.e., street sweepings, ditching soils, and catch basin sediments) and 
other roadside soils from construction may be contaminated with roadway runoff 
related contaminants, as well as animal waste and other solid waste. These 
contaminated soils, collectively referred to as "Limited Reuse Soils" (LRS), are 
subject to management as solid waste. Improper management of LRS can be an 
environmental risk and a financial burden and liability to municipalities. Some LRS 
may be reused in a limited fashion by following applicable management 
requirements. NHDES staff will discuss current knowledge and recent 
developments in LRS management in New Hampshire. This session is geared to 
municipal officials and staff who undertake project planning and execution as well 
as maintenance operations where soils are generated through their activities. 
James O'Rourke, Hydrogeologist, NH Deptarment of Environmental Services 
Keith DuBois, Assistant Director, Waste Management Division, NH Department of 
Environmental Services 
Matthew Taylor, Vice President of Geosciences, 5. W. Cole Engineering, Inc. 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Land Use & Environment 

Page 12 of 21 

Page 27 of 142



Balancing Your Work and Home Life 
Do you ever feel that you are doing too many things at once, and none of them 
well? Have the competing demands of work and home ever left you feeling guilty, 
stressed, or inadequate? You are not alone. Come learn how to bring balance into 
your life! In this session, you will learn specific strategies for setting priorities and 
realistic expectations, tips to eliminate the guilt and unnecessary pressures we put 
on ourselves, and suggestions for restoring balance in your life. 
Jennifer Fitzgerald, Client Service Manager, AIIOne-LifeResources 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Employment 

Do You Have a Conflict of Interest? 
Determining whether a municipal official has a conflict of interest requires an 
understanding of the law and a careful assessment of the particular circumstances 
creating the alleged conflict. Through hypothetical scenarios, Attorney Byrnes will 
help attendees learn to assess and resolve potential conflicts of interest. This 
session will be interactive and require attendees to think, speak, and consider 
multiple perspectives of the same issue. 
Margaret Byrnes, Staff Attorney II, NH Municipal Association 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance 

Excel Can Do That?! From 3D Mapping to Using "Solver" 
Most offices are swimming in data. This presentation demonstrates how to turn 
raw data into actionable insight by using some of Excel's most powerful analytical 
tools, including Goal Seek, Solver (Excel's optimization tool}, and Excel's 30 
mapping. Life examples will include: 
• Discover how Solver can create variables in property valuation models. 
• Discover how Goal Seek and Solver can optimize the budget process by using 
customized budget goals and constraints. 
• Discover how Excel's 30 Maps can identify property assessment shifts. 
• Discover how Excel's 30 Maps can lead to auto accidents analytics by showing the 
time, day, and location of auto accidents within a community. 
David Cornell, MAI, CAE, Founder & President, Cornell Consultants 
Hosted by: New Hampshire Association of Assessing Officials 
Tracie Assessing 

Page 13 of 21 

Page 28 of 142



Get Energized: Financing for Energy Efficiency and Capital Improvement Projects 
Energy efficiency saves money and the environment in the long term-but costs 
money in the short term. Presenters in this session will provide information about 
available grants and financing mechanisms for energy efficiency and capital 
projects. Attendees will also hear how municipal officials have used grants and 
other available programs to overcome the challenges. associated with capital 
appropriations. 
Scott Maslansky, NHCDFA 
Heather Gronlund, Business Program Specialist, USDA REAP-Grants and Loans 
Butch Burbank, Town Manager, Town of Lincoln 
Hosted by: N HSaves 
Track: Emerald and Energy 

NH Retirement System Decennial Commission 
A decennial commission, which convenes every 10 years to review and ensure the 
long-term viability of the New Hampshire Retirement System, has been meeting 
since late-summer, with a deadline of December 1, 2017, to report its findings and 
recommendations for proposed legislative and administrative changes. Join NHRS 
Executive Director and members of the 2017 Decennial Commission as they explain 
the major policy issues and fiscal challenges the commission has been discussing. 
An update on employer-related retirement system changes and improvements 
being implemented now and in the near future will also be explained. 
George Lagos, Executive Director, NH Retirement System 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Employment and Finance & Taxation 

Tornadoes and Floods and Ice Storms, Oh My! 
Local, state, and federal officials all play a role in helping New Hampshire residents 
cope with major disasters. Because welfare officials deal with short- and long-term 
recovery efforts, this session offers a helpful overview of the local and state 
emergency management systems and provides an update on the state's sheltering 
and reunification plans. 
Carole Totzkay, Public Health Preparedness Planner, NH Department of Health and Human 
Services 
Hosted by: NH Local Welfare Administrators Association 
Track: Welfare 

Page 14 of 21 

Page 29 of 142



What is the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS)? 
The FMCS offers many services to public sector employers and their unions at no 
cost. This session will describe services such as collective bargaining mediation, 
grievance mediation, contract negotiations training, interest-based bargaining 
training, contract administration/supervisor, steward training, and labor 
management committee training/facilitation and arbitration services. 
George Lovell, Commissioner, Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service 
Martin Callaghan, Commissioner, Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service 
Arthur Pearlstein, Director of Arbitration, Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service 
Moira Caruso, Commissioner, Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service 
Barbara Owens, Commissioner, Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service 

Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Legal & Governance 

1:30 p.m. Sessions 
Becoming Age-Friendly in Southern New Hampshire 
Over the past year, Southern NH Planning Commission has been working with its 
fourteen municipalities as well as businesses on a "Becoming Age-Friendlv" (BAF) 
program. This program has been made possible by a grant from the Tufts Health 
Plan Foundation and other program supporters. The program addresses the 
statewide issue of a growing senior population and a decrease in millennial 
population, with the goals of attracting millennials back to their communities and 
ensuring that the growing senior population can "age in place." This presentation 
will review the first phase, which involved surveying residents and assessing all 14 
municipalities in the SNHPC region on age-friendly characteristics, including 
transportation, housing, recreation and engagement, and business and economic 
development. Speakers will also discuss progress on Phase II, which will include the 
development of creative short-term to long-term solutions with pilot communities 
and businesses. 
Sylvia von Aulock, Executive Director, Southern NH Planning Commission 
Derek Shooster, Associate Planner, Southern NH Planning Commission 
Cameron Pro/man, Associate Planner, Southern NH Planning Commission 
Todd Fahey, State Director, AARP New Hampshire 
Hosted by: NH Association of Regional Planning Commissions 
Track: Land Use & Environment 

Page 15 of 21 

Page 30 of 142



Cybersecurity 101 
In the wake of highly publicized data breaches and cybersecurity attacks, municipal 
officials are now looking more closely at their historically underfunded municipal 
cyber defense programs. The lack of a cybersecurity program poses a massive 
organizational risk to your city or town. Risks to your IT system range from 
deliberate cyberattacks to unauthorized software to poor internal controls. With 
limited funding, local officials must determine how much they are able to mitigate 
and how much they are willing to simply accept. Municipal leaders don't need to 
understand all the technical details, but they must know whether the 
infrastructure, policies, and procedures are in place and working correctly. Come 

.• 

hear from a panel of municipal IT experts who willprovide guidance on some basic 
approaches that every town and city should know. Get a better understanding of 
today's ever-changing cyber environment and learn how to mitigate cybersecurity 
risks with limited resources. There will be ample time for questions of our expert 
panel. 
Dean Shankle, Jr. Ph.D, Town Administrator, Town of Hooksett 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Technology & Communications 

Leveraging Local Resources 
Municipal welfare has a mandate to provide basic needs for those in need. There 
are many ways to satisfy this requirement. Collaboration with other resource 
providers is a great way to meet client needs and reduce municipal welfare 
expense. Find out how municipalities collaborate with others in their community 
to provide for basic needs and create pathways to future self-sufficiency for their. 
clients. 
Dana Brien, Welfare Director, Town of Hillsborough 
Elizabeth Sayre, Human Services Manager, City of Keene 
Susan Drew, Welfare Director, Town of Milford 
Chris Janson, Executive Director, Share 
Hosted by: NH Local Welfare Administrators Association 
Track: Welfare 

LUCA & BEYOND: The Census' Local Update of Census Addresses and 2020 
Operations 
This presentation will describe the basics of LUCA (Local Update of Census 
Addresses), who can participate and why they should do so. It will give a quick 
overview of the software available for the project, and then explain how it sets the 

Page 16 of 21 

Page 31 of 142



playing field for the 2020 Census. The presentation will also explain how the 2020 
Census will be carried out as we move forward over the next few years. 
Michael Horgan, Assistant Regional Census Manager, US Census Bureau 
Alexandra Barker, Data Dissemination Specialist, US Census Bureau 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Technology & Communications 

New Hampshire's Solid Waste Operator Training & Certification Program - 
Compliance with the Latest Rules 
Facilities that manage solid waste in New Hampshire, including municipally owned 
landfills and processing and treatment facilities, must be permitted by the New 
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NH DES). Since 19891 one of the 
regulatory requirements of a solid waste permit is that all operators at the facility 
be certified by NH DES. Operators who understand the requirements of RSA 149- 
M are in a better position to maintain their facilities properly and protect public 
health and the environment. Join Tara Mae Albert, NHDES1s full-time Solid Waste 
Operator Training & Certification (SWOT) Coordinator, who will review important 
revisions to Env-Sw 1600 -- state regulations that govern municipal solid waste 
operators. Albert will also discuss improving communications between 
municipalities and the SWOT Coordinator, future workshop topics and locations, 
continuing professional development, and where she sees the program heading in 
the future and what this may mean for cities and towns. Whether receiving initial 
operator certification or renewing their certification, municipal officials need to be 
aware of the ever-changing solid waste stream and of the changes to laws and 
regulations that affect them, their employees, and their facilities. 
Tara Mae Albert, Solid Waste Operator Training & Certification Coordinator, NH Department of 
Environmental Services 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Public Works 

Right-to-Know Law Update 
The Right-to-Know Law never stands still. This year there are statutory changes 
regarding non-public sessions and the on-line posting of meeting notices and 
minutes, and court decisions dealing with disclosure of personnel records and 
electronic files. This session will take a close look at these developments and 
related issues, with plenty of time for questions and answers. 
Cordell Johnston, Government Affairs Counsel, NH Municipal Association 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 

Page 17 of 21 

Page 32 of 142



Track: Legal & Governance 

Take a Picture of This -- The Use of Body Worn Cameras in New Hampshire's 
Police Departments 
Police departments across New Hampshire are researching the benefits, pitfalls, 
and costs associated with the use of Body Worn Cameras {BWCs). Police 
departments like that BWCs reduce the number of public complaints about officer 
behavior, and citizen advocates like the idea that they may provide increased 
accountability. Under state law {RSA 105-D), police departments now must follow 
specific requirements and procedures if they choose to use BWCs. Successful 
implementation requires research and preparation, and it is up to each police 
department to determine the best way to meet the requirements of RSA 105-D and 
the needs of the department. Join Northwood police chief Glen Drolet, immediate 
past president of the Association of Chiefs of Police, and Hinsdale police chief Todd 
Faulkner, who will provide an overview of RSA 105-D and discuss the use and 
handling of recordings, retention schedules, costs, and more. Both officers were 
actively involved in the development of RSA 105-D and have practical experience 
with the use of BWCs in compliance with the law. 
Glen Drolet, Police Chief, Town of Northwood 
Todd Faulkner, Police Chief, Town of Hinsdale 
Anne Edwards (Tentative), NH Department of 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Law Enforcement 

Tax Deeding Property-Procedures and Pitfalls 
This session will provide a comprehensive examination of the "tax liening" process 
under RSA 80. It will include a question and answer period when attendees can 
bring their most challenging questions or share their invaluable insights with the 
group. 
Bernie Waugh, Attorney and Partner, Gardner, Fulton & Waugh, PLLC 
Hosted by: New Hampshire Association of Assessing Officials 
Track: Assessing 

3:15 p.m. Sessions 
Board of Tax and Land Appeals Annual Update 
In the BTLA's annual update, members of the board will discuss recent decisions 
and address frequently asked questions. 
Michele Le Brun, Chair, Board of Tax and Land Appeals 

Page 18 of 21 

Page 33 of 142



Albert Sha mash, Member, Board of Tax and Land Appeals 
Theresa Walker, Member, Boar of Tax and Land Appeals 
Anne Stelmack, Clerk, Board of Tax and Land Appeals 
Hosted by: New Hampshire Association of Assessing Officials 
Traci<: Assessing 

Court Update 
Municipal law is shaped not only by the legislature, but also by the courts. This 
popular session is your opportunity to learn about federal and state court decisions 
issued over the past year that affect New Hampshire's cities and towns. NHMA 
attorneys will highlight cases of interest and field questions. Attendees will also 
receive a copy of NHMA's annual Court Update publication! 
Margaret Byrnes, Staff Attorney II, NH Municipal Association 
Stephen Buckley, Legal Services Counsel, NH Municipal Association 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Traci<: Legal & Governance 

Enhancing Your Community's Flood Resiliency 
This session will include an overview of the state's revised model floodplain 
ordinance and menu of higher floodplain regulations, which a municipality can 
choose from based on the municipality's flood risk. Attendees will come away from 
this session with the model ordinance and menu of higher regulations and guidance 
on how they can enhance their existing floodplain ordinance to make their 
municipality more flood resilient. 
Jennifer Gilbert, Senior Planner, State Floodplain Management Coordinator, NH Office of Energy 
and Planning 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Land Use & Environment 

Gifts, Grants, and Getting a Yes -- Free Resources and Strategies to Find and Get 
Funding 
This session will provide attendees with an overview of free resources and 
strategies to identify government, private, and corporate funding opportunities 
and make compelling pitches to funders. Topics covered will include: free and 
subscription-based online tools; Congressional district office resources for grant 
seekers; steps municipalities can take now to greatly simplify the process of 
applying for and accepting a federal grant in the future; and components of an 
effective funding proposal. 
Sheridan Brown, Attorney at Law - Grant Funding Specialist, Municipull 

Page 19 of 21 

Page 34 of 142



Jon Jarvis, Staff Assistant, U.S. Sentor Jeanne Shaheen 's Office 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Finance & Taxation 

Going Paperless 
Does your city or town wish to go paperless? Do you want to make more 
information available to the public faster and more easily? Changing your municipal 
processes by moving from paper to electronic records poses many challenges, yet 
presents the opportunity for more efficient local government. Come learn from a 
municipal official who has created greater transparency and efficiencies through 
the smart use of technology and ask questions from the industry experts who 
assisted in the implementation process. The session will discuss digitizing 
municipal records, the use of electronic signatures, electronic forms, Cloud-based 
servers, document management systems, and other general advice to local officials 
on implementing new processes by going paperless. 
Shaun Mulholland, Town Administrator, Town of Allenstown 
David Febonio, Business Process Consultant, New England Document Systems 
Kyle Blossom, Digital Imaging Specialist, Ricoh USA, Inc. 
Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Tracie Technology & Communications 

NHLWAA Annual Business Meeting 
NHLWAA members and non-members are invited to hear annual reports for the NH 
Local Welfare Administrators Association and get updated on organization 
information and pending legislation. Membership information will also be 
available on request. 
Patricia Murphy, President, NHLWAA 
Hosted by: NH Local Welfare Administrators Association 
Track: Welfare 

Police Liability and Qualified Immunity 
When and under what circumstances is local government liable for the alleged 
misconduct of a police officer? What rules apply for courts to determine whether 
a police officers is entitled to qualified immunity? This workshop will provide an in 
depth exploration of these and other liability and immunity issues for police 
officers, police departments, and local government. 
Samantha Elliott, Esquire, Gallagher, Callahan & Gartrell, P.C. 
John Curran, Esquire, Curtin, Murphy & O'Reilly, P.C. 
Corey Belobrow, Esquire, Maggiotto, Belobrow, Feeney & Fross, PLLC 

Page 20 of 21 

Page 35 of 142



Hosted by: NH Municipal Association 
Track: Law Enforcement 

Signs in the Right-of-Way and Religious Signs: Understanding Road Law and 
RLUIPA in a Post-Reed World 
The U.S. Supreme Court's 2015 Reed v. Town of Gilbert decision upended municipal 
sign ordinances across the country. By creating a simple test to determine whether 
a regulation is "content-based," the Court's decision rendered a wide swath of 
commonly used sign regulations unconstitutional under the First Amendment. 
Instead of bringing clarity, however, the bright-line test established by Reed has 
paradoxically raised many unanswered questions. This session will provide 
answers and guidance for municipalities regarding two such questions: (1) What 
are the implications of Reed with respect to regulating signs within the right-of 
way? (2) With respect to regulations affecting religious signs, how does Reed 
interact with the federal Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act 
(RLUIPA)? Although the session will focus specifically on Reed, the goal is to provide 
a general understanding about regulating religious signs and signs within the right 
of-way. 
Tim Corwin, Senior Planner, City of Lebanon 
Matthew Decker, Associate Attorney, Gardner Fulton & Waugh PLLC 
Hosted by: N_H Municipal Association 
Track: Land Use & Environment 

Page 21 of 21 

Page 36 of 142



�� m ::, 
N er >- ., u.."' 

.... o o m o o oo o o 
I.Do"' o"' 
"'0"' rl rl rl 

.... o o rn a.a 
00 0 0 
I.D ... 0 .. 1.1) ... 

Vl O "1 
rl rl rl 

rl O O m o o 
00 0 0 
w"' a .. 0 
Vl O U'l 
rl rl rl 

0000 0000 
w o o m 
t"l'l o' N .. o"' 
" Vl rl 

0000 a a a a m a a en 
LI) 0- N .. a"' 
"'"' rl 

0 0 0 0 
0000 
N O O Ol 
lD o"' N .. o" 
m "' rl rl 

00 ..... 
"' a m 
rl 

00 
t-; 

"' a 
m 
rl 

00 
0 0 
Vl " N n'> 
Vl N 

V} <I> 

V} V} 

00 
00 "'0 rn"' .-I 
<t N 

en en 
N .; 
rl 

0 00 
0 0 
ON 0 '¢ .. 
rl 00 

r-, 

V} V} 

0 <t s fxi 
Om' 
rl "' " 

0 00 
0 0 
0 ... 

� �f 
00 

"' V} V} 

OMM 
ON N o ........ 
a' r.i' N 
Vl I'- N 
rl rl m 

rl 

"' "' ..,- 
0 
rl .... 

rl 

"' Vl 
,-..' 
<t 
rl .... 

� � r-.: ,,, .. 
O rl 

"' <t N r,'i' 

"' V> 

V> V> 

V} V} 

N rl 
rl m 
<t rl 
m' r-.: 
Nm 
N rl 
rl ... ('t') 

<I> <I> 

V} V> 

V> V} 

"' rl 
m 

"' o 
rl .... - 

rl 

" " "' " 00 

'° 

e-rr-. <t 
"' m en en rl o 
n"I ... v" 00 
LI\ N ,-.. o o o ...... r ..-+ r.l 

o o o o o o ONN 
� -.:i' 00 
"' ..... "' m rl LI\ 

"' "' rl o"' <t o en en 
<t:i' lJ') ai' 
"' ..... rn MN cc 

V> V> V> 

o en o en o en 
o' a .. 
rl � 

o"' g:::: 
a" 00 
rl "' Vl 

V} <I> 

Vl "' s � 
d' rl 
rl -e 

"' 

V} V} 

0 " om 
0 <t 
o"' al' 
rl rl 

0 .... - 

ON s � 
a"' t.J) ... 

rl"' 

"' .... - 

N M ,-.. 

r-, " " "' "' "' I.D a'.....; 
"' m r-, 
rl " .... - 

"' "' rl 
o.o' 
N 

"' "' "' 00 
rl 

0 
0 
0 

"' rl 

en en 
N 

"' N 

"' m 
N 

'° N 

o en 
g� 
oo m 
<t N 

00 
00 
"' <t oo' ffl 
"1 N 

o en o en 
"' " U'.> m"' 
'<t N 

0 "' 0 "' 0 <t 
N� 
U'l N 

o en s � oo en 
<t N 

o "' o "' ON 
r-,.' ,.,£ 
"1 N 

V> V> 

V> V} 

00 
r-, 
o a 
"' 

g 
o a 
Vl 

0 o o a 
"' 

" o 
" .... - 
"' N 

..... o 
" "' rl 
N 

g 
0 a 
Vl • 

a a a a 
1.1'1 o o a 
ll'I a a oe:t 
Q Q N"' ci 
cc "' rl <t 

0000 
WOO r-, 
oe:t O O Ol 
Mo"' N .. N 
Vl Vl N 
rl 

000 000 000 
O ll) r-,."' 

"' " 

V> V} 

000 000 000 
o' ll) ll) 
00 ,-.. N 

rl 

rl O O m o o 
00 0 0 
I.Oo'O 
"'0 ... 
rl rl rl 

rl o o moo oo o o 
V) o' Ul 
"'om rl rl rl 

V} V} V} 

V} V} V} 

rl O O m o o 
00 0 0 
� .. 0 .. LI) 
"' 0 " rl rl rl 

"' en r-, N N rl 
rl o o 
a' 0 .. 1.11 .. 

"' "' r-, rl 

..... 0 "' ,-.. o '"' 
"' "' "' ON Ul 
m rl "' m rl 

rl o o 
�gg 
U> a' in" 
v, o m 
rl rl rl 

V} 

000 000 000 
a' o"' ll'I"' m Vl N 
rl rl 

:sl t! --- ., en ::, 
rl er >- ., u.."' 

() 

u 

..... 
rl 
0 s 
N 

-- "' 

1: ., 
E 
t: rer u, a. cc .. u 0 � 
�� 
0 3 
3 .!,! .� :a :a ::, 
::, 0.. 

0.. 

Page 37 of 142



FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 
Requests Requests Requests Requests Requests Requests 

Public Works 
PW -1 Public Works - Vehicles $ 156,831 $ 156,831 $ 156,831 $ 156,831 $ 156,831 $ 156,831 
PW -2 Stormwater Management $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 
PW -3 Highway Improvements $ 135,000 $ 140,000 $ 145,000, $ 150,000 $ 155,000 $ 160,000 

Facilities 
FA -1 Beech Street Ext. Senior Center $ 13,450 $ 4,760 $ 2,500 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
FA -2 HVAC Upgrades-Community Center $ $ $ - $ 71,400 $ 500 $ 500 
FA -3 Roof Replacement-DPW $ 172,000 $ 7,200 $ 7,200 $ 7,200 $ 7,200 $ 7,200 
FA -4 Second Floor Fire Station $ 48,700 $ 48,700 $ 48,700 $ 48,700 $ 48,700 $ 48,700 
FA -5 Police Station Parking Lot Repairs s 31,800 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 $ 200 
FA -6 Police Station Access Control and Surveillanc $ 243,219 s 2,500 $ 2,500 s 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,500 
FA -7 Police Station Energy Management $ - $ $ 43,200 $ 500 $ 500 $ 500 
FA -8 Tiger House Painting $ 21,500 $ $ - $ - $ - $ 5,500 
FA -9 Town Hall Brick and Stone Repainting s 62,500 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 
FA -10 Town Hall Energy Management $ - $ 87,600 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 
FA -11 Town Hall Fa�ade Tin Work $ 38,600 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,800 
FA -12 Town Hall Heating Plant Replacment $ 89,750 $ 500 $ 500 s 500 $ 500 $ 500 
FA -13 Town Hall- HVAC $ - $ - $ 118,000 $ 3,000 $ 3,000 $ 3,000 

$ 721,519 $ 152,460 $ 224,800 $ 136,200 $ 65,300 $ 73,600 

Macallen Dam 
D -1 Macallen Dam $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 

Veteran's Memorial Trust 
V -1 Veterans Committee $ 2,000 s 2,000 $ 2,000 $ 2,000 $ 2,000 $ 2,000 

Page 4 

Library 
L -1 Pedestrian Enhancements $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 
L -2 Interior walls repairs and painting $ 13,800 $ 12,570 s 500 $ 500 $ 500 $ 500 

$ 24,200 $ 22,970 s 10,900 $ 10,900 $ 10,900 $ 10,900 

Fire and Rescue 
F. -1 Vehicles $ 90,250 $ 90,250 $ 90,250 $ 90,250 $ 90,250 $ 90,250 
F -2 Dispatch $ 171,157 s 125,157 s 125,157 $ 40,428 $ 40,428 $ 40,428 

$ 261,407 $ 215,407 $ 215,407 $ 130,678 s 130,678 $ 130,678 
Police 

p -1 Vehicles $ 52,000 $ 58,500 $ 57,000 s 43,500 $ 52,500 $ 52,500 
p -2 Protective Equipment $ 23,466 s 23,400 $ 24,266 $ 21,000 $ 12,966 $ 23,466 

$ 75,466 $ 81,900 $ 81,266 s 64,500 s 65,466 $ 75,966 
Recreation 

R -1 Bleachers at Leo Landroch $ 3,333 $ 3,333 $ 3,333 $ 3,333 $ 3,333 $ 3,333 
R -2 Landroche and Beanie Howcroft Fields $ 6,300 $ 6,300 $ 6,300 $ 6,300 $ 6,300 $ 6,300 
R -3 Swing Sets at Leo Landroche $ 4,666 $ 4,600 $ 4,600 s 4,666 $ 4,666 s 4,666 
R -4 Restroom Facilities $ 9,000 s 9,000 $ 9,000 
R -5 Splash Pad $ 6,000 $ 6,000 

$ 29,299 $ 29,233 s 23,233 $ 14,299 $ 14,299 s 14,299 
Planning 

PL -1 Master Plan $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 
Water 

W-1 Vehicles - Water $ 14,002 s 14,002 s 14,002 $ 14,002 $ 14,002 $14,002 
W -2 Water Supply $ 200,000 s 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 
W -3 Water Main Replacement $ 150,000 s 150,000 s 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 

$ 364,002 $ 364,002 $ 364,002 $ 364,002 $ 364,002 $364,002 

Page 38 of 142



Page 5 

Sewer 
SW -1 Bay Road Pumping Station Improvements $ 130,000 $ 130,000 $ - $ - s 
SW -2 Wastewater Truck $ 16,085 $ 16,085 S; 16,085 $ 16,085 $ 16,085 $ 16,085 
SW -3 Creighton Street Pumping Station $ 51,504 $ 51,504 $ 51,504 $ 51,504 $ 51,504 $ 51,504 
SW -4 Pump Station Improvements-Medium Priori! $ 45,000 $ $ $ - $ - $ 
SW -5 WWTF-1 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 
SW -6 WWTF-2 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 
SW -7 WWTF-3 $ 36,350 $ 36,350 $ 36,350 $ 36,350 $ 36,350 $ 36,350 
SW -8 Pump Station SCADA $ 50,000 $ $ - $ - $ - $ 

$ 267,123 $ 302,123 $ 302,123 $ 172,123 $ 172,123 $ 172,123 

Schools 
5 -1 Pick-up Truck/plow $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 5,100 

· S -2 Bleachers JR/SR $ 87,250 $ � $ - $ - $ - $ 
S -3 High School Roof $ 167,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 
S -4 Jr/Sr High School $ 708,145 $ 1,685,547 $ 1,684,051 $ 1,683,923 $ 1,682,865 $ 1,680,755 
S -5 Elementary School $ 261,917 $ 623,421 $ 622,868 $ 622,821 $ 622,429 $ 621,694 

$ 1,229,412 $ 2,314,068 $ 2,312,019 $ 2,311,844 $ 2,310,394 $ 2,307,549 

Page 6 

Page 39 of 142



FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY 23/24 
CIP CIP CIP CIP CIP CIP 

Public Works 
PW -1 Public Works - Vehicles $ 156,831 $ 156,831 $ 156,831 $ 156,831 $ 156,831 $ 156,831 
PW -2 Stormwater Management $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 
PW -3 Highway Improvements $ 135,000 $ 140,000 $ 145,000 $ 150,000 $ 155,000 $ 160,000 

Facilities 
FA -1 Beech Street Ext. Senior Center $ - $ $ $ $ $ 
FA -2 HVAC Upgrades-Community Center $ - $ $ $ s - $ 
FA -3 Roof Replacement-DPW $ 172,000 $ 7,200 $ 7,200 $ 7,200 $ 7,200 $ 7,200 
FA -4 Second Floor Fire Station $ 48,700 $ 48,700 $ 48,700 $ 48,700 $ 48,700 $ 48,700 
FA -5 Police Station Parking Lot Repairs $ - $ $ $ - $ $ 
FA -6 Police Station Access Control and Surveillance $ $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 2,500 
FA -7 Police Station Energy Management $ - s - $ $ - $ $ 
FA -8 Tiger House Painting $ - $ - $ - $ $ $ 
FA -9 Town Hall Brick and Stone Repainting $ 62,500 s 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 
FA -10 Town Hall Energy Management $ 87,600 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 
FA -11 Town Hall Fac;:ade Tin Work $ - $ $ $ $ - $ 
FA -12 Town Hall Heating Plant Replacment $ 89,750 $ 500 $ 500 $ 500 $ 500 $ 500 
FA -13 Town Hall- HVAC $ - s - $ $ - $ - $ 

s 460,550 $ 58,400 $ 60,900 $ 60,900 $ 60,900 $ 60,900 
Macallen Dam 

D -1 Macallen Dam $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 
Veteran's Memorial Trust 

v -1 Veterans Committee $ 2,000 $ 2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 

Page 7 

Library 
L -1 Pedestrian Enhancements $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 
L -2 Interior walls repairs and painting $ - $ - $ $ - $ $ 

$ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 $ 10,400 
Fire and Rescue 

F -1 Vehicles $ 90,250 90,250 90,250 90,250 90,250 90,250 
F -2 Protective Equipment $ 171,157 125,157 125,157 40,428 40,428 40,428 

s 261,407 $ 215,407 $ 215,407 $ 130,678 $ 130,678 $130,678 

Police 
p -1 Vehicles $ 52,000 s 58,500 $ 57,000 $ 43,500 $ 52,500 $ 52,500 
p -2 Dispatch $ 23,466 $ 23,400 $ 24,266 $ 21,000 $ 12,966 $ 23,466 

$ 75,466 $ 81,900 $ 81,266 $ 64,500 $ 65,466 $ 75,966 
Recreation 

R -1 Bleachers at Leo Landroch $ $ - $ $ $ $ 
R -2 Landroche and Beanie Howcroft Fields $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $ 
R -3 Swing Sets at Leo Landroche $ $ - $ - $ $ $ 
R -4 Restroom Facilities $ 9,000 $ 9,000 $ 9,000 
R -5 Splash Pad $ 6,000 $ 6,000 

$ 15,000 $ 15,000 $ 9,000 $ - $ - $ 

Planning 
PL -1 Master Plan $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 

Page 40 of 142



Water 
w -1 Water Supply $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 $ 200,000 
w -2 Vehicles - Water $ 14,002 $ 14,002 $ 14,002 $ 14,002 $ 14,002 $14,002 
w -3 Water Main Replacement $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $150,000 $150,000 

$ 364,002 $ 364,002 $ 364,002 $ 150,000 $ 150,000 $150,000 

Page 8 

Sewer 
SW 1 Bay Road Pumping Station Improvements $ 130,000 $ 130,000 $ - $ $ 
SW 2 Vehicles - Sewer $ 16,085 $ 16,085 $ 16,085 $ 16,085 $ 16,085 $ 16,085 
SW 3 Creighton Street Pumping Station $ 51,504 s 51,504 $ 51,504 $ 51,504 $ 51,504 $ 51,504 
SW 4 Pump Station Improvements-Medium Priority $ 45,000 $ $ - $ - $ $ 
SW 8 Pump State SCADA $ 50,000 $ $ - $ s - $ 

SW 5 WWTF-1 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 $ 48,222 
SW 6 WWTF-2 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 $ 19,962 
SW 7 WWTF-3 $ 36,350 s 36,350 $ 36,350 $ 36,350 $ 36,350 $ 36,350 

$ 267,123 $ 302,123 $ 302,123 $ 172,123 $ 172,123 $ 172,123 

Schools 
s 1 Pick-up Truck/plow $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 5,100 
5 2 Bleachers JR/SR $ 87,250 $ - $ c $ - $ - $ 
5 3 High School Roof $ 167,000 $ - s - $ - $ $ 
5 4 Jr /Sr High School s 708,145 $ 1,685,547 $1,684,051 $1,683,923 111111111111111111 $1,680,755 
s 5 Elementary School $ 261,917 $ 623,421 $ 622,868 $ 622,821 $ 622,429 $ 621,694 

$1,229,412 $ 2,314,068 $2,312,019 $ 2,311,844 111111111111111111 $ 2,307,549 

Page 9 

Page 41 of 142



Town of Newmarket: 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) gives Newmarket, the Town Administration 
and Council, Budget Committee, and School District, an important tool to plan for the 
future capital needs of the community. This plan takes into consideration the Town's 
vision, goals and objectives, for capital projects for municipal and school facilities as 
identified in the Town of Newmarket Master Plan based on the financial capability of the 
Town to bring the program to fruition. The CIP is a long-range plan, which includes a 
time sequence for the implementation of projects over a period of six (6) years from 
Fiscal Year 2018/2019 through Fiscal Year 2024/2025. 

Generally, a capital project is a non-reoccurring annual expense that creates a depreciable 
asset for the community, as opposed to an operating cost, which relates to the on-going 
annual expenses of delivering services to persons and properties. For example, the cost of 
designing and constructing a wastewater treatment plant and its corresponding 
infrastructure is considered a capital project; whereas the cost of hiring an operator or 
purchasing materials to run the plant is an operating cost. 

Expenditures to fund a capital project may include a one-time expenditure in any given 
fiscal year which would be included in the Town Department's or School District's 
annual budget. Or, if the item is a costly one, there may be a need to establish, a capital 
reserve fund for the project or piece of equipment, in which case funds would be annually 
appropriated by the Town and School District for that purpose and then deposited into a 
non-lapsing fund to allow the funds to accumulate over time, so when the time comes to 
undertake the project, the necessary funding is available to complete it. Or, the CIP can 
include items for which there will be a bond issue/or long-term financing to fund the 
project and the corresponding debt service over the course of several years. 

There are two types of CIP project requests for: (1) Capital Equipment; and (2) Capital 
Improvement Project, as described below: 

Capital Equipment: 
Capital equipment is defined as the purchase of a tangible item that is non 
reoccurring; has a useful life of more than three (3) years; and an aggregate cost 
of at least $10,000. All new and replacement equipment that meets this criteria 
should be requested on the Capital Equipment Request Form that is attached. 

Capital Improvement Project: 
Capital Improvement Project is defined as a project undertaken to enhance the 
infrastructure and public facilities of Newmarket. It has a useful life of more than 
10 years and costs at least $50,000. All new capital projects meeting this criteria 
should be requested on the Capital Improvement Project Request Form. 

1 

Page 42 of 142



It should be noted that not all capital improvement projects involve physical facilities. 
They may include special studies and analyses, preliminary designs, and cost estimates, 
and land acquisitions, which are often referred to as "soft" costs. 

As part of the process, the CIP committee prioritizes the proposed expenditures based on 
the justifications provided by each Town Department and the School District for each 
project. By classifying a project by its need or urgency, the CIP committee will have 
information upon which to rank projects based on the following definitions: 

Urgent (Class 1) 

Necessary (Class II) 

Desirable (Class III) 

Deferrable (Class IV) 

Exploratory (Class V) 

Inconsistent ( Class VI) 

CIP Process 

Project cannot be delayed and/or is needed 
immediately for health and safety reasons. 

Project is needed to maintain basic level of 
community services 

Project would be beneficial to the community but is 
not considered necessary, compulsory, or urgent. 

Project can be placed "on hold" until after the 6 
year CIP period, but generally supports community 
development goals. 

Project needs more research, planning or 
coordination. 

Project is contrary to land use planning or 
community development goals. 

Every year in August, the Planning Department requests that the Town's Departments 
prepare their proposed CIP. The CIP committee convenes at the beginning of September 
to review the CIP proposals. The CIP committee typically will conduct a site visit with 
the Town's Department Heads to review the project and will invite each department to 
come to a meeting and present their projects. The CIP committee then prepares 
recommendations on items to include in the CIP as well as specific budget allocations for 
the upcoming annual budget and forwards their recommendations to the Town 
Administrator by October 1. 

2 

Page 43 of 142



(- 
LOCAL LAND USE PLANNING 674:S 

Note I 

( 

CJS 
C.J.S. Zoning and Land Planning §§ 10, 93, 178, 

183 to 184, 187. 

Source. 1983, 447:1. 2002, 90:1, cff. July 2, 
2002. 

New Hnmpshlre Practlcc 

15 N.H.P. Land Use Planning and Zoning 
§§ 3.06, 32.04, 32.05. 

Amcndmenls-2002. Inserted the second sen 
tence. 

Capital Improvements Program 
Caoss fumcf.NCE.� 

Local land use planning and regulatory powers, sec RSA 674:1 ct seq. 
Municipal budgets and finance, generally, sec RSA 32:1 ct seq. lo 34:1 et seq. 

674:S Authorization. In a municipality where the planning board has adopted a 
master plan, the local legislative body may authorize the planning board to prepare 
and amend a recommended program of municipal capital improvement projects 
projected over a period of at least 6 years. As an alternative, the legislative body 
may authorize the governing body of a municipality to appoint a capital improvement 
program committee, which shall include at least one member of the planning board 
and may include but not be limited to other members of the planning board, the 
budget committee, or the town or city governing body, to prepare and amend a 
recommended program of municipal capital improvement projects projected over a 
period of at least 6 years. The capital improvements program may encompass major 
projects being currently undertaken or future projects to be undertaken with federal, 
state, county and other public funds. The sole purpose and effect of the capital 
improvements program shall be to aid the mayor or selectmen and the budget 
committee in their consideration of the annual budget. 

HISTORY 

Consideration of program by mayor and budget committee, sec RSA 674:8. 
Local land use planning, Innovative land use controls, see RSA 674:21. 
Preparation of program, see RSA 674:7. 

West JCcy Number 

Zoning and Planning =353.1. 

Wcstlaw Topic 

Wesllaw Topic No. 414. 

CJS 
C.J.S. Zoning and Land Planning§§ 10, 178, 183. 

New Hampshire Practice 
15 N.H.P. Land Use Planning and Zoning 

§§ 4.01, 17.05, 26.03, 31.02. 

ANNOTATIONS 

Coustructtou and applicatinn 1 

1, Construetiun and applicatfun 
Town was required to enact ordinances providing 

for limited growth before town could apply growth 
control rates set forth in master plan to deny 
subdivision proposal. Rancourt v. Town of Barn 
stead (1986) 129 N.H. 45, 523 A.2d 55. 

Town's capital improvements program, or ab 
sence thereof, plays no pnrl in review of subdivision 
upplicatiou presented to governmental authorities; 
capital improvements program is part of effectun 
tion of town's master plan, which differs from sub 
division regulations that are intended to protect 
from danger or injury to public health or welfare. 
Zukis v. Town of Fitzwilliam (1992) 135 N.H. 384, 
604 A.2d 956. 

{ 
\ 

699 

Page 44 of 142



( 
674:6 PLANNING AND ZONING 

674:6 Purpose and Description. The capital improvements program shall classify 
projects according to the urgency and need for realization and shall recommend a 
time sequence for their implementation. The program may also contain the estimat 
ed cost of each project and indicate probable operating and maintenance costs and 
probable revenues, if any, as well as existing sources of funds or the need for 
additional sources of funds for the implementation and operation of each project. 
The program shall be based on information submitted by the departments and 
agencies of the municipality and shall take into account public facility needs indicated 
by the prospective development shown in the master plan of the municipality or as 
permitted by other municipal land use controls. 

HISTORY 

Source. 1983, 447:1, eff. Jan. 1, 1984, 

Cuoss furnnEl'ICl!S 

Local land use planning, innovative Janel use controls, see RSA 674:21. 
LllllL\RV R!:FE11F:NCES 

( 

Wcsl Key Number 

Zoning and Planning e::>353.1. 

Wcsllaw Topic 

Westlaw Topic No. 414. 

CJS 
C.J.S. Zoning and Land Planning§§ 10, 178, 183. 

New Hampshire Practice 

15 N.H.P. Land Use Planning and Zoning 
§§ 4.02, 29.02. 

ANNol'ATIONS 

Cnnstructiun and applicattun 1 

1. Construction and appllcatton 
Town's capital improvements program, or ab 

sence thereof, plays 110 part in review of subdivision 
application presented to governmental authorities; 

capital improvements program is part of effectua 
tion of town's master plan, which differs from sub 
division regulations that arc intended to protect 
from danger or injury to public health or welfare. 
Zukis v. Town of Fitzwltliam (1992) 135 N.H. 384, 
604 A.2d 956. Zoning And Planning ez. 1383(5) 

·( 
'· 

674:7 Preparation. 
I In preparing the capital improvements program, the planning board or the 

capital improvement program committee shall confer, in a manner deemed appropri 
ate by the board or the committee, with the mayor or the board of selectmen, or the 
chief fiscal officer, the budget committee, other municipal officials and agencies, the 
school board or boards, and shall review the recommendations of the master plan in 
relation to the proposed capital improvements program. 

II. Whenever the planning board or the capital improvement program committee 
is authorized and directed to prepare a capital improvements program, every munici 
pal department, authority or agency, and every affected school district board, 
department or agency, shall, upon request of the planning board or the capital 
improvement program committee, transmit to the board or committee a statement of 
all capital projects it proposes to undertake during the term of the program. The 
planning board or the capital improvement program committee shall study each 
proposed capital project, and shall advise and make recommendations to the depart 
ment, authority, agency, or school district board, department or agency, concerning 
the relation of its project to the capital improvements program being prepared. 

700 

Page 45 of 142



LOCAL LAND USE PLANNING 

Hisronv 

674:8 

Source. 1983, 447:1. 1995, 43:1. 2002, 90:2, 
eff. July 2, 2002. 

Amcndmcnls-2002. Paragraph I: Inserted "or 
the capital improvement program committee" pre 
ceding "shall confer", and inserted "or the commit 
tee," following "board", where second appearing. 

Paragraph TI: Inserted "or the capital improve 
ment program committee" following "board", in 
two places in the first sentence, and in one place in 
the second sentence, and inserted "or committee" 

following "board", 1vherc fourth appearing, in the 
first sentence. 

-1995, Paragraph ll; Inserted ", and every 
affected school district board, department or ngen 
cy," preceding "shall, upon request" in the first 
sentence nnd deleted "or" following "authorlty," 
and inserted ", or school district board, department 
or agency," preceding "concerning" in the second 
sentence. 

Cnoss fumnENCE.'l 

Authorization of program, sec RSA 674:5. 
Contents of program, see RSA 674:6. 
Local land use planning, innovative land use controls, see RSA 674:21. 

LIIIIURY RF.l'F.RF.NCTS 

West Key Number 

Zoning and Planning e=>353.l to 363. 

Wcstlaw Topic 

Westlnw Topic No. 414, 

C.TS 
C.J.S. Zoning and Land Planning §§ 3, I 0, 21, 

93, 178 to 181, 183 to 187, 
New nampshlre Pructlcc 

15 N.H.P. Land Use Planning and Zoning§ 4.03. 

( 674:8 Consideration by Mayor and Budget Committee. Whenever the planning 
board or the capital improvement program committee has prepared a capital 
improvements program under RSA 674:7, it shall submit its recommendations for the 
current year to the mayor or selectmen and the budget committee, if one exists, for 
consideration as part of the annual budget. 

Hrsrouv 

Source. 1983, 447:1. 2002, 90:3, eff, July 2, ning board", and "or selectmen" following "may- 
2002. or". 

Anicndmcnls-2002. Inserted "or the capital 
improvement program committee" following "plan- 

Caoss RtrnnENCE'S 

Authorization of program, sec RSA 674:5. 
Purpose of program, see RSA 674:6. 

Lrnn,1nv RrrElll!NCf:.� 

West Key Number 

Zoning and Planning e=>353.l lo 363. 

Westlaw Topic 

Westlaw Topic No. 414. 

CJS 

C.J.S. Zoning and Land Planning §§ 3, JO, 21, 
93, 178 to 181, 183 to 187. 

New Hampshlre Practice 

15 N.H.P. Land Use Planning and Zoning§ 4.03. 

( 

Official Map of the Municipality 
Cuoss fufl!Rf.NCllS 

City, town and village district highways, see RSA 231:1 et seq. 

701 

Page 46 of 142



Section 5.6. Trans£ ers. 

After the budget has been adopted, no money shall be drawn from the treasury of the Town nor 

shall any obligation for the expenditure of money be incurred except pursuant to a budget 

appropriation. The head of any department, with the approval of the Administrator, may 

transfer any balance or any portion thereof from one fund or agency within his department 

to another fund or agency within his department. The Administrator, with the approval of the 

Council, may transfer any balance or any portion thereof from one department to another. 

Section 5.7. Capital Improvement Plan. 

A. The Capital Improvement Program Committee shall prepare and submit to the Council 

and Budget Committee a Capital Improvement Plan at least one (1) month prior to the 

final date for submission of the budget. The Capital Improvement Plan shall include: 

(1) A clear summary of its contents. 

(2) A list of all capital improvements including major replacements which are proposed to 

be undertaken during the next six (6) fiscal years, including, but not limited to, 

equipment, sewer and water mains or facilities, roads, school facilities, sidewalks, 

bicycle paths or lanes, public open spaces and recreation facilities, new police and/ or fire 

stations, and other new public facilities and major items of equipment, with 

appropriate supporting information as to the necessity for such improvements. 

(3) Cost estimates, methods of financing and recommended time schedule for each such 

improvement. 

(4) The estimated annual cost of operating and maintaining the facilities to be constructed or 

acquired. 

B. The Capital Improvement Plan shall be based on a period of not less than six (6) years and 

shall include reference to or be influenced by, where appropriate, the Town master plan. 

C. The above information may be revised and extended each year with regard to capital 

improvements still pending or in process of construction or acquisition. 

Town of Newmarket, NH 30 Town Charter 

Page 47 of 142



D. At least annually, or more often as the Council may direct, the Administrator shall submit to 

the Council a status report on implementation of the Capital Improvement Plan for the 

current year and financial statements of all capital accounts. 

E. A swmnary of the updated Capital Improvement Plan with estimated costs shall be 

included in the Town Report and such portion of the current-year costs the Council deems 

appropriate included in the Town Budget. 

(Amendment May 9, 1995, Art. 5., Sec. 5.7.D.) (Amendment May 11, 2004, Art. 5, Sec. 5.7.A.) (Amended 

March 11, 2014.) 

Section 5.8. Lapse of Appropriations. 

Every appropriation, except an appropriation from dedicated funds, shall lapse at the close of 

the fiscal year to the extent that it has not been expended or encumbered. 

Section 5.9. Depository. 

The Council shall approve to the Treasurer the depository or depositories for Town funds 

and shall provide for the timely deposit of all Town monies. The Council may require such 

· security for Town deposits as it deems necessary, except that personal surety bonds shall not be 

deemed proper security. 

Section 5.10. Bonding of Officials. 

Any Town officer elected or appointed by authority of this Charter shall be bonded in an amount 

as required by State law or dictated by prudent fiscal practice for the faithful performance of 

the duties of his office. The Administrator and all officers receiving or disbursing Town funds 

shall be so bonded. All official bonds shall be corporate surety bonds, and the premiums 

thereon shall be paid by the Town. Such bonds shall be filed with the Town Clerk. 

Section 5.11. Borrowing Procedure. 

All borrowing by the Town shall be in accordance with the Municipal Finance Act, RSA ch. 33. 

(Amended March 11, 2014.) 

Town of Newmarket, NH 31 · · ' Town Charter 

Page 48 of 142



B. Committee Organization. Each conunittee shall determine its own rules and order of 

business unless otherwise provided by the Charter or by law. The agenda and minutes shall be 

kept as required by RSA ch. 91-A. A chairperson and secretary shall be elected annually in 

accordance with the conunittee's rules or procedure. 

C. Quorum, A majority of the members of a committee shall constitute a quorum, but a 

smaller number may adjourn from time to time until a quorum is achieved. No other action 

taken by a number of members smaller than the quorum shall be valid or binding. 

D. Council. The provisions of Section 10.16 shall not apply to the Council to the extent that they 

are inconsistent with other provisions of this Charter. 

Section 10.17. Land Use Ordinances. All land use regulations and ordinances must be adopted 

pursuant to State law. 

Town of Newmarket, NH 45 Town Charter 

Page 49 of 142



ARTICLE 11. ADMINISTRATIVE AND JUDICIAL BOARDS. 

Section 11.1. Administrative Committees. 

A. Planning Board. There shall be a Planning Board consisting of six (6) elected members and 

one (1) appointed member. The Chair of the Town Council shall perform those duties 

assigned to the "Mayor" under RSA 672-677. Six (6) of these members shall be elected for terms 

of three (3) years, such terms to be staggered. The Planning Board shall have all the powers 

granted to planning boards by state law. Three (3) alternate members shall be appointed by 

the Planning Board, each serving three (3) year terms staggered. 

B. Budget Committee. There shall be a Budget Committee consisting of eleven (11) 

members, nine (9) of whom shall be elected for three (3) year terms, such terms to be 

staggered. The Council and the School Board shall each appoint one (1) of their members to 

serve as a representative to the Budget Committee. These representatives shall have all the 

rights of membership except the right to hold office. Any vacancy in the elected membership 

shall be filled by a majority vote of a quorum of the Budget Conunittee for the unexpired 

term. The Budget Committee shall have all the powers granted to Budget Committees by state 

law. 

C. Conservation Commission. The Conservation Commission shall consist of not less than 

3 or more than 7 members appointed by the Town Council. The Conservation Commission 

shall have all the powers granted to Conservation Commissions by State Law. 

D. Capital Improvement Program Committee. There shall be a Capital Improvement 

Program committee consisting of up to six members. The Town Council shall appoint one 

council member and one alternate, the Budget Committee shall appoint one budget committee 

member and one alternate, the School Board shall be invited to appoint one member and one 

alternate, and the Planning Board will appoint one planning board member and one alternate, 

all to serve for one year terms. Two at large members shall be appointed by the Town Council 

for a term not to exceed three years.. The CIP Committee shall appoint all ex-officio members it 

feels are necessary to perform their duties subject to Town Council approval. The Capital 

Town of Newmarket, NH 46 Town Charter 

Page 50 of 142



Improvement Program Committee shall have all the powers granted to them under RSA 674:5 

through 674:8. 

(Amended March 11, 2014) 

E. Other Administrative Committees. Other administrative boards and committees may be 

established or dissolved as necessary by the Town Council. These committees shall have such 

powers as determined by the Council or provided by State Law. 

F. At least annually, in February and more often if T?wn affairs warrant, the Town Council 

shall meet with the Chairs of all standing Town committees to review significant actions taken 

by the committees, projects currently under discussion, and anticipated activity for the coming 

year. 

G. At least annually, the Town Council shall invite the School Board to a meeting to discuss 

projects currently under discussion and anticipated activity for the coming year. 

(Amendment February 18, 1992., Art. 11, Sec. 11.1.A.) (Amendment May 9, 1995, Art. 11, Sec. 11.1.A 

and B) (Amendment May 13, 1997, Art. 11, Sec 11.1.C, D & E) 

Section 11.2. Judicial Board. Zoning Board of Adjustment. 

There shall be a Zoning Board of Adjustment appointed by the Council, consisting of five (5) 

members each serving a three (3) yeai· term and three (3) alternates each serving a three (3) year 

term. Such terms shall be staggered. The Council shall fill any vacai1cy for the period of the 

unexpired term. The Zoning Board of Adjustment shall have all the powers granted to such boards 

under State law. 

Section 11.3. Terms of Office. 

Except as otherwise provided by this Charter, the terms of office of all members of administrative 

committees shall begin on the first Monday following the second Tuesday in March, and they shall 

end on the first Monday following the second Tuesday in March in the yeai· that their term expires. 

If a member received an appointment or was elected subsequent to the second Tuesday in March of 

the year in which the term of office originally commenced, the term to which the person was 

Town of Newmarket, NH 47 I . � Town Charter 

Page 51 of 142



• I 

o 
� .g 
0 
� 

�· rt" 
� 

� 

� 

-� � 

0 � 

-� 

� � N � 

z .e .. o 0 < --·� ·� 

(D 
.. ......._ 

(D .N ·OQ s 
� 

O I ·-� 

N -......) (D 

s 0 g N 

� 

� 
� 

� 

� 
0 

(JQ 
(D � 

� � s 

Page 52 of 142



Page 53 of 142



r/J ...., � > u 0 � � � 
� 

� 0 � c (l) 0 § c co () -· ,-...... p) ,., 
§ 0... 0 

� 
0 � s s N ,-...... (D tr: tr: 

::s (D M- (D -· 
� 

er -· 0 g. r:fJ (D ._ ...... 
� 

� � � I 
0 () (D � o: 

� 

�· 
., p) ,., -· (D 

� 
0 
� -· r+ 

0.. ,-... ,-...... � ::s ,., s � 
f./) (D I 0... § c (D ,........_ 0 

u 'O "< o: I � 0 I § 0 (D � H-) 
::i>-'8 tr: 0 0 ::s 

> p) � � " � 
� 

z 8 ;:+ � � r:fJ (D ,-...... I < (D 0 ,-...... M- p) 
� � M- ,-...... 

-· 'O ,-...... 0 (D I ,__.... § -· (D 
8. 8 M- ,__.... 8 (D (D 0 p) >--1 

� f./) < 0 � (D � 0 
....... -· ::s to 0 

I -· s r:fJ ., 0.. � to ::s n " < s � (l) I 0 � (Jq er 
....... 0.. 

� 
(D c (t) � n (D 

< cr' > � 
::s 0... to ,., p) � s � (l) '-< ,__.... 0... o (Jq 0 -· p) Wo M- 0 � 

,., 
� (t) � 

(D 
� -· (D 

� 0 I ,., 
o ""1 8 (D c M- 

� g (D 
., (l) ::s 0... � 

I 

$S. (JQ � ::s o � 
r+ 

9 � 
� ,., o 0 0 > (D � 
(D (D -· § (Jq s ,-...... 

� 0 ,-...... ,__.... § � 
tr: rt (D 

p) ,-... [/'). (t) c � 
(D er >--1 

::s (l) 0 a ::s 8 (D 0 
0.. y> � (D -· -· � 

0 � � 
,., ::s cro 

r/J >-rj 0 -· � ,__.... ,., (D � rro >--1 c p) 0 -· (D (D 
co o ,__.... < � so (D to � 
§ ...... (D 

� 
� s ,-... to (D (D � ....... 0 ....... � a � "Tj ....... 0 (D 

� ., (l) ,., 
� � 

....... f./) 

� (D � ,., (Jq 
0... 

,,-...__ 
o v o: ,., 

(D (D ·o 
� -· 0... (D -· (t) 

u ., < r:fJ r:fJ � 
:;:d (l) � a (D (D (D (D � 
(l) (') a a -e 
() ....... (D � � 
O Q � � 

,., <:» -· � (D 
., u ,., < 2-: v -· tr: 0 (t) (D -· < ::s -· r:fJ < (D 

(JQ p) (t) (D (D a 0 
:::::s a r/J (l) � s (l) 
� � o -· ., p) -· < s (l) ., < (t) ....... 
� � 

(t) �· r+ 
'"O r+ 
__. (D 
� 
§ (D 

-· :::::s 
(JQ 

§ 
0.. 
v 
(l) 
< 
(l) ,-... 
0 

'O 
8 
(l) 

g 
v -· @ 
(') ....... 
0 

u., 

Page 54 of 142



rn 

:r: 

0 

n 

"' 

)> 

I 
3 Cl !;l 
� -0 � 
D, �. 
Q 
:, 

<I> 
I-' ........ 
'-" 0 l/1 Y1 . .a $1) 
0 0 00 o ow 
0 0 I-' 

� V1 l1l y, .. o .. a 
0 0 I-' 
I-'"'"' '-J co en 

.............. v, 0 u, 
.. o . .o .?' 
0 0 CX> oow 
0 0 I-' 

..... 
"' .._, 00 
l/1 l/1 0 
bbb o o o 
0 0 0 

= = 

tb� 
u, O en 
b b 00 o ow o o ,_. 

� v, � 
.. vi .P 9 
o o o 
0 0 0 000 

.._, l/1 
.._, "' o bbb ggg 

� lJ'1 � 
ONO� 
\DbbCX> a o o o 
0 0 0 0 

.. 
,_. u, en 
p .!" ... o . .o 
� 0 0 V1 

888� 

' Vl 

-° 0 
0 
0 

..... 
.... Ul w 
p t-1 .. 0 .. m 
IJl O O N 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

u, u, 
NO O 
l/1 b b o w u, 
ON W 

.... 
"' u, \D �!'-' . ..O� N O O ln a a o o 0000 

N 
_t;; .... o .._, 

v, 
.0 
§ 

v, 
.0 s 
00 

Vl 
.0 
0 

8 

"' v, w"' ):.b 
mo 
"'0 

"' u, � .. ce 
.... v, 
00 o o 

--� ::l 
NO °' o "' 0 

"',,. .!-' .. w 
O l/1 
00 o o 

"' l/1 w "' 'i:..b en o en o 

"' .... �.?' 
.... u, 
\D O 
lD O 

-v, 
0 

� g 
' 0 

00 
NI-' 
u, 0 

�§ 

u, ......... 
�b 
u, o 
Vl u, 

.... 
<O I-' o_o 1g g 
'° o 

"' w w 
"' 0 "' "' "' .... � >-lb 
N "-' 0 
u, w "' 

en w w 
en o m 
.?' !"' :" 
I-' I-' 0 
"'"' 0 u, w"' 

u, I-' w 
N a, a, 
Sil .. .P. .. .f!a 
N NO 
0 0 0 000 

"' ..... w ; --� � 
"'"' 0 0 0 0 o o o 

..... en 
00 y, 
Vl en 
"' 

!--' en 
N 

"' lO 
"' "' 

!--' ..... 
00 
!--' w 
\D 

"' 

!--' 0 
I-' 
<O .... 
<O 
\D 

w .."' 
lO w ......... 
0 _,,. 
lO O '° en .... 00 

w .."' 
lO w 
<O ..... 
:,-J t-1 
"' o 00 ..... 
..... lD 

1-1- 

" 0 
3 
u c 
;;; 

n a 
� � 
3 Q 
c c i� a. ::, 
11) r- 

-;% 
0 
u 
3 
11) a 

OQ e 
p;- 

OJ.."' en w o ,_. 
en .o "'w IB ¥i! 

I-' 

'-' <O u, 
Ic 
lO 
\D 

<I> 

I-' w 
"' .0 
w w w- 

u, I-' w 
w .._,"' 

,!"I !" ._.P. 
......... 0 
NNO 
u, W N 

.._, 
J� p 
oo o .._, o 
,,. 0 

.._, 
00 ..... 

... .f::. .. o 
NO 
0 0 
00 0 

.'i:: 
N 
<O 
\D 

.... _ .... 
"' lO 
\D 

..... u, 
.!" !"' w u, en o en o 

N ln w"' � tn o� 00 

I-' w 
,o 
"' .._, 
00 

,__. u, en 
.. o .t..i ... o Y1 w a o w 
0 0 0 0 
0000 

I-' u, .._, 
O N O UJ woo m 0000 
0 0 0 0 

.............. 
v, o u, 
.. t.n .. o .?' o o oo 
0 0 OJ o o ,_. 

............... en o u, . .op $11 
0 0 00 oow 
0 0 I-' 

• 
Page 55 of 142



N 
b 
0 
0 

"U -V). OJ 
O'Q 
(0 

.p,. 

N 
b 
0 
0 

-V). 

N 
b 
0 
0 

-V). 

N 
b 
0 
0 

.!'l 
0 
0 
0 

N 
b 
0 
0 

.i:,. ...... 
u, \D 00 w Cl'I N ...... w .i:,. " ...... 
0 w \D 00 r- � u, ...... SI) N w 
b u, 

'"" 
en u, u, N 00 " b '".i:,. 

0 0 u, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 u, 
0 0 0 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 0 

'(/), -V). -V). -V). -V). '(/), -V). -V). -V). -V). '(/), '(/), -V). -V). '(/), 

...... 
u, u, 00 .i:,. 
0 N ,-..J � N ,oo ,-...i .i:,. 

b '".i:,. u, CTI 0 lJ1 N " N 

'"" 0 Cl'I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CTI 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

'(/), -V). -V). -V). '(/), -V). -V). '(/), -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). '(/), '(/), 

N ...... 
u, N ...... .i:,. .i:,. 
0 .i:,. 00 ...... � w .!'l � " .!'l 
b 00 b u, b 0 N u, N " N u, 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

'(/), -V). '(/), '(/), '(/), '(/), '(/), '(/), '(/), -V). '(/), '(/), '(/), -V). '(/), 

...... 
u, w .i:,. " 0 ,CTI w ...... ...... .!'l ,oo ,-...i ...... 
b N b u, b b u, u, N " N '".i:,. N 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

'(/), -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). '(/), '(/), -V). '(/), -V). 

u, m .p,. 
0 ,U1 ,w ...... ...... .!'l ,oo " b w 0 u, b b u, u, N " N u, N 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

'(/), '(/), -V). '(/), -V). '(/), -V). '(/), -V). -V). '(/), -V). -V). -V). -V). 

u, " .i:,. 
,o ,w w N ...... !"'" u, N 00 ,-..J 
0 m b u, 00 b 0 u, u, lJ1 N 

'"" 
N u, N 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

"U '"CJ '"CJ 

� � � 
I I I w N ...... 

:c Vl '"CJ 
cii:i' r+ c 0 � :::, --, 

:E 3 n 
OJ :E � < OJ 

r+ 0 
3 ro --, 

--, ;:,;- 
-0 Ill "C 
--, s: c: 
0 OJ < 2:: < ro :::, (t) n' OJ 3 O'Q :!. :E ro ro Q.. 
:::, 3 (0 0 
r+ Ill .... 
Ill ro ;,;" 

:J Ill 
r+ 

-V). '(/), -V). 

...... ...... ...... w 0 u, 
u, 0 ,Cl'I 
b b 00 
0 0 w 
0 0 ...... 

-V). '(/), -V). 

...... ...... ...... 
.p,. 0 u, 
0 0 Cl'I 
b b 00 
0 0 w 
0 0 ...... 
-V). -V). '(/), 

...... ...... ...... 

.p,. 0 u, 
u, 0 ,Cl'I 
b b 00 
0 0 w 
0 0 ...... 
-V). '(/), -V). 

...... ...... ...... 
u, 0 u, 
0 0 m 
b b 00 
0 0 w 
0 0 ...... 

-V). '(/), -V). 

...... ...... ...... 
u, 0 u, 
u, 0 ,Cl'I 
b b 00 
0 0 w 
0 0 ...... 
-V). -V). -V). 

...... ...... ...... 
Cl'I 0 u, 
0 0 ,Cl'I 
b b 00 
0 0 w 
0 0 ...... 

:::0 'Tl 
(I) -< 
.'2 .... c: 00 (I) - Ill .... .... \D VI 

:::c .,., 
(I) -< 

.'2 .... c: U) 
II> - Ill N .... 
Ill 0 

:::c .,., 
II> -< 
.'2 N c: 0 II> - VI N .... 
Ill .... 
.___ 

:::0 .,., 
II> -< 
.'2 N c: .... 
II> - Ill N .... 
Ill N 

:::0 .,., 
II> -< 

.'2 N c: N 
II> - Ill N .... 
VI w 
.___ 

:::0 .,., 
II> -< 
.'2 N c: w 
II> - Ill N .... 
Ill .i::,. 

'Tl 
iii' n 
n )> DJ 
DJ "O 

N 
;:::.· 

-I DJ 
0 0 .... � :::0 
00 :::0 II> - :::I II> Ill 
N c .'2 II> 
0 II> c .... .... (I) < 
U) "C II> 

DJ Ill 
I .... .,., 
N ;i Ill c: 0 3 :::I N w II> 0.. - :::I VI - N .... D 0 Ill 
N "C 
.i::,. 

-n ,., -n ,., ,., -n ,., ,., -n ,., ,., ,., ,., 
< 0 )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... \D 00 " Cl'I u, .i:,. w N ...... 
w N ...... 0 

< s: -i -i -i -i -i -i "U "U "U Vl :::0 I co 
ro 0 0 0 0 0 cii:i' 0 0 0 ro 0 < ro 
r+ OJ :E :E :E :E :E ro n 0 )> ro 
ro n --, n c=;· c=;· 0 ...... n 
--, OJ :::, :::, :::, :::, :::, ro ro ro :::, n :::, 
OJ I I I I I :c 0. :::0 c :::, ro 0 Vl Vl Vl ro Vl 
Ill :::, OJ OJ OJ OJ OJ r+ r+ r-+ ,., -0 -0 r+ c OJ OJ OJ 0 O'Q 

--, 
n 0 ' Ill r+ r+ r+ OJ ro 
0 I ,., m co ro ci' ci' ci' 0 n --, ro 

OJ I OJ < � (1) OJ :::, --, ro r+ 'Tl 

3 3 < '<") c=;· '"CJ :::, :::, :::, --, 0. OJ 
(I) OJ OJ OJ 

(1) OJ ::!! 3 ro m c. 3 .... )> a. --, 7' m )> '"CJ Ill >< 
(I) n n 0. O'Q :::, :::, n OJ --, ro I r+ ;:;: ., QI :::, ro < OJ a. ro n ., ro :::, n ;:.: 

r+ OJ O'Q :::, r+ Vl 15' ro :::I ib ::! s: 0. :J --, ro z: Vl I 0 
(1) :::I 

'"CJ O'Q O'Q Ill :J e-+ 0 3 ro VI 
Ill zr :::, OJ Vl < Ill O'Q OJ :::, 

:::, r+ n a. "U 3 
� o :::, � OJ 0 s: r 0 � 0 

OJ r+ 0 0 c --, 
(I) 3 0 O'Q :::, OJ :J r+ :::, :J n 
3 :::0 ., ro ro :J e-+ ro ;:,;- 3 :::0 OJ --, :::0 ;:;: (1) 

0 -0 O'Q 0 ro -c :J 
::::!. OJ 

ro ro (1) -0 n r+ 
:J -0 OJ ro 

DJ n r+ 0 3 :::, OJ (1) ., 
3 (1) 0. 

--, :::, 
-I :::, Vl r+ ., (0 a. :J Vl ro 
c: :J r+ 

:J c 
Ill e-+ O'Q ., .... < ro 

zr 
:::, 
"" 

-V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). -V). 

Page 56 of 142



� s � -0 
r :;o :;o :;o :;o :;o -0 -0 "Tl "Tl r r 

' ' ' I I I I I ' I I ' I I ' w N I-' I-' U1 +:> w N I-' N I-' N I-' N I-' 

� � < s: Vl :;o Vl r OJ -0 < 0 < ::, -0 
ro -0 ro �- (l) ii> 

..., ro iii' ro ..... ro 
(l) (l) ::r (l) iii" (/) ::, 0 zr zr ro 0. ..... ..... (/) ..... ::, 0. (l) ..... -0 
ro ro c=;· e-+ (/) ..., n ro n (l) n �- ro 

Q'Q ..., (/) ..., ..., ro zr 0 0 ::r n ii> ..... 0 
ro ro ..... 

s: Vl 
..., 0 Vl n ro ..... n ..., ..., 

(/) -0 <' (/) zr (/) 

c: -0 (l) 3 ro ::r ..., :E iii' 
(l) -0 0. 

..... ro (/) ro ::, 

� 
(l) (/) 

(l) 
(l) 

::, -0 ::, "Tl (l) rn 
:E "C (l) (l) ..... ::0 "C ::!! rn c: 

:;o -< (l) iii" 0. ..... ::, r ID .0 0 
(/) ::, 

ro ..... (l) r 0. ro c: ..., ..., zr C" 
ro n ID 

-0 ..+ ::, �: ro 0 ... -0 ;:;· ro (l) ... ..., ID ::, 0 OJ ID QI -0 ::, Q.I 
3 ID 

(l) ... ro ro r QI :::, (l) n .... 
n :::, (/) r (l) (l) ..+ ro 0. ..., (D < 
(D (IQ (l) ::, ::, c5· ::, (/) 3 
3 

::, ro 0. ..... ::0 (l) 
0. ..., :::, ID (D 

ro ..., I 0 v, ::, ::, 
::, 0 0 n n 0. ..... ..... n ::r c (/) 

::r :E ID -0 
(D n 

Ill 
..., ::, 
0 !:!'. 
;:::+' ::, 
"Tl Q'Q 

ro a: 
(/) 

'(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')--(/),-(/),-(/), '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- -(/), '(/')- 

::!! n 
w I-' N N I-' (/) 

en U1 0 I-' I-' N -...J N U1 O'l -...J I.D N I-' I-' n � 
QI 

,+>- 0 0 +:> 0 I.D O'l ,I.D ,+'> ,O'l w U1 w N I-' .!--' ,o ,+>- w 0 QI 'O 

0 0 0 0 'N 0 w � � b � � ;:;· 
0 0 O'l w I-' N N 00 N -i QI 
0 0 0 0 0 I.D 0 0 O'l 0 w O'l O'l 0 0 U1 U1 0 0 0 0 0 
N 0 0 N 0 I.D 0 0 O'l 0 w O'l O'l 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 .... :E ::0 co ::0 ID 

-0 
......... :::, ID (/) 

(l) '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- -(/), '(/')- -(/), '(/')- '(/')- -(/), N 0 ..c ID 

Q'Q 
0 c .., 

ro 
.... ID 

ID < 
ID 't:I v, (I) 

U1 w I-' N N I-' ' QI ..+ "Tl 
O'l U1 0 I-' I-' N 00 N U1 I-' N I.D N I-' I-' N ... V> 

,+'> 0 0 +:> ,o ,I.D O'l I.D ,+'> ,O'l ,w I-' w 00 U1 ,U1 ,o N N 0 0 ..+ c 
0 0 b b 0 U) � l/1 � U) l/1 � N 3 :::, 

0 0 N O'l w w I-' N w l'I> c... 
0 0 0 0 0 w 0 0 0 0 w 0 0 0 0 U1 U1 -...J -...J 0 ......... :::, v, 

N 0 0 N 0 w 0 0 0 0 w 0 0 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 N ..+ ......... 
0 V> 0 

'(/')- '(/')- -(/), '(/')- '(/')- -(/), -(/), -(/), '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- -(/), N "C 
4=>, 

w I-' N N I-' 
O'l U1 0 I-' I-' N 00 N U1 I-' N I.D I-' I-' 
+:> 0 0 _.p,. ,o ,w I.D ,+>- O') ,w .!--' _.p,. -...J U1 ,U1 ,o 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 N 0 O') w w N N 0 � I-' N U) U1 � 
0 0 0 0 0 w 0 0 0 w O'l O'l 0 0 U1 U1 0 0 0 
N 0 0 N 0 w 0 0 0 w O') O'l 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 

'(/')- -(/), '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- -(/), -(/), -(/), '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- -(/), '(/')- 

w I-' N I-' 
O') U1 0 I-' I-' I-' O') N .f::,, w .f::,, I.D I-' I-' 
+:> 0 ,o .f::,, ,o ,+>- ,+'> O') w ,.P,. I-' w ,o 0 ,o 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 N O') w w U1 0 l/1 O'l � N U) U1 � 
0 0 0 0 0 I.D O') 0 w 0 0 0 -...J N U1 0 0 0 
N 0 0 N 0 I.D O') 0 w 0 0 0 00 00 0 0 0 0 

'(/')- -(/), -(/), '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- -(/), '(/')- '(/')- '(/')- -(/), '(/')- 

w I-' N I-' 
O') U1 0 I-' I-' I-' O') I-' U1 w .f::,, I.D I-' I-' 
+:> 0 0 ,+'> 0 ,.P,. ,.f::,, O') w ,+'> .!"' N ,o 0 ,o 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 N O'l w w 00 w l/1 O') � N U) U1 � 
0 0 0 0 0 I.D O'l 0 w O') O') 0 -...J N U1 0 0 0 
N 0 0 N 0 I.D O'l 0 w O') O'l 0 00 00 0 0 0 0 

'(/')- -(/), -(/'), -(/'), -(/), -(/), -(/'), -(/'), -(/'), -(/'), -(/), -(/'), -(/'), -(/'), -(/), -(/), 

i./), w I-' N '(/')- I-' 
O') U1 0 I-' I-' I-' -...J N U1 w .f::,, I.D I-' I-' 
.f::,, 0 0 .f::,, _o ,+>- ,+>- ,m y.> U1 w .!"' p 0 0 p 0 
0 0 0 0 0 N O') (.U w U) � U1 O'l � 'N I.D U1 � 
0 0 0 0 0 I.D O'l 0 w O'l O'l 0 -...J N U1 0 0 0 
N 0 0 N 0 I.D O'l 0 w O'l O'l 0 00 00 0 0 0 0 

Page 57 of 142



Vl Vl Vl Vl Vl 
I I I 

W N f--1 
I I I I I I I I 

OO-..JO"IU1.j:,,,WNf--1 

c: 
3 
-u .., 
a· 
�· 

3 
-0 .., 
0 
< IO 
3 
ID 
:::, ,...,. 
(/) 

() ...... 
IO 
aii. 
zr ,...,. 
0 
:::, 

� 
ril -I 
IO ...., 3 ,...,. ):; 

-0 -U ;,,; O c: 
< 3 
ID -0 
3 :::, 
ID OQ 
:::, 

'? � 
� §"· 
� :::, 

{/). {/). {/). {/). {/). {/). 

N ,!-' 
lJJ O"I O"I 
f--1 N 00 
NN.j:,,, ,U1 
boob f--1 
f--1 O"I U1 0 
I.D 00 f--1 0 

{/). {/). {/). {/). {/). {/). 

N ,!-' 
lJJ O"I O"I f--1 
f--1 N 00 O"I 
'.j:,,, w U1 ,-..J ,U1 
o'.i::.lllo f--1 
O"I N .j:,,, 0 0 
00 f--1 -..J O O 

n 
DJ 
"C ;::.: 
DJ 

;:ti :;a 
l'l> � 
.0 (D 

c: < 
� l'l> 
.... "T1 
II) c: 

::I c. 
II) ......... 
Q 
" 

"T1 
iii' 
rJ � 
N -i 
O O .... :E 
�::I 
NO 
O l'l> 
...... "C 'P DJ N;::::. 
S 3 w re ......... :::, 
N,... 
O II) 

� 

f--1 
U1 f--1 w 

....... ,O"I O 
U1 0 0 0 00 0 
.j:,,, U1 0 

f--1 
U1 f--1 w 
f--1 ,O"I O 
l/1 0 0 0 00 0 
.j:,,, l/1 0 

w f--1 .j:,,, 
,O"I \.0 ,oo 
W I.D N 
U1 O"I N 
ON N 

w f--1 .j:,,, 
,O"I � 80 
W W N 
U1 O"I N 
ON N 

w 
0 r- 
f--1 
N w 

N 
O"lll1Wf--1.j:,,,.j:,,,U1f--1 
,-..J O ,O"I \.!) 80 U1 ,!-' O"I 
f--10WI.ONOU10 
N O U1 O"I N O O 00 
W O O N N O .j:,,, U1 

w 
0 
.!'-' 
f--1 
N w 

00 
,-..J U1 
N f--1 
U1 0 
0 0 

f--1 
ON -..J 
O"I O"I O 
N f--1 ,00 

'.!:,. "i.o f--1 
f--1 f--1 .j:,,, 
N -..J U1 

-u 
OJ 

OQ 
IO 
O"I 

w 
0 
.!'-' 
f--1 
N w 

w ....., .j:,,, 
,O"I ,w ,oo 
W \.0 N 
U1 O"I N 
ON N 

f--1 
l/1 f--1 w 

....... O"I '° U1 0 0 
0 00 0 
.j:,,, U1 0 

f--1 
-..J r- 
f--1 
N w 

w f--1 .j:,,, 
,m I.D ,oo 
W I.D N 
U1 O"I N 
ON N 

U1 f--1 
f--1 O"I 
l/1 0 
0 00 
.j:,,, U1 

N ,!-' 
lJJ O"I O"I O N 00 
O"I ....... 0 
'.!:,. O"I '".....J 
.j:,,, \.0 U1 
\.0 .j:,,, l/1 

f--1 
-..J r- 
f--1 
N w 

w f--1 .j:,,, 
,O"I \.0 ,oo 
W I.D N 
l/1 O"I N 
ON N 

l/1 f--1 
....... ,O"I • 
U1 0 0 00 
.j:,,, U1 

Page 58 of 142



< 0 Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl -0 -0 -0 
)> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> � � � 
I I I I 

I I I-' I-' I-' I-' I I I I I I I I I I I I 

I-' I-' w N I-' 0 \.0 00 -...J m V1 .j:::,. w N I-' w N I-' 

< s: -i -i -i -i -i -i -0 -0 -0 (/l ;:,:, I OJ I (/l -0 
Cl) 0 0 0 0 0 oii" 0 0 0 Cl) 0 < Cl) oii' rt c 

OJ 0 
rt :E :E :E :E :E Cl) 

n 0 )> Cl) 0- 
Cl) n c=;· n n 0 -+, n :::, -, 
-, Q) ::, ::, ::, ::, ::, -, 

Cl) Cl) Cl) ::, n zr :E 3 c=;· 
Q) I ;:,:, 
::, ro I I I I I (/l (/l Vl a. ro c (/l Q) :E � 
Vl ::, Q) Q) Q) Q) Q) 0 rt rt rt Tl "O "O rt -c Q) c Q) Q) Q) 0 O'Q 

-, ...... 0 
n 0 ' Vl rt rt !:!. Q) -, Cl) 3 Cl) -, 
0 Q) I I 

Tl m OJ ro a· a· 0 0 n Q) Cl) -, ;,,;- 

3 3 ro Q) ::, �. ::, ::, ::, -, Cl) a. ...... "O Vl 

< -o Cl) -0 -, s: Q) Q) n Q) ::!! 3 Cl) m 0 3 )> !:!. -, ;,,;- m )> -0 a. O'Q -, Cl) Vl x < Q) < 
;:::;: n ::, Cl) -c OJ ::, ::, n Q) Cl) 

I r+ Cl) ::, Cl) 
O'Q ::, !:!. Cl) n -, ::, n OJ ...... Cl) � (/l rt 0 (/l 3 :::, 

Cl) =1 s: a. ::, -, I O'Q 

Cl) 
-0 

(/l O'Q 
O'Q Vl ::, ...... 0 3 ro Cl) ro Q.. zr ::, OJ -< Vl OJ ::, 

::, ...... n O'Q rt -0 3 ::, 3 ro 
::, � Q) 0 s: r a· � 0 ...... ro Vl 
rt 0 0 c -, Vl 

0 O'Q ::, Q) ::, ::, ::, ::, 

< ;:,:, -, Cl) ro ::, ...... rt n rt 
Cl) ;,,;- 3 Q) -, ;:,:, ;::;: Cl) 

(I) "O ;:,:, O'Q 0 ro -c ::, 
t+ ro Cl) ...... 
(I) Q) ::, "O 

Cl) "O n Cl) .... 3 Q) Q) Cl) 
DJ n rt 0 ::, -, 

3 Cl) -, ::, 
::I ::, a. Vl rt ,.,,- ro !:!. ::::, 

(/l Cl) 
::::, rt -, 

s: rt ::, c 
s: O'Q -, 

Cl) < "C Cl) 

3 DJ c 
n 

0 � zr CT 
.... ::::, "T1 sr ro n DJ n 

::I ro !:!. :E 
-I 0 .... ;::;: 0 
c DJ in' .... 
,.,, 3 

::,;- 
t+ Vl ,.,, 

v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. 

.i:,. I-' I-' I-' I-' 
V1 m 00 00 m .i:,. -...J w 0 V1 

N 0 p ,I..O ,-...J ..!"' 00 N 1./l 0 m 
0 0 1./l -...J m 1./l ':...i 0 0 0 00 

-0 0 0 V1 1./l 0 0 0 0 0 0 w 
Q) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I-' 

O'Q 
ro v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. <r» v,. v,. v,. 
-...J 

v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. 

I-' I-' I-' 
V1 1./l .i:,. .i:,. 0 1./l 

N 0 00 I-' I-' 00 ,-...J 0 0 m 
0 0 '".i:,. V1 0 0 ':...i N 0 0 00 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 w 
0 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 0 0 I-' 

v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. 

I-' I-' I-' 

v,. 1./l m .i:,. .j:::,. 0 1./l 
0 ,o I-' !--' N 00 ,-...J 1./l 0 m 

N 0 0 V1 ':...i 0 0 00 0 \.0 1./l 0 N 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 w 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I-' 
0 

v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. 

I-' I-' I-' 

v,. 1./l m .j:::,. 1./l 0 V1 
0 ,o I-' I-' ..!"' 00 ,-...J ,o p ,m 

N 0 0 0 '....J 0 \.0 1./l 1./l N 0 0 00 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 w 

0 0 0 0 I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I-' 
0 

v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. 

.... I-' .... 
v,. V1 m .i:,. 1./l 0 1./l 

0 0 ........ I-' N 00 ,-...J V1 0 m 
N 0 I.D 0 ll1 ':...i 0 0 00 0 1./l 0 N 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 w 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .... 
0 

v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. v,. -(/'). -(/'). 

.... I-' .... 
v,. 1./l m .i:,. m 0 1./l 

,o ,o I-' I-' N po -...J 0 0 m 
..!"' 0 \.0 1./l 0 0 V1 -...J ""N 0 0 00 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 w 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 I 0 0 I-' 
0 

.....----- 

"T1 -< Q I-' 
00 "C ........ 
I-' 
ID 

"T1 -< Q I-' 
ID "C ........ 
N 
0 

"T1 -< Q N 
0 "C ........ 
N 
I-' 

"T1 -< Q N 
I-' "C ........ 
N 
N 

"T1 -< Q N 
N "C ........ 
N w 

"T1 -< 
Q N 
"C w ........ 

N 
.i:,. 

'-- 

n 
"T1 

DJ 
iii' 'C 

;::;: n � � � 
N ::0 ::0 
0 -I (D (D ,.,, 
I-' 0 n (D 00 :E 0 .... ........ 3 < N ::I (I) 
0 c 3 "T1 .... (I) Cl) c ID 'C ::I ::I t+ DJ 0. 0. 0 � DJ ........ 
N 3 !::!'. Q 0 0 
N (I) ::I "C 
w ::I Ill ::0 ........ t+ (I) 
N 

,.,, ..c 0 c 
N (I) 
.i:,. Ill 

t+ ,.,, 

Page 59 of 142



� � � -0 ::0 ::0 ::0 ::0 ::0 -0 -0 'Tl 'Tl ' ' 
' 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 

w N ...... ...... CJ1 .i:,. w N ...... N ...... N ...... N ...... 

� < � s V') ::0 V') ' 0:, Q < -0 < :::, -0 
(1) "C (l) �- Q) ro (1) ., (1) (1) 

Q) V> 0 ...... 
Q) tr Q) V> :::, zr :::,- (1) 0.. 
...... ...... V> Q) ...... :::, 0.. Q) "C ...... 
(1) n· (1) ...... V> ., n Q) n· (1) 6.: ., (l) 

(JQ ., 6" V> ., ro ., (1) :::,- 0 0 :::,- ..... ro n (1) ...... 
s V') 

., 0 V') n (1) n ...... ., ., 
V> -0 (1) :::,- V> <" v, i:ii" c -0 Q) 3 tr ., :E 

Q) 
...... v, (l) 

"C Q) 0.. v, (l) Q) :::, 
:::, � "C :, 'Tl Q) Q) 

Q) m 
Q) ...... m 

::0 Q) -< e. ..... :, .0 vi" :, 
...... 0.. ' c ., 

(l) (1) ' (l) (1) 
:::,- 

"Q. � (1) OJ 0 "C Q) ., iti" 0 "C :, 
Q) (l) ' 3 Q) n 
n v, ' Q) Q) (l) ., (1) 
(l) 

Q) :, :, :, V> 3 
3 

:, ro· 0.. ...... 
0.. ., Q) (1) 

(1) ., I 0 
:, :::, 

:, 0 0 n 0.. ...... 
...... n :::,- v, 

:::,- :E "C 
(1) n Q) 

., :, 
0 d. 
;:+' :, 
'Tl cro 
ro· 'T1 

0.. 
., 

Q v, l'I) 

Q) 
::0 :l "'C 

"t> 
(1) c. ;:::.: 
n c: Q) 

Q) 
.., 

"t> ::0 :e (1) 
:l Q) 0 (1) t:T' ::io 

Q) :l r+ Ill .., II) 

...+ :i' o' n' n Q) Ill 

l'I) (1) 
c .., l'I) 

., (J'Q :l l'I) < ., 
< 

vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- 0 vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- 'Tl 
l'I) 

iii' 'T1 
n z c 
Q) :l 

w ...... N N ...... c. 
O'l CJ1 ...... 0 ...... ...... ""' N CJ1 O'l ""' ID ...... ...... N -t - ,.i:,. 0 .i:,. 0 0 y, O'l ID CJ1 w N ...... __....., ,o 0 0 0 0 Q 
0 b b b b 0 b b ),. ),. b ),. ...... N ),. ),. .... :E "t> 00 

-0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O'l O'l 0 0 CJ1 CJ1 0 0 - :l ::io 
Q) N 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 I O'l O'l 0 ""' ""' 0 0 0 N c (1) 

cro 
0 (1) .c 

(1) vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- .... "'C c 
00 

lO QI l'I) 
I Ill N � ...+ 
0 3 Ill 

w ...... N N ...... N Q) 

O'l CJ1 ...... 0 ...... ...... 00 N CJ1 ...... N ID ...... ...... w l'I) :l 
.i:,. ,o .i:,. 0 0 CJ1 $1' ID ...... w 00 CJ1 ,CJ1 ,o 0 0 - :l c. 
b b b b b b U) ),. u, ),. ),. ),. N ...+ 

0 0 ...... N 0 Ill ee 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CJ1 CJ1 0 0 N l'I) 

N 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ""' ""' 0 0 0 .i::,. n 
0 

vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- 3 
3 
(1) 
:l 

w ...... N N ...... c. 
Q) 

O'l CJ1 ...... 0 ...... 00 N CJ1 ...... N ID ...... ...... ...+ 
.i:,. p .i:,. 0 ,o ,ID ,ID __....., .i:,. ""' CJ1 y, 0 0 0 o' 
b 0 b b 0 0 0 N 1-.J b ),. ...... 1-.J ),. ),. :l 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O'l O'l 0 0 CJ1 CJ1 0 0 Ill 

N 0 N 0 0 0 0 I O'l O'l 0 ""' ""' 0 0 0 

vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- 

...... ...... N ...... 
CJ1 CJ1 ...... 0 ...... O'l N .i:,. w .i:,. ID ...... ...... 
0 ,o .i:,. 0 ,o ,.i:,. __....., y..> ,o 0 p 0 0 

b 0 b b 0 CJ1 0 CJ1 O'l ),. N ),. ),. 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ""' N CJ1 0 0 
0 0 N 0 0 0 0 0 00 00 0 0 0 

vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- 

vi- ...... ...... N ...... 
CJ1 CJ1 ...... 0 ...... O'l ...... CJ1 w .i:,. ID ...... ...... 
0 ,o .i:,. 0 p CJ1 .!"' N ,o 0 ,o 0 0 

b 0 b b 0 ),. ID u, O'l ),. N ),. ),. 
0 0 0 0 0 O'l O'l 0 ""' N CJ1 0 0 
0 0 N 0 0 O'l O'l 0 00 00 0 0 0 

vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- vi- 

vi- vi- vi- ...... ...... vi- N 
CJ1 CJ1 ...... 0 ...... ""' N CJ1 ...... .i:,. ID ...... ...... 
p 0 ,.i:,. 0 ,o CJ1 w .!"' w 0 p 0 0 

0 b 0 b 0 U) ),. CJ1 
p ),. N ),. ),. 

0 0 0 0 0 O'l O'l 0 O'l N CJ1 0 0 
0 0 N 0 0 O'l O'l 0 ""' 00 0 0 0 00 

Page 60 of 142



(./') (./') (./') (./') (./') 

-0 
n 
;,;- 
' c 

-0 
-I .... c n 
� 
-0 
0 
� 

(./') 

£! 
0 
)> 

.... a· 

'T1 
iii" 
n 
Q) ;!?. 
N 
0 .... 
00 .......... 
N 
0 .... 
U) 

Vl 
(D 

:E 
(D .... 

w ....., .i:,. 
,en ,l.D ,oo 
W l.D N Vl en N 
ON N 

w ....., .i:,. 
,en ,l.D ,oo 
W l.D N Vl en N 
ON N 

.... 
;:::;: -c 

w 
0 r- ....., 
N w 

N ....., Vl w ....., .i:,. .i:,. Vl ....., 
,-....i p P'1 co oo Vl t-> en 
1-->0WI.DNOVlO 
N O Vl en N O O 00 
W O O N N O .j:,, Vl 

w 
0 
!'-' ....., 
N w 

VI n :r 
0 
!2.. 
VI 

-{/)--{/)--{/)--{/)--{/)- -{J') 

N t-> w en en 
I-> N 00 
N N .j:,, Vl a oo a ....., 
1-->enVl O 
I.DOOP O 

!'-' t-> w en en 
I-> N 00 
.i:,. w ,Vl ,Vl a ".i::. Vl ....., 
en N .j:,, 0 
00 I-> -..J O 

....., 
N N -..J....., 
N en o en oo 
l.D ....., ,oo -..J ,-..J y, 

".i::.IDPONP 
I-> I-> .i:,. 0 Vl O 
N -..J Vl O O O -0 

Q) 
O'Q 
(!) 

l.D 

!'-' ....., 
w en en 
I-> N 00 t-> !'-' w 
00 00 ID 
.j:,, N N 
.i:,......, w 

,Vl ....., 
0 
0 

w 
0 r- ....., 
N w 

w ....., .i:,. 
en ,l.D ,oo 
W co N Vl en N 
ON N 

Vl 
....., 
0 
0 

-{/)--{/)--{/)--{/)--{/)- -{J') 

N t-> w en en 
I-> N 00 
,0 N N 
w ".i::. 'oo 
l.D N en 
.i:,. co Vl 

w....., .i:,. 
en ,l.D ,oo 
W co N Vl en N 
ON N 

Vl ....., 
t-> en 
Vl a 
0 00 
.i:,. Vl 

y, 
....., 
0 
0 

-{/)--{/)--{/)--{/)--{/)- -{J') 

N t-> w en en O N 00 
-..J ....., ,o 
ui en -....i 
.i:,. co Vl co .i:,. Vl 

w ....., .i:,. 
,en ,l.D oo 
w l.D 1'.> Vl en N 
ON N 

Page 61 of 142



Page 62 of 142



<o 
<, 
N 
00 
<, 
N 
0 
I-' 
'-l 

;fl / � ::::, 
0 ...., 
z 
(I) 
� 
3 ro ..., 
:;,.- m. 
' 
0 
""O 

N N ...... ...... __ ,.:�....Jr,. ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 
W N ...... ...... 0 <D CXl --i CJ) 01 .i,. W N ...... 0 <D CO --J CJ) 01 -!'> W N ...... 
:it: :it: :it: - ta (_ f :it: :it: � � :it: f � '.!:!: :it: l5 :!!] � :it: :it: :it: � :it: f :it: 
01 ...... ...... ,... 

0 ...... (;J ...... ...... 01 (;J ...... ...... ...... 
(1) Ill 

""Tl --i ...... s - ::r --i 01 CXl < .i,. 0) N ...... --i ...... 
""Tl ""Tl N .i,. 0 0 ""Tl ""Tl Ill ::::, CD ---l a: a: 0 

CD 
(_ ""Tl v, a: ""Tl ClJ iil $ $ ---l (_ ""Tl CD �- (_ (_ ""Tl ""Tl 0 0 ...., 
0 
�- 

,... = 0 0 c Ql Ql iil iil 0 CD 0 0 0 0 ..., ..., l:T! 0 co· ::r 0 n CD ..., o a. ::r co· cc ::r ::r ..... ..., a. a. ..c ::r ::::, cc t1) (D a. 
m: 0 ::r o o o ::::, co· 0 

� 
0 � ::::, ::::, a. a. ""Tl ""Tl = lb 

O" < A A A 'C ,... (/) ::r .... ..., ""Tl ::::, (/) � c c ""Tl ""Tl N (;J ,a· 0 =o <::!: (1) = (D Ql ...... a. ;o ro ro 0 3 3 0 0 I).) ...... .i,. .i,. 01 01 15 ::::, 5· '1 <;> ---l 01 iil 0 (/) (/) ::::, 5· ::::, ::::, (D (I) 8 (1) 

� 
("') � 01 0 'O � 'O � 01 01 0 0 v, ..., (/) (D 

(1) o 0 2 6 
(/) (/) 

(/) (I) =u -.. (D (I) 0 0 (1) n 'd Ill 0 ---l ""O ..... ..., t t 0 :cf ..... ::!. 0 $ $ :cf ..... 0 0 CD (I) ::, '1 - 'O ""O o ""O iil 1 1 0 0 ... -· 0 I)) ::::, A � -;--! -;--! 0 I)) 'd c CD .... m o' a· (I) c c ClJ r ::::, ::::, lb 
3 (D c n et u (D c 3 3 Ql 0 

� � 
::s er. = 'O 3 

(1) x A A 01 01 'O 3 Ql CD CD I=', 0 
'O p.. o c c 0 12.. 12.. o !:"!' 
=u � 12.. :,:, Ql 'O 'O ..... ---l -l (D 'O Ql Ql A a. -l -l <: = s· < iil iil 

..., -.. ::::, ""O ::::, ""O ::r (I) 0 0 e: 0 ""O t1) ro 3! 0 0 0 ..., ::::, ::::, 

::;J (/) ,... u u a. a. (D 

� 0 (1) 0 0 � 0 � � � � �� a. 
� :;i 

..., 
� (1) 

(/) .... ..... (/) (/) 'O 'O "' Ql (/) co CD (/) Ql Ql 0 0 
::::, Ql ....... !!! ;, ;, :cf :cf a. ::::, .... "!'l - 
CD a. '° i:: ;:i:.. ..., � = N N N N ...... N N ...... N N N N N N N N N n >< N N N N .c Q. 0 0 0 0 0 0 <D 0 0 <D 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 �- (1) ...... 0 ...... ...... ...... ...... <D ...... ...... <D 0 ...... 0 ...... 0 ...... 0 ...... 0 0 ...... Ill ""O 

--i .i,. ...... CJ) 01 01 (;J 0 (;J <D 01 N CXl 01 01 (;J CJ) CJ) CXl .i,. 01 '1 c (1) 

- p.. Q: 
a· 

-fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -YI -YI -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) -fF) 

� 
(;J ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... (') 0 

s:: (;J 01 CXl N co N (;J .i,. .i,. .i,. CJ) .i,. .i,. .i,. .i,. .i,. <D <D --i --i (;J (;J 0 � 0 01 CXl _-!'> 0 _-!'> 0 _o 0 0 0 CJ) CJ) (J) (J) (J) 5" 01 01 01 01 01 Vl ::,:, (/) 

� 
(J) Cl 0 0 0 0 Cl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Cl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 rt t[ --i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CD --i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Ill - n 
s:: (1) 

0 'ti N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N s 
Q. '"I 0 0 0 0 0 0 � 0 0 � 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) 

0 ...... ...... N w N (,,.) N N ...... N N ...... ...... N ...... ...... ...... ...... N >< ::; t1) 'O -..J 
� � 

...... � � 
0, 0 (,,.) <D -..J .j>. 

� 
0) 0) w :.:::! � � � 

0, Cl> - N N N N N N N N N N N N 0 N N N N I)) 

(/) � � 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 � � 0 � 0 0 0 0 "'1 

t1) N w N � ...... N N N ...... N N N ...... ...... ...... N 
Q. co -..J .j>. N <D 0) ...... .j>. 0 co 0, ...... -..J -..J .j>. co .j>. <D (J) (J) 

"!'l - 
i:: 

(,,.) ...... � = w ...... co 0, ...... N .j>. (J) (,,.) (;J 

Q. _-..J _w N _o _w ...... --" N ...... 0 _<D _-..J <D .:'"" _.i,.. co 0 <D CXl ;' .... N � C> N � (,) -N N � O> --!'> = ' 0, 0) (D (,,.) 0 co -..J (,,.) (,,.) I)) 

(1Q <D 0 ...... .j>. -..J 0 co .j>. 0 N -..J N -..J 0) ...... ...... 0, 0, 0 --i (1Q >-3 co 0, (,,.) 0, (,,.) 0 (,,.) 0, 0 (,,.) co -..J (J) w .j>. .j>. 0) 0 ...... (J) (1) :a 
(I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} YI (I} (I} (I} (I} 

::;J lb 
0 

...... .... -. 
0, ...... --" ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... co t!".I 

::,:, _m (,,.) _-..J N .j>. .!') --" <D _.i,.. .j>. co .!') .!') .!') .!') N <D <D -..J -..J (,,.) (,,.) ....... .0 
(1) co O> (,,.) -0 -0 0 O> (,) 0 C> -0 ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 01 -0, 01 01 01 01 .... c: 
'd (,,.) 0) (,,.) 0 0 0 (J) (,,.) 0 0 0 (J) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 '° ...... 
I)) ...... -..J .j>. 0 0 0 -..J .j>. 0 0 0 0) 0) 0) (J) 0) 0 0 0 0 q 0 'C =:;· 'ti 8 ....... '"I (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} 

:.': t1) ::;J lb 
-fF) -fF) -fF) < = (J) --i 01 s· ..... !:"!' 
� ---i 0 ...... .... ...... ... i:: 0, ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... '° 0 0 (1) (/) (J) (,,.) -..J _N _.i,.. _N --" <D _.i,.. _.i,.. co _N _N .!') .!') .!') 50 _<D _-..J --.J _w y) ....... 
00 0 = -< ():, O> (,) 0 0 0 O> (,,.) 0 0 0 ...... ...... --" ...... ...... 0, 0, 0, 01 0, 0, N 

I)) (,,.) (J) w 0 0 0 (J) (,,.) 0 0 0 (J) 0) (J) 0) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

= CD ...... -..J .j>. 0 0 0 -..J .j>. 0 0 0 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
n Ill ,__ 
(1) '"I 
n (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} YI (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} 

0 ::;J Vl ... ...... N 
0, ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 0 
(J) (,,.) -..J -"' _.i,.. _N ...... _<D .j>. _.i,.. _co N N N N .!') _<D (D _-..J -..J (,,.) _w ....... 
():, O> (,) 0 0 0 O> (,,.) C> 0 0 ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 0, 01 0, 01 01 0, N 
(,,.) (J) (,,.) 0 0 0 0) (,,.) 0 0 0 0) 0) (J) (J) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 .... < ...... -..J .j>. 0 0 0 -..J .j>. 0 0 0 0) (J) (J) 0) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CD ::r 
(I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} a· 

l'rj ro 
t!".I >< (/) 

Ill ...... N 
-.. 

l"'t 0, --" ...... --" ...... ...... ...... --" m ...... 0) (,,.) -..J N .j>. _N ...... <D .j>. _.i,.. _co .!') N N N .!') -'° _<D _-..J _-..J _w _w ..... .a 
8 ():, O> (,) C> C> 0 O> (,) C> 0 0 ...... ...... ...... ...... --" 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, .:::; !::. 
I).) (,,.) (J) (,,.) 0 0 0 (J) (,,.) 0 0 0 0) (J) (J) (J) (J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 N 'O 
l"'t 

...... -..J .j>. 0 0 0 -..J .j>. 0 0 0 0) (J) 0) 0) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 
lb (I) 
p.. (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} YI (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} � 
0 ' 

l'rj 
...... ...... ,I >< 
Ill 
'C 0, 

-"' 
--" ...... ...... --" ...... ...... ...... N 

0) (,,.) -..J N _.i,.. _N ...... _.i,.. _.i,.. co N .!') _N .!') .!') _<D _<D -..J _-..J (,,.) _w N 
0 -co O> (,) C> 0 0 O> w 0 0 0 ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 0, 0, 01 0, 01 0, .:::; 
Ill � 0) w 0 0 0 0) w 0 0 0 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 c.,, 
I).) -..J .j>. 0 0 0 -..J .j>. 0 0 0 0) 0) 0) 0) (J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 
C' - lb (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} YI (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} (I} 

...... < l'rj 

_co _o _co I).) ...... >< 
0 0 0 - 0, ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... N 
0 0 0 c: 0) (,,.) -..J _N _.i,.. _N ...... <D .j>. _.i,. co _N N .!') .!') N _<D (D _--.J _-..J y) _w c.,, 
0 0 !'.=' lb ():, O> (,) 0 0 0 O> (,) C> 0 0 ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 0, 01 0, 0, 0, 0, .:::; 
0 0 0 � 0) (,,.) 0 0 0 0) (,,.) 0 0 0 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 .i:,.. 

0 0 0 -..J .j>. 0 0 0 -..J .j>. 0 0 0 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Page 63 of 142



� 
0 --, 
A° 
Vl 

-0 c rr 
n 

--, 

z 
CT) 

� 

Q) 

Q) � 

� 
Q) 

-< ::::i 
Q) 

()Q 
(l) 

3 
(l) 
::::i 
.-+ 

' Tl 
0 ...... 
0.. 
o:l 
::::i 
Q) 

OQ 
CT) 

Q) 

0 
::::i 

()Q 

z 
CT) 

� 
:,::, 
0 
Q) 
0.. 
Q) 
::::i 
0.. 
n --, 
CT) 
Q) 
..-+ 
CT) 

Q) 

::::i 
(l) 

� 

I-' 
0 _o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 _o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 _o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 
,o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 
,o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ,o 
0 '0 
0 

O tI1 g. ;:'. 
CT) CT) ., ., 

., 
vi" 
CT) 

'Tl 
i:; 
� 
p.. 

I-' 
0 _o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 _o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ,o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ,o 
0 
0 
0 

) 
I 

-0 

� 
I 
N 

\,!) - N 
00 - N 
0 
I-' 
-....J 

Page 64 of 142



:,:, 
0 
OJ 
Q. 

� 
OJ 

rT 
::::, 
(D 

"' x· 
-< 
(D 
OJ ., ., 
0 
OJ 
Q. 

-a 
ii, 
::i 
rT zr 
OJ 
rT 
rT ::::, 
(D 
rT 
0 
� 
::i 
::::, t:) 
� � 

(!) 

rT 
::::, 
(D 

� 
::i 
rT 
(D ., 

-< 
(D 
OJ ., 
"' ::i 
0 
:E 

c 
z 
I 
-l 
N 
OJ 
::i 
Q. 

Vl 
-+ ., 
OJ 

� ., 
Q. 

:,:, 
(D 

O'Q 
5· 
::i 
OJ 

-0 
ii, 
::i 
::i 
::i 

O'Q 
n 
0 
3 
3 
iii" �- 
0 
::i 

....., 
v, 
y, 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
v, 
0 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
+" v, 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
0) 
0 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
w y, 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
+" 
0 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
+" 
0 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
v, 
v, 
0 
0 
0 

...., 
0 
[ 

....., 
v, 
? 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
w v, 
0 
0 
0 

n 
0 
8 
8 
Cl) 

= n 
Cl) 

"rl 
� 

-0 

� 
I w 

\D - N 
00 - N 
0 ....., 
--.J 

Page 65 of 142



Page 66 of 142



Page 67 of 142



• I 

c 
-0 
O'Q 

t:1 al 
� Cl. 
(I) � 

() 
(D 
:::J 
rt 
(D 
""1 

Vl 
(D 
:::J a· 
...... 

(1) g 
n 
0 "'Tl 
Ul OJ 
:!' �. 

a-: 
-{/). (D 

(/l 

I..D 
........... 
0) 
<, 
N 
0 
I-' 
-..J 

g' :I'> 
Vl 
(D s:· 

.Cl. (/l 
O rt 
:::J ::, 
::u � 
Vl s 
$'. (D 

(D O 
OJ ....,., 
:::J zn 
Vl '"1 
OJ s 
:::J � 
Cl. ::, 
:::J 0... 
:; � 
0 -· c n 
Vl (D 
(D O 
(D ....,., 
Vl ..0 
!:!'. i:: 
� g 
!:!'. � 
:::J '"1 

O'Q (I) 
n 
(I) 

'<:' 
(I) 
p, 

'Tl -<: 
N 
>-!. 
<, 
N 
N 

'Tl -<: 
N 
w 

........... 
N 
,i:. 

'Tl -<: 
N 
N 
<, 
N w 

'Tl -<: 
N c 

........... 
N 
>-!. 

N 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

.....,. 
w 
):, 
(./1 
0 

r- 
(./1 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

� 
0 
ft - 

.....,. 
w 
):, 
v, 
0 

.!" 
v, 
0 
0 

-I 
0 
� 
:::J 
0 ...... 
z 
(D 

:E 
3 
OJ 
""1 
;:,:: 
(D 
rt 

"'Tl 
)> 
I .....,. 

Page 68 of 142



"Tl 
Q} 
Q, 
;::;.: 
iii' 
v, 

;::;.: -c 
n ro 
:::l ...... 
ro ...... 

"O 
iii'� v, v, 
c ro ro o, 
v, 

;::;.: 
v, 

:::r -< w rn 
:::. Q} 
:::, � 

O'Q O 
O Cl. 

"O Q} 

� :::l 
Q} Cl. 
�. :::r O Q} 
:::l v, 
Q} 

...... 
0 

O'Q 
ro ...... 
Q} 

� 
N w 
<, 
N 
� 

� 
N 
N 
<, 
N w 

� 
N 
>- ......... 
N 
N 

u, 
0 
0 

u, 
0 
0 

� 
N 
0 
<, 
N 
>-- 

� 
>- 
\l:) 

......... 
N 
0 

CJ1 
0 
0 

CJ1 
0 
0 

N 
-;51--4----lf--+---4�+-to-+�+--+� 
N p, 

§ 
o 
0 

-; 
0 
� :::, 
0 ..... 
z 
ro 
� 
3 
Q} .., 
;,; 
ro ...... 
' n 

-0 

"Tl 
)> 
' N 

Page 69 of 142



\.() - N 0 0 trl c:;-'l co n c:;-'l -I V') � vi" -I 
....... w n -I 0 N ::u r-> 

-...J 0 rt ::s '"""1 0 Ill (1) (1) ::r ...... QJ ::r '"""1 (1) - § :::,' rt Ill ::s ::s 'r> (1) .. ::r z ...... s:: (1) ::r: "O c:;-'l 
N (1) ::s ..... ...... vi" :J (1) C/l �- 0 (1) 0.. 

....... (1) QJ 0 n 0 QJ (1) 
0 ""'! rt a: rt � '"""1 rt C/l '"""1 rt "O n � :J s:: � ::s 
I-' C/) � � )> s:: g Q'Q 

n 
-...J (1) QJ ::s 0 ...... (1) (1) (1) 

::s '"""1 :::,;:, 3 :J 0 ...... :::;' C/l ...... '"""1 § '"""1 
() vi" 'Tj >-"".3 s ...... ...... 0. (1) I-' � 
(1) (1) (1) c 0 (1) n (1) 0 Ill QJ :J 0 ,.P. 

C/l �- 0 n :J � 3 rt 
>Tj ::s rt (1) 0 ..... '"""1 0 '"d 

'Tj (1) a n ...... (1) QJ ...... g. '"""1 ',:J 
� c � 0.. .EU "O 0 :J ...... � 'd Q'Q 0 0 0 VJ 

::s 0 ...... 0. 0 ii> 0 vi' 0 � .., 
(1) (/) ',:J 0 Ill ro 0 

0.. -0 ...... ::n �: ....., VI er 
0 

.., 
0 QJ ...... C/l n ..... (1) .0 

�- 'Tj 0 !:!. '"""1 0 g. (1) 0 ::r (1) 
c � ...... 8 vi' QJ ,a s:: ..... 0 :J 8 n 
::s .., (1) OJ w (1) 

..... VI QJ rt 
-I ,:J zr n 

0.. n n Ill en (1) VI 0 
(1) ...... (1) 

>-"".3 CP (1) rt :J ::s ::s ::s ro r+ ::s (1) p. 
0 Ul _o. "Tl -< (1) QJ C/) 0.. it' 

....... 
'Tj QJ 0.. rt :J rt er C!. (1) (1) ...... 
� ::::;: rt r+ C/) ::::;: 

$': ...... QJ 0.. (1) (1) (1) 
;:1 ::b ...... (1) (1) rt c rt 

rn ro VI 8 ...... 0. 0 '"""1 o. 0.. '"""1 o· rt g. (I) 0 0 0 ...... 
Ul 0. 0: (1) ·-...J :-"' 0 a· ::s $. ro (1) 0 ·-...J 

$': -I -0 
0 QJ >-:l 'd � rn I-' c (1) 

"' 0 '"""1 � ,.P. � 3 � 0 ...... 
0 0 "O :J <: 0 
rt 0 0 VI ::s (1) 0 (1) 8 C/l 0 ...... 0 0 C/l ...... 

QJ 3 ...... (1) � z to ""'! VI (1) -c z '"""1 
(1) .0 rt (1) $. ;:::;: e.. ·-...J "O (t) 
n s:: (1) ::r -0 

§ (1) QJ QJ Q) 

� 
n QJ � �- ...... rt ...... ,ro $': G) 

(1) n (1) ...... ;::i.. s () (1) ::r QJ "d ::u (1) iii' (1) p... it' � VI Ill '"""1 N Q'Q � 
(1) QJ ""'! 0 .p. 
rt 0 er � 0.. $': ::u ""C 

-(/} 0 
...... 0 ro c N QJ 0 @ »: r+ .p. 0 ...... ::r < •-...J n ::1. ...... 

rt (1) o. G) (1) ...... 
zr QJ VI ::u 

VI rt $. QJ (1) o (1) ::r s:: er (1) � Q'Q "O � � w 
,o (1) 

0 (1) QJ 
""C -e (1) n 

� 0 :J � )> (1) 0 ..... 
0 ;:;· r 3 -· ...... 

0 
n N � N 0 0 (1) (t) 

rt .p. z 0 (1) � - � VI 3 VI QJ :J ,w .0 -0 ...... rt rt ...... � 
N s:: "O QJ 0 (1) � s I-' Ill ro n 0 0 

"Tl I.O ...... rt (1) ;--t, -0 ('.) -e 
)> (1) ro � i.c .., 
I ...... 0. w -(/} -(/} (1) G) = 0 

'Tj (1) co QJ ('.) -< 
I-' I-' >-<: rt - en ...... rll ('.) 
-...J -...J ,-..,. <, QJ ...... s !'-' r- 00 N Q'Q 

0 0 0 (1) � ('.) 

0 0 ,-..,. I-' 0 = 0 0 \.0 -...J ""C ...... e � 
-(/} -(/} 'Tj -0 .., 

>-<: �- 0 
,'-I -...J 

,-..,. 0 <rCi \.0 ...... .., 
N N ;:;: 
0 0 N � 
0 0 0 s 
-(/} -(/} 'Tj 

,-.. 
>-<: (j 

.:--i ,'-I 
N � 
0 z � 

N N 0 -- 0 0 N (1) 

0 0 ,-..,. -0 
QJ 

-(/} -(/} '"'O ;::i.. 
'Tj 

""'! 3 
>-<: 

0 (1) 

N 
(1) :J 

,-..,. () r: 
,'-I _-...J 

.-+ 

N N N 0 
- ( 0 0 N 

0 
C/l 

0 0 IT 

>-3 -(/} -(/} 'Tj -(/} 

0 >-<: :s ,'-I -...J N 
::::1 N 
0 N N "Tl ....., 0 0 N Ill 
z 0 0 w (") 

(I) :s -(/} -(/} 'Tj �: 
s >-<: I-' (1) 

Ill N -...J C/l 

""'I _-...i ,'-I w N 
::,.- b 
(I) N N 
rt 0 0 N 0 

0 0 � 0 
c, 
;:; 

Page 70 of 142



I 
I 

n 
0 
3 
(l) �- 
0 
::I 
0 � ..... -: 

t:1 )h> 0 
Ill 8 
� ::::, a. 

N 
.o 
..N 
0 
0 
0 

., 
0 
0 
3 
,V> 

0 n 
7'" 
(l) ., ., 
0 
0 
3 
V> 
[l) 

::I a. 
m 
3 
(l) ., 

Q'Q 
(l) 
::::, 
n -c 
0 
"Cl 
(l) ., 
Q) 
rt 5· 
::I 
n 
(1) 
::I ..... 
(l) ., 

w 

"'1 
(1) 
'd 
ii> 
n 
(l) s 
(l) 

� 

Q) 
n 
7'" 
0 ..... 
V> 
"Cl 
Q) 
n 
(1) 

Q) 
::I a. ..... 
[l) 

!:?. 
a-: 
(1) 

� 

c 
0 
rt 
(1) 
CJ) 

"'1 
(1) 
n 
(1) 

<i' 
(1) p.. 

� 
N 
w 
<, 
N 

*'" 

'T1 
� 
N .... 
<, 
N 
N 

� 
N 
N 

.......... 
N 
w 

.j:> 
� ...... 
0 
0 

.j:> 
00 

......... 
0 
0 

.j:> 
,oo 
...... 
0 
0 

.j:> 
,oo 
...... 
0 
0 

.j:> 
00 

......... 
0 
0 

+'> 
00 

......... 
0 
0 

.j:> 
00 

......... 
0 
0 

+'> 
00 

......... 
0 
0 

.j:> 
00 

......... 
0 
0 

.j:> 
00 

......... 
0 
0 

+'> ,oo 
...... 
0 
0 

/ 
' 

"TI 
)> 
I 

+'> 

� 
0 

§ 
0 ....... 
z 

� 
Ill 

* (1) 
rt 

Page 71 of 142



w -, 
rt> w 

w -, 
Q_ 
1/) 

Ci 
w � 
::I 

N �-· ;!, w -< 
(1) 

,-<" ,V> � (/) 

-0 z rt w :::! < 0 
(/) (1) _:--,] 3 w 

;'.:!' .., (1) 
0 (1) ::I 
:$ 'd rt 

Al -, 
:$ rt> n -0 w (1) 

w (/) s n g. (1) rt> :::s 3 rt> rt 
rt> :::s ....... 

rt ::I rt> rt> ..... (1) s p.. 
'O ·-..) ., 

rt> 
:5 . 
0 s:: 
(/) 

'< s 
rt> 
rt 
•-.J 

::I .i,.. 

' :::, 
r' 0 c;;;· c: 

1/) rt 
(1) :::s 
(1) w 
1/) s �- 
3 (1) 

0 w ......, ..... 
::ii (1) 

c: ., 
�- s 
::I g; on 
:::u c, 
Vl 'd s: :::::!. 
(1) n 
w (1) 
::I 0 1/) ......, 

..0 s:: 
0 
rt 
(1) 
(/) ., 
(1) 
n 
(1) 

<:" 
(1) 
p, 

� 
N 
....... 
<, 
N 
N 

� 
N 
N ......._ 
N 
w N 

0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

V). '°!1 
� 
N 
w ......._ N N 

0 � 0 

N 
0 
0 

w 
p 
00 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 - � 

0 
� 
::I 

N 0 0 -+, 
0 z 

(1) 

� 
3 w -, 
;;,;- 
(1) ..... 
Q 
"O 

V). 

w 
p 
00 
0 
0 

V). 

-n 
)> 

I u, 
N 
0 
0 

V). 

<..D 

n c, - trJ c, co 00 

� 0 w (1) - ri :::s ., 
'd :::s 

N 
0 ;'.:!' 'rt w :::s ;::;: (1) 

0 

� 
(1) (1) :::s c, ., ""O 

., rt (/) e:. 
p ., 

(/) � .., -..J 
'O 

.9. 
., 

:;Cl 'Tl ro c;;;· 
(1) s:: (0 ::i (1) (/) :::s n (1) rt 

n 'Tl 
'.;;! o, 

'Tj 
ro s:: '°!1 :::s (1) � � c, 

'Tl :::i s:: c, 
:::s (/) 
c, 

p 
00 

tJj - p 
p) <..D 

§ 
o o 

&') 

Page 72 of 142



"Cl ., 
�. 
(D 
() 
rt 
n 0 "Tl 
Ul (l) 

r1 Q. 
;:;: 

� �· 
r' 
Ul 
N 
0 
0 

Ill c 
< 
(l) 

OJ 
:::, 
n 
(l) 

(l) 
n 
rt 
t:) 
(l) 
(/) 
n 3 .., 

(l) ,e· 
w ct. 
Ill O 
� :::l 
(l) •-..J 
Vl 
(l) 
:::, 
Cl. 

w 

.., 
(l) 

"d ;;;-- 
n 
(1) 

8 
(l) 
:::l 
rt 

z 
... o .,_..... .,__. 
(l) ....... (/) 

0. z g. 
0. 0 (/) ...... 
;:;: .>-3 a· - Ol :::, ::r 
Vl O s � 
(l) � 

x Ill ;;;· (/) �. 
:::, 

(JQ 

� 
N 
N 

......... 
N 
w 

� 
N .... ......... 
N 
N 

_N 
lJ1 
0 
0 

_N 
v, 
0 
0 

_N 
v, 
0 
0 

_N 
v, 
0 
0 

/ "' 1n 
0 
0 

_N 
v, 
0 
0 

_N 
u, 
0 
0 

_N 
v, 
0 
0 

,N 
u, 
0 
0 

"' u, 
0 
0 

-l 
0 
� 
:::, 
0 
-h 

z 
(l) s 
3 
OJ ..... 
7' 
(l) 
.-+ 

Q 
'"O 

-n 
)> 
I en 

co - "' -..J 
<, 

"' 0 .... 
-..J 

Page 73 of 142



co 
'' <, 

tl:l n 4l :J 
N 

0 trJ 4l 
I Sll (1) 
::r 

-...J 
ri rt ::, '"1 0 

'E. ::, 
0 - :::,- rt Sll ::, N 0 (1) ::, c, rt (1) 

'"C1 c 
0 s (1) 

'"1 rt � '"1 
(/) 

'"1 u, u, e. .., 
(1) 

..... 
'O -...J s '"1 :;,::J 'TJ �- o vi" (1) ro DJ 

('!) 

i:: - = (1) u, ::, () n (1) 
rt c 

n 'TJ '"1 p.. 
'Tl 

('!) i:: <: DJ 'T1 ::, (1) s:: c!. � c, 
'"I1 ::i 0 i:: 0.. :J - ::, (/) !" o, .. 

N 
0 

tel 
<, 
N e. ..... 

� o 
(I) 

1-- 1-- 

� 

\.0 ......... 
'-] ......... 
N 

� � 
0 = '-] 

' > i-3 
'"d - '"1 00 c3· � '"1 

� �- 
:;ct 

" t:::1 -� ro 
'd a:: Sll 
� 

� 
z 8 > ro 

::i ·" rt � :::: '"C1 .., � �. z ro � () 
rt �� n 
0 Tl 

DJ (/) Q. rt 
1-- �: 
-bl} (1) 

(/) 

*"" w 
N 
0 
0 

n V> -l � w ' ,o 
0 -< :::,- -a. :J (/) ro 

z i rt 4l ro u, ro -a 
,o - ...... 0 (1) 3 0 (1) (/) 

'"C1 
� (/) 

DJ '"1 ., ::, g. 
:J rt c!. � < n -· ro .., 0 z :::,- 0 Sll n '"1 �. 

:J 0. ro 8 
0 ..... 

� c!. e. 
V> 

(/) O'Q 

0 :J (/) ro 
-< ,'."--3 

....... (1) ro rt rt '"d :::1: (j 

(/) Sll 
:::!; '"1 :J ., 

DJ 
rt 

rt :::,-' '"1 0 c!. '"1 ro 
(1) 

0 3 �. � 3 0 ro !J. 'O 0 0.. ....... � 'O 
(1) (1) (1) :J :J ro (:!. � DJ O'Q n to 

(1) 

� :J '"1 V> a. rt� ro 
x n n Sll c rt 0 
vi" Sll (1) -< c. ...... ::r 

(1) 0 .. c!. (/) 3 ::, (1) (1) 
(/) (1) :J g. OQ !" (1) u, (1) 

:J n 
O'Q 

::, n :J 0 '"1 
(1) rt 0 �- rt '5" ::, :=;: (/) ...... n -0 rt 0 ::t. 
(1) ro (/) c 0 
(1) 

:J ., 0 p... 3 rt 3 ., ::, n 
·-.} 0 (1) 

•-.} ro 
'O g. ro :J '"1 

:J rt 0 
(1) 

(1) rt -< ro :5 . 
DJ ::r G) -a >--'3 (/) ., 

DJ 
0 

0 
:E DJ (1) ., i:: 

� 
< O'Q rt 

(/) 

(1) (1) 

� 3 - '< - DJ (1) 0 DJ :J DJ :J 3 ....... V> ro :::!... rt (1) z ro :J (1) m (/) 

rt 
ro :J (1) :J 

·-.} 

� ro ., 
(1) ., O'Q ...... 3 O'Q -c O'Q -c 

3 -c Sll 

� 
'"1 

DJ ;;,;-- 
:J I-- DJ ro 
DJ :J 

rt 
•-.} 

O'Q DJ (1) O'Q 
3 0 (1) 
(1) Sll 3 
:J rt (1) rt ro :J 

rt 

0 � >--'3 
(1) ::r V> r- .... cm· (I) ..... .... :J (/) 

rt (I) 
:J ::, ll,l (1) 

Sll 't:l (1) 

3 a. 0 
(/) (1) (I) 
rt 0 (I) 
0 .... ....... C' rr ::n - (1) '"1 ('!) 
n 3 .... 

rt 0 ('!) 3 Sll a ::, 
"9.. c, 

8' (1) 'O rt 
::::!. '"1 (1) 

a. n ('!) 
(1) = m 0 ('!) 

V> ....... '"1 c!. .g � 3 
DJ 0 n 
rt rt 0 (1) (1) = (/) (/) q n '"1 c (1) ll,l ...... n n ...... (1) o. (1) <i" :J = rt (1) (TQ -< p.. 

I 

er 
DJ 
V> 
(1) 
a. 
0 

'T1 :J -< -· :J � 
co - � 

I '° 
'T1 -< - � 
'° ......... 
N 
0 

'T1 -< 
N 
0 ......... 
N 
� 

'T1 -< 
N 
� ......... 
N 
N 

I.J1 
0 
0 

I.J1 
0 
0 

I.J1 
0 
0 

� w 

"' 0 
0 

I 

1-1 
0 

N rt a .j::,. 
w 

UN 
....... 
\0 

V). V). 

I 

V). 

� w 
N 
0 
0 

V). 

�- ,. 

I.J1 
0 
0 

� 
{;A- 

-l (Jl 0 
0 :E 0 :J 

0 
{;A- 

-,., 
z ro 
:E 
3 

(Jl DJ 
0 ., 
0 A° 

(1) 
rt 

Q 
-0 

Page 74 of 142



=! 
OQ 
ro 

OJ 
"'Cl ...... 

ii> OJ 
Vl :J 

!:!. 
:J 

OQ 

N ..... 
tn 
0 
0 

G) ...... 
...., I 
ro o 

OQ c s Xl 
rn ...... x ro 
..... "O 
ro OJ �- () o ro ...... 3 
3 ID 

"O � a �Vl 

3 � 
ro -· :J :J ..... °' Cl) 0 

0 ...... 

w - (/) 

E} 
rn· 
PJ 
'"1 
ro 
'O 
iu n ro s E} ro 

ro ;; 
:::1 ;:::;: 
ro ro �s 
'O ·-..J 
'"1 ro 
:5. 
0 � 
(/) q 
a ro 
r+ 
·-..J 

z 
9 ::::;:: OJ 
Vl z Vl 0 ro ..... �,-..J 

"O ::r ...... 
0 0 ..... 

� ID 
n 

� !:!. 
0 ll} 
:J (/) 

'Tl 
><! 
N 
N 
<, 
N w 

--! 
0 
� 
:J 

'{/)- 
0 

-Ell- 
....., 
z 
ID 

l.n 
� 

U1 
u, 3 

U1 
0 

OJ 
0 

0 
...... 

0 ;,::- 
ro ..... 
Q 
"'Cl 

'{/)- '{/)- 

N N .... .... u, u, 
0 0 
0 0 

"Tl 

'{/)- 
)> 

'{/)- I 
00 

lD 

(;") - trl (;") to n 
N 

0 
PJ ro 

-.J 
' r:, r+ :::1 '"1 0 'E. :::1 ' PJ :::1 - 0 ::r' r+ 

:::1 ro 
N 

ro ro p.. r+ '"1 '"CJ 
0 8 '"1 '"1 r+ Cl) � � .., 'O Cl) 
.... 

8 -2. 
-.J 

'"1 
:::c:i 'Tl ct) rn· ro ,::: (1) = ro Cl) 

:::1 () ro rt 
("') 'Tl 

� 0.. 
'T1 

ct) ,::: 
'Tl :::1 ro s:: � 0.. 

'Tl ::::J � 0.. :::1 (/} c, 

Page 75 of 142



co 
<, 
N 
-...J - n 0 tr1 (;'") to ("} C') :!'> )> N co z w .. !'-J i:.:,- � I-' 
0 0 g. ::J ., 0 ru (1) ru V> c (1) 

I-' 8 rt ru ::J "d ::J V> ,o V> -0 
(1) (1) ::J (1) r- ,_. ,_. (1) 0 ::r: 0.. C') 

-...J p_. ;:::;: (1) {/) ru 
8 ., ., rt -e 0.. vi" -, ......, ..... (/) 

V> e. ., ., 0 -, (1) >-o "d U'l e. .., 
0 rt 

(1) z g -0 � 
::::! V> ::J & C1) ., 2. -0 -, (1Q .., 

vi" � ::::! ::J ru 0 0 0 .-+ (1) 0 = (1) 'Tl (I) ru ,>-3 U'l r+ � § ::::! 0 ., 3 '-• 
n (1) U'l s:: () 

::0 s -, ru (1) (1) Q. V> e. (I) 
Cl) (/) V> 

� 'Tl (1) ::J rt .-+ ::r ., n ., c -0 '"C1 () 

'Tl s:: ., p_. � (1) 0 0 (1) 
.-+ ru rt 

< 'Tj a· 0 ..... 0.. ., Cl) 

� ::J (1) i:::: (1) 0 (1) � -o "d ::r ::::! -9. 0. � 
c, ......, iu ::::! vi' ::::! ;:::;: :::::s ru x � 

(1) ()Q (1) 'Tl 0. ::::! ::n vi' n ., ()Q n td ro s:: V> ., 
!:::!'. ru (1) ru (1) O" ru rt� 

::J Ul s rt ii -, 
ru ::::! U'l s 5· ;:;· ::::! t:) c, ::::! ()Q rt 0.. 
0.. ru ::r (1) OQ (1) ;,;- (1) 

I-' ::J V> (1) ::J ::J ru -, U'l 
o, .-+ rt n p_. (1) n 

00 ::::! -, ::J 0 ::::! -0 ., 
' c ..... 2 <, "d rt U'l 0.. 0 -5· -i 

I-' c:o zr n (1) (1) rt 
co ru 0 ::::!. .-+ (1) a U'l ., V> ::::! a. 0 

c c, .-+ s c n rt (1) 0 !:::!'. 0 G) ru V> (1) -, ·-..J 0 ::::! 
::::! (1) "d ..... ::::! ::::! ::J -, 
n (1) 0 ., rt s (1) ()Q ·-..J (1) I 
(1) (1) ......, (1) ::r "d � 0 

()Q ru 
V> ..0 s (1) ., ...., 
!:::!'. 0 � 

-(/} 3 s:: 0 >-3 0 -, O" c:o 0 s:: 0 < ;,;- -, ru -, 
w rt U'l � (1) ;:;· ::!. ;:;· 
!:::!'. (1) '< 

n ;,;- (1) '.Z U'l ::J U'l ;,;- 
::::! (1) (1) 

� V> 

'"'1 ()Q 
., s 0 I ru go ('t) 
(1) ::::! 0 � 0 n (1) 

....., -, (/) 

rt (1) rt z n ::::! ;,;- r+ 8 a N ..... ·-..J (1) ,ro ()Q .-+ 0 
.i,. < § zr ::::! � ,w (1) "d (1) 

p.. ..... ., 
N 

., 0 ::0 
I-' ru 0 c (1) � 
io ., p_. ()Q -0 ('t) 

:;,;-" s:: -::,- 0 ...... 
(1) n 0 (j 

-(/} -(/} rt a. c ::::i 
'Tl ·-.J j_ r+ rt � -<: rt ::i' � 

� -::,- t:) ()Q 
., � 

0) 0) 1-1- (1) ru w 0 -· !" !" co rt ::::i -· ...... 
'- (1) ('t) � 

V1 V1 1-1- 
0.. (') - 0 0 \C ::0 ...... 1-( 

0 0 (1) :-0 8 -0 
-n -(/} -(/} 

ru ('t) � 
)> 'Tl ..... 
' -<: U'l ,.Q ., 

lD = 0 
1-1- ('t) <! 

....... I-' \C r,:, ('t) 

0 '- ...... 8 0 N 
0 0 0 � ('t) 
0 0 0 = ., ...... 
-(/} -(/} 

'Tl 8 "'O -<: ., 
N 0 

....... ....... 0 (JC! 
'- ., 

0 0 N � 0 0 
0 0 1-1- 8 
-(/} -(/} t:1 ,-... 

'Tl 
Cl) (j 

-<: 'd 1-( 
n.> "'O 

N � � 
1-1- 3 I-' ....... '- 

0 0 N Cl) 

0 0 N :::::s 
0 0 :!' - -(/} 

'Tl -<: 
N 

....... N 
1..1-' '- 

0 0 N 

-i 
0 8( w -n 
0 

w 
0 D. 
� ;:::;.· 
::::! - -(/} iii" 
0 'Tl V> ...., -<: z N CJ'\ (1) w � ....... ....... '- � 
3 0 0 N u, 
ru 0 0 .j:. 0 
..... 0 0 0 
;,;- 
(1) 
.-+ 

Q 
-0 

Page 76 of 142



ro 
(') 
rt 
n 0 ,, 
(/) Q) 

:!" Q. 

a 
(1) 
Vl 

Q) 
:J 
Q) 

O'Q 
(1) 

3 
(1) 
:J 
.-+ 

e, � 
� � 
(1) (1) 

3 

I.Cl - 

- 

'-I - N 
p 
0 
'-I 

i N iQl 8 � � 
.· 5-::::iroc, 

(1) 

Q) 
:J 
0. 

(1) 

� -, ;:;· 
Q) 

() 
0 
:J 
Vl c 
3 

"D �- 
0 
:J 

::,- 
(IQ. 
:::,- 

� 

'I (1) � 

� aJ 
-, !:!'. 
-, :J 
� O'Q 
.-+ (1) 

-<" ::!; 
:::,- Q. 
Q) (1) < :J ro n 

-c 

w �-.o z 
0 

I 

::r '"1 
vi" 0 � 
(1) � iii"' �- � � g. (/) s 

O'Q g. (1) 

(1) g 
!:::1 ::::;: 
(1) (1) 
(1) s 
0. ·-...) 'd 
'"1 
(1) 

:::i. 
0 � 
(/) q 
s 
(1) 
rt 
·-...) 

- � (/) � z g. 
Vl O ...... 
.-+ ___, (/) 
(1) _.., Ill 3 

- 

� 
N 
� 
<, 
N 
N 

� 
N 
N 
<, 
N w 

� 
N 
0 
<, 
N 
� 

p 
0 
0 
0 

co 
'-I 
CJ) 
0 
0 

p 

0 
0 
0 

-(/)- 

·-· 

p 
0 
0 
0 

-{/)- 

p 
0 
0 
0 0 

0 

I 

- 
-(/)- 

co 
,'-I 
CJ) 
0 
0 

-(/)- 

p 
0 
0 
0 

-(/)- 

.. 

p 
0 
0 
0 

tA- 

� 
0 

( 0 
0 d 

� 
:J 
0 ...... 
z 
(1) 

� 
3 
Q) -, 
;,- 
(1) 
.-+ 

Q 
"U 

I.Cl 

I 

- 
tb n C"l 

N 

tT1 I o 
'-I 

I 
10 

0 Q) (!) - n g. !:::1 '"1 
!:::1 'd !:::1 rt Q) 

N 
0 

(!) !:::1 0. rt (!) 
"rj 

0 s (!) 
'"1 '"1 '"1 rt (/) e:. e::.. '"1 

p 

'd (/) 

-3. 
'-I s ::::!. :::,::::, 'Tl 

(!) 

(!) 
(/) (!) � 

(') = (!) (/) 
!:::1 (!) rt 

l"l 'Tl 
'"1 0. 'T1 

(!) � <: 
� 

'Tl !:::1 (!) 

::1 � 0. 'Tl 
0.. � 
(/) 

I-- 

!:::1 .. 0. 

p 
I.Cl r- 

OJ 
<, 

Q) 
N 

- 0 
Q) 
:J 
n 
(1) ,___ - V) 

Page 77 of 142



N -i -� )> ::::r Vl 
(1) 

C") 
Vl 

(1) 
(1) 0 ::r:: 

It) (/) 'ij x :::, 
.-+ '"1 0 ;: s:: '"1 

"O 0 � (1) cr' �- 
-, 

'"1 s 0 � 
� 

:::i � ro 
rt 

(l"Q -· (") 

(1) (1) 

....... >rj q rt 
� '"1 

Q) '"1 0 §: n 2. ro >-3 
5· 

Q) 0.. rt 
:J 'O 

a. (1) ,..... 
(1) Vl 

(1) n to ro 
'"1 

(1) 
rt '<: .. ll) 

-, o. :>< 
(1) t::J •• 'O 
..a (1) 

:::, (1) 

�- Vl (Jq :::, 
n (") 8: .., :::! . 0 It) 
'O rt 

Vl Vl c o. rt 
3 Vl '"1 

0 rt (1) 
OJ :::, o 0 ,-..,. a· ·-..) .., rt s .., (1) 

co --i 
::r 'O .., 

0 
(1) '"1 (1) 

$ 0 n � 
.....:i 

0 Q) <: 
-, :::i 

0 
:J § (1) 

Vl ro I Vl 
.-+ Vl 

Q) 
(1) .., 
'"1 s:: 0 :5. � Tl 

......., 

Q) z (") 5· 
(") (1) ,Cl> 

:J Q) 

� 
'O Vl a. 

It) 
'"1 (1) 0 .., 

� 
ll) 0.. s. '"1 c n :::i ::,;-- 

(") (1) 

� 
(1) o. !" 

0 
rt 
·-..) s. .., q � 

w 

>-< 
� Vl z g. 
0 ,-..,. 
.....:i Vl 
- ll) 

r' t,;· 
rt 

� :::, 
It) ll) 
a. s 
Vl It) 
rt O 0 ......., 
O" � 
It) '"1 
n S 
O ll) 3 :::, 

"O 0.. ro >o 
<ti :::!. a. n 

"O It) 
::}, 0 

�� 
.-+ c O O 
a. rt 

� � 
It) (1) o n 
�. (1) 

:::i �r 
a:: i 
0 
Vl 
.-+ 
It) 
(/) 

!:!. 
'Tl 3 

Q) -< .-+ ....... (1) 
Vl co 

.......... 
....... 

"° 
� 

w 
00 en 
0 
0 

0 
0 

f-' 
00 --.. 
f-' 
lO 

c 

-{/)- -{/)- 

'ij 
'"1 
�- 
(1) 
(") 

-{/)- 

rt 

tfl- 

n 
Tl 0 Q) Vl !::!. rt �: 

tit (1) 
Vl 

-l 
0 
� 
:J 

-{/)- 
0 

tfl- 
....... 
z 
It) 

N 
s 

N 

00 
3 00 

0 
Q) 

0 
0 

-, 
0 ;,;- 

(1) 
.-+ 

Q 
-a 

Tl 
)> 
I 

f-' 
f-' 

Page 78 of 142



-c, 
w 
::i ..... 
;:,:J 
(t) 

""Q_ 
w 
n 

t:, (I) 

w 3 
rt (I) 
(t) ::i ..... 

co 
<o 
'-l 
(.}"\ 
0 

'"'d ., 
-9. 
(1) 
() 
rt 
n 
0 ,., 
C/l w 
rt o. 

;:;: 
-ti} iii' 

VI 

vi' n 
n -< o n 
::i (I) 
!:!'. 
::in c c 
0 � c (I) 
VI :J < ..... o< 
-0 ;:::;: 
(t) vi' al 
!:!'. < 
::i (t) 

O'Q -< 

w 

., 
(t) 

'"d 
ill 
n 
(t) s 
(t) 

g 

.-+ 
0 

., 
0 
-0 
w 
::i 
(I) 

� 
N 
0 
<, 
N ..... 

� 
N 

_N - N 
w 

� ..... - N 
N 

u, 
0 
0 

u, 
0 
0 

u, 
0 
0 

u, 
0 
0 

u, 
0 
0 

00 co 
':..J u, 
0 

u, 
0 
0 

u, 
0 
0 

00 
�w 
-...J u, 
0 

t1l 
0 
0 

t1l 
0 
0 

u, 
0 
0 

("') 
0 s s 
ct> 

= r, 
ct> 

� 

d 
::E 
::i 
0 --,., 
z 
(I) 

::E 
3 
w ., 
;7':" 
(I) 
.-+ 
n 
-c, 

,., 
:t> 

I ...... 
N 

co - N 
-...J - N 
0 ...... 
-...J 

Page 79 of 142



OJ 

0 
0 
0 

OJ 
n ro 
3 

t::i � 
Ill r+ 
r+ ro 

::::!.. I 
ro < 
Vl )> 

n 

-! 
G) 0 
...... � ro ::::, 

Q'Q I 
� OJ 

;::;: 
Vl 

=.; 
ro 
n -« a, 
ro 

er 
OJ 
Vl 
ro a. 
0 
::::, 

::::, 0 
' ro ::::, Vl 

O Oti' 
c: ::::, 
Vl ro ::::, 
n ro o ro 
Vl a. 
r+ Vl 

� 
N 
N 

......... 
N w 

'Tl ><: 
N 
0 ......... 
N 
� 

VJ 
0 
0 
0 

VJ 
b 
0 
0 

I-' 
I-' 
00 
b 
0 
0 

w 
0 
0 
0 

w 
0 
0 
0 

�w 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
I-' po 
0 
0 
0 

d 
� 
::::, 
0 ..., 
z 
ro 
� 
3 
OJ ...... 
:;,;-- 
ro 
r+ 

Q 
-0 

., 
)> 

I 
I-' 
VJ 

Page 80 of 142



Page 81 of 142



"Tl 
(I) �. 
;:::;: 
iii' 
v, 

" a 
<ii' 
n 
rt 

Cl> 
::> 

� � 
(I) 3 
::::!.. 
Cl) 
v, 

� 
(I) 
o G) (I) ., 

Cl> 
OQ 

o, 
(I) 

3 

G) G) � 
� 03 

t: m ro (/) 
::> N rt 

OQ (I) ::i 
::> ::> s:u � � s 
::::!, c Cl) 
::> 0 

OQ <' ....... 
Q.) ::n 
::> '"1 s 

s:u 
::i 
p.. 
'd 
'"1 ....... 
n 
Cl) 

0 ....... 
..0 

i:::: 
0 
rt 
Cl> 
(/) 

'"1 
Cl> 
n 
Cl> 
�- 
Cl> r- 

'Tl -< 
N 
N 
<, 
N w 

� 
N � ......... 
N 
N 

lJ1 _o 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 
0 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 _o 
o, 
0 
0 

lJ1 _o 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 
0 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 
,o 
0 
0 
0 

.... 
N 
00 
),:, 
CJ) 
00 

�t--t----if---+---t�+-IJj-+�+---+----1 

e. 
§ 
o 
(1) 

lJ1 
0 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 
0 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 _o 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 
0 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 
,o 
0 
0 
0 

lJ1 
,o 
0 
0 
0 

--l 
0 
� 
::> 
0 ...... 
z 
Cl) 

� 
3 
(I) ., 
A° 
Cl) 
rt 

Q 

" 

0 
I .... 

I.D 
<; 
00 - N 
0 .... 
"' 

Page 82 of 142



Page 83 of 142



--, 
s � 
(I) v, 

� s 
v, (!) 

3 
0 --, 
iii' 

s s :"" 
'- 

s � s: 
(l) ::J, V>. - �. ; co ::J PJ o � 8 
::J :J. (1) 
N ::J Q 
(l) ()Q ....., 

)> ::l'l 

�· 8 
.-+ =r § O p.. 
3 
� 
O" 
Ql 
::J 
-< 
z f:! 
-< 0 

r+ 
(l) 
V> .., 
(1) 
(") 
(l) �· 
(1) 
p.. 

_!s.J 
0 
0 
0 

_!s.J 
0 
0 
0 

_!s.J 
0 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 
0 

N ........ 
00 
u, 
u, 

_oo 
0 
0 
0 

00 
0 
0 
0 

80 
0 
0 
0 

00 
0 
0 
0 

00 
0 
0 
0 

_oo 
0 
0 
0 

...., 
0 g 

I-' = C) 
C) 
C) 

.... 
p 
0 
0 
0 

.... 
0 
0 
0 
0 

.... 
0 
0 
0 
0 

..... 
_o 
0 
0 
0 

.... 
0 
0 
0 
0 

� l--1-�-l--+�l---+---11----+---I - N 
0 

/ 
' 

< I .... 

U) ---..., 
N 
-....J' ........ 
I),.) 

IQ .... 
-....J 

Page 84 of 142



Page 85 of 142



" (1) a. 
(1) 
(/l 

G) q .., ru· 
� :::, 

� � 
QJ ::, 
::!. QJ 
(1) :::, 

"' n (1) 

3 
(1) 
:::, 
v:- 
QJ 
rt 
rt ::, 
(1) 

c: 
CY ..... 
QJ 

� 

t: 
"' rt 
::l 
QJ s 
(1) 

0 ....... 
::l) 
"1 s 
� 
p.. 
'O 
"1 ;;:;· 
(1) 

0 ....... 
.0 c 
0 
rt 
(1) 

"' "1 
(1) 
n 
(1) 

�- 
p. 

CJ 
QJ 

QJ 
:::, 
n 
(1) 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

O trl 
st-� 
(1) (1) 
"1 "1 

'O 
"1 .:;;· 
(1) 

'Tl c 
::l c, 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 ....,. 
0 
0 

I-' 
0 

....,,. 
0 
0 

U) 

-- N 
-..J 
<, 
N 
0 
I-' 
-..J 

Page 86 of 142



in 
"O 
ru =: 
(/) 

OJ 
:::J a. 

"O 
ru 
:::J 
!:!. 
:::J 

(IQ 

N 

°' (JI 
tn 
0 

t:1 
ru ,... 
m 

G) 

in 
(IQ 

$ ;:1. 
OJ m ...., ...., 
ii> 6' 
V) ...., 

"d 
"'1 
-9. ";{} 
m !:?. l+ a: nm 
0 (/) 
(/') 

rr 

...., 
V) 

ru 
:::J a. 

"O 
ru 
:::J 
!:!. 
:::J 

(IQ 

= ...., 
m 

"O 
ru 

�· 
"O ru· 

...., 
(/) ,... 
0 

"O 
ru 
(/) ,... 
r=;· 
a. 
m n 
0 ...., 
ru ,... 
<' m 
ru 
() 
n 
m 
:::J ,... 
.!" 
"O 
ru 
(/) ,... 
r=;· 
� ru 

:::J :+>- 
' 6 c c v,· 

(/) ,... 
m ::S 
m ru 
� 8 3' Cl> 
ru o 
r+ ...... m ::n 
CT "'1 
� 8 m ru a. ::s O p.. 
:::J "Cl 
;c ::t 
v, n 

$ � m ....., 
ru .0 
� 5 
ru rt 
:::J m a. (I) 

� ;ii 
-· n o m ., <· 

"O Cl) w p.. 
� r=;· 
m 
V) 

"'1 
....,:: 
N 
N 
<, 
N w 

"'1 
....,:: 
N 
0 
<, 
N 

'"'" 

"'1 
....,:: 
N 

'"'" <, 
N 
N 

� 
'"'" \Jj 
<, 
N 
0 

� 
N 
w 
<, 
N 
,!>- 

v, 
0 
0 

v, 
0 
0 

v, 
0 
0 

v, 
0 
0 

...... w 
00 
0 
0 

...... 
N v, 
-..J 
0 

v, 
0 
0 

(Jl 
0 
0 

v, 
0 
0 

(Jl 
0 
0 

...... 
,!'-) 
v, 
-..J 
0 

...... 
,w 
00 
0 
0 

...... 
�l--+-��+--+�1---+-��+-"""" 
...... 
\D 

Page 87 of 142



Page 88 of 142



z 
(l) 

� 
3 ru 
-; 
';;<; 

� 

N--lr..--lr..--lr..--lr..--lr..--lr..--lr..--lr.. ....Jr.. ....Jr.. 

.i:,. W N--'- 0:, o <.O <X> � m en .i:,. W N --'- o <.O (X) �O)(Jl.j:s.(,) N--'- 
...... p.) 

I ;;a ,, -I rm ..... - ('I) p.) <D 0 ru N....,. 0 

!3 = (f) -; ::::, 
....., 

o (l) »: I -,, rr:1 t:::l 
v, n c in (l) s::: cil .e ro ro I 

...... ,s· ..... (l) '< -; m co· "O 0 ...... .i:,. 1:::1 
C' = co ,, :::, s ('I) Pol 

z ('I) n 0 0 (J) c:::!: n> v, ""1 ru "O n l'"'I' 
0 '1 p.) ...... -; ::::, :::, '1 8 0.. ru (l) 
::::, ('I) "O 

,.., ..... 
;:::i. -; Ill "O 

(l) "O ...... ,, ro 
iii' l'"'I' w ru '"Cl :::, er. = p.) en ::::, c p. 0 n - 0 3 <:: = rt 
('I) :;r::, Q. "O n> 

rt> e: s· Cll 
(l) 
-; n 

rt> iD 'T.I :;J Vl -<: 1-- 
,..... rt> :i,. 
co "rl N N N N ....,. n -<: <, = 0 0 0 0 co ,g ('I) ,..... = --'-0 0 0 (!) ..... Sil ,, 
'° i:i.. � w 0) co co '"1 '1 -; 

('I) (l) 
Q. Q<> 

-ffi ,(;fl -ffi ,(;fl ,(;fl ,(;fl ;;a 
(l) 

N oi � (Jl n (f) 

3: 0 N<X> 0 0 0 0 o 
.i:,. 0 oi 0 0 0 Vl ::,::, c 

p.) N 0 0 0 0 0 r+ ('I) (l) 

::i;' .i:,. 0 0 0 0 0 "O - rt> 0 0 0 0 0 0 Sil 
<, n 
3: ('I) 

0 "ti . N N N N N !3 
e, '"' 0 0 0 0 0 ('I) 

0 (.,.) N N N � ><: = rt> "O -...J co 01 (!) CXl (I) ..... - i-3 i-3 i-3 j;3 i-3 0 PJ 
Cll 0 0 0 0 0 ..., 
rt> (.,) N N (.,.) � 
i:i.. CXl .i:,.. 0) 0 CD 

'Tl I-- 

= ....>. ....>. ....>. ....>. � = oi (Jl 0) co ..... 
i:i.. :::, N CJ) - .._ 0 � ('I) ...... PJ Sil = 0 .t,. .t,. (X) 

(J'Q � .i:,. 0) 0 (1Q 

� 
('I) 

-{fl ffi -{fl ffi ffi ffi "O 
'T.I ro 
-<: 0 ,..... ....., 

(!) N (.,.) N co l'.'rl 
::,::, r> � .i:,.. 01 01 _01 <, ..0 - 0 0 ,..... 
('I) N 0 N 0 = "O 01 0 01 0 0 0 '° ..... 
Sil 0 0 0 0 0 0 "O ..... "ti '1 8 .......... '"' -{fl ffi -ff) -{fl ffi ffi 
� rt> 

� 
ro 

Sil �- = ..... 0 ,..... rt = ..... = CD N (.,.) N '° ('I) Cll 0 � _.J:>. 01 01 01 .......... = N - N -< 0 N 0 0 0 

� rt> 01 0 01 0 0 0 0 
p.) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

n 1-- 
('I) '"' C'"l -{fl ffi -{fl ffi ffi ffi 
0 � v, ..... N 

CD - N (.,.) N 0 
0 � _.J:>. 01 01 01 .......... 
-N - N 0 N 0 0 0 
01 0 01 0 0 0 ,..... 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

ffi ffi -{fl -{fl ffi ffi < 
>rj 

(l) 
zs: 

l'.'rl >-< o' 
(/) N co er. (!) N (.,.) N 

0 � _.J:>. 01 01 01 .... in 

8 -N - -0 N 0 N 0 0 
Po) 01 0 01 0 0 0 N 

l'"'I' 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ro 
p.. ffi 1 ffi -{fl -{fl ffi ffi 

t:::l >rj ..... >-< 
(/) N 

"O (!) N (.,.) N N 
0 � _.J:>. 01 01 01 

0 -N - N 
(/) 0 N 0 0 0 

Pol 01 0 01 0 0 0 � 
er 0 0 0 0 0 0 - ro ffi ffi ffi ffi ffi ffi 

< >rj 

Po) >-< - (!) N (.,.) N N 

= 0 � .i:,.. 01 01 01 � ..__ � N - -N 0 N 0 0 0 
01 0 01 0 0 0 .I>,. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Page 89 of 142



"Tl 
I 
N 

-I 
0 
:f :::, 
0 ....... 
z 
� 
3 w .... 
';,<;' m. 

N __,. __,. __,. __,. __,. 4 ....Jr.. -lrr,. -lrr,. _...lrr. 

�---== ti:, 0 <D (X) -._) 0) u, -"" <,.) I\.).-" 0 (D (X) -._) 0) u,.i,..<,.>N-" 
� � - e:. w CXl '.N __,. (X) l"t co 0 
0 � Cl) 

� 
0 - - -"" ..... - $'. i3 - $'. -I - l:Tl 0 -u 0 VI n -u 0 ::::, (./) ,g (P 

0 er l"t Cb 0 g-: <D 0 't:I 
;:i 0 ..... @" 3 0 ,6' 0 
w <D O" = ro ::::;: 

� 
Cl) Pol 

er ;;o Cl) � er ;;o !!!.. (./) VI "1 
ro ro n 8 w '1 � w o = '1 

Cl) "d 3 � .... 
;;o Q. ;;o Q. OJ Ill 't:S 't:S ..... (1) w 0 � ....,. ru o' ru )> = i:t. 
Q. CJ> e:. Q. CJ> co Q., 0 = a· n 0 <D < = r.- 

Cl) .... 
CJ> Q. :;r:, CJ> CJ> Cl) .... (1) =- 

VI 
.... 

= � (:).. 

� � 
Cl) 

"' ,_ .__ . .___ 
..... Cb ;i... 
ee "T1 N N N N n � <, = ..c ..... 0 0 0 0 s:: Cl) 

'° = 0 0 __,. __,. .... Ill Tl 
p. <,.) __,. ,i:,.. 0) '1 '1 ::;·- 

Cl) <D 
Q. .. Qo 

{;fl {fl {;fl {;fl {;fl ;;o .. 
' (D, 

N __,. N n CJ> 

� 
0 N u, <,.) __,. 0 0 
-"" 0) 0 (D co Vl ::ii:, c 

� N 0 0 '(D. 
..... Cl) .<D' 

$'. $'. 
0 "O -"" er 0 0 ·.i,.. 

0 0 Cb 0 0 0 0 0 --, •Ill ...... ...... ........ n I 0 0 .... .... � Cl) 

0 0 !3 ru ru 0 "T1 ' e, § Cl) 

Cb N N N N -<: = 0 ex o: 0 (!) l"t' ; - =- ..... ..... N N el .. ..... 00 """ ,-l>- 00 ' ' = CJCl .___ 
{;fl {;fl ffl -(ff -(ff ,{fl {fl, 

' "'1' � �I., ·:a. ..... I 
__,. ..... ee 
0 (X) 

� """ 
.j>. «n ---1 ......... l (1)'. ' ..... .!" _o _c.,:r C.11 ..... 0 0 0 't:S ..... 0 0 . CO. � :'f .�. 0 0 (JI 0 ·o· 0 

0 0 �. "t1 """ 0 0 0 ---1 rr:I 
"'! ! ,.Cl' 
<, '1 = � Cb ffl -f:h ffl {fl ffl .. 

s. ' '11' ..... 
Ill �·· � ' s· 0 '8· 
l"t = ..... ..... 
Cl) VI N -l>- ---1 '° (1) 

= ,<: (JI N -l:,." (,J 01 <, a 
� 

..... 0 0 co' N N 
� (11 0 0 0 (11 ·O '\ n 2l ---1 0 0 0 \---!. \,' 

Cl) 
.___ 

("') '-{fl, {fl, -(fl. l.fi 
I 

{;fl 
0 ' "'1 ' I 
VI . �· l"t '1 __,. N 

N .j>. """ 0 -u 
u, N -l>- (,.) (11 ......... <D .... __,. 0 Cl co N N CJ> 
oi 0 0 a (11 ...... 0, 
-._) 0 0 0 --'-! :::, 

.__ '--- !!!.. 
z z ,(:fl � {fl {fl ffl ·. -u 
)> )> '11 ..... 

rr:I � 0 ...... 
Vl -"" 

N . <D 
.-1' ..... ..... ..... O' .... 0 .j>. :!>' 'W. """ ......... : ...... 
8 ".i,.. ·--i (0 (X) N <' 0 <D 
Pol N 0 0 0 N N 

.-1' 
(X) 0 0 0 00 m 

(1) 
..Cl 

i::i.. {;fl {fl ffl ffl ffl c: 

� 
'CJ 

0 3 .... N. <D 
Vl .i,.. 
't:I 

..... ..... N :::, 
0 -l>- .!>, !"-" _---! ......... ...... 

0 ".i,.. -:....i 0 co 00 N 
Vl N 0 0 0 N w 
Pol (X) 0 0 0 00 
C"' - (1) {;fl ffl {fl ffl -(ff 

� � 
Pol >< - -"" ..... ...,. N 

= 0 _.i,.. _-l>- (,.) ---1 (,J 

(1) ".i,.. 
""" 0 co 00 ·� 

N a 0 0 N' '.i. ,. 
(X) O• 0 0 100 : ; 

Page 90 of 142



Page 91 of 142



-I 

� ::::, 
0 
-+, 

z 
� 
3 
Ill -, 
;,:; 
CD 
r+ 

I 

N __. __. __. __. _,. __. __. _. _,. _. 
WN __. 

0:, 0 (.D CX) -.J 0) u, .i:,.. co N _. 0 (.D CX) -.J 0) u, .i:,.. co N _. 

0 - ll) 0 0 0 0 () 0 0 0 ..... - 0 
Ill Cl) 

� 
Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill Ill ..... 

-, !3 
..., -, -, -, -, -, -, -, 

tT1 0 'l=I: (/) ("') 'l=I: 'l=I: � � _]!: 'l=I: 'l=I: 'l=I: ,g N ..... (t) 
CX) -.J c» N __. (0 ...... "O - 0 ...... -I - - - - "C 0 rn ::::, � ::::, 0 � ::::, er ::s ro ::::, ::::, ro cl Cl) ...... Ill x r+ ro CD 0 (/) 

CD Cl) ("') c "2. -, CD 0 0 (b n ...... 
0 '"I ll) 

..., o 
� 0 � � '"I 9 Cl) c CD CD CD ::::, ..... 

CD 'tl 'e U> c -0 CD -0 -0 � 'tl (0 
-0 - ...... ::::, 0 � -0 ...... ...... ::;; ::, e, 
r+ Ill ....+ c 3 0 0 0 p. ::s 
0 n ll) ::::, -, 0 -, -, o 0 IT -, - -, -, <: = Cl) 3 Ill OJ OJ OJ OJ s::i.. � -, OJ OJ 0 (b 

Ro .... (t) 
Ill »: 

� 
Ro Ro Ro Ro CD e: � CD � � � = VI 0.. � � r+ Po 

'T.I (t) CD (b 

>< � 
0.. V) - - ... (t) :i,.. co 'Tl N N N n 

<, N N N N N ,g >< ... = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Cl) 

N '° ::s 0 _. _. _. _. __. ->, 0 .... Ill 
0 i:::i.. (.D _,. -.J u, .i:,.. 0) .i:,.. oi '"I '"I 
->, Cl) 

.i:,.. s::i.. 

tF'J tF'J tF'J tF'J tF'J tF'J tF'J tF'J -u 
Tl 

Q.. 
0 a· 
0 tF'J C"") CD 

N CD � N w w .i:,.. .i:,.. .i:,.. .i:,.. .i:,.. w 0 :,:, 0 
- VJ 
::::, 

� 
0 0 0 CX) u, oi en oi .o ..... Cl) CD 

r+ (.D 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 'tl -0 
CD - Ill ..., co 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 II) ;:::i o <, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n 
CD � Cl) 3 
-0 0 s CD 
0 s::i.. '"d ,, ,, ,, 

� � 
,, ,, ,, Cl) ::::, ...... 

-, Cl) "'1 -< -< -< -< -< -< -<: = 
� 

- 0 ..... 
'e 

...>. N ...>. N N ...>. N ...>. Cl) 
(0 ...>. � (,.) 0 ...,,. 0 (X) II) 

0 N N N -- -- N -- '"I 
0 

...>. N ...>. ...>. 
VI 0 N ...,,. i» ...>. (X) ...>. (0 
(t) 
i:::i.. - 
'Tl � = ::s __. .... - i:::i.. (J) (.,.) .i,. ...>. N ...,,. 01 Cl) � ..... N .-i>- (J) .i,. ...,,. (0 (J) II) 

::s 01 ...>. ·w ...,,., ...,,. ()) ".i,. (JQ :a C7Cl ...,,. (0 N 01 (.,.) 01 (X) Cl) 

(J) 0 0 (.,.) (.,.) ...,,. N 01 (0 

-YI -YI -YI -YI "{fl -(fl ffi ;;u =! 0 
CD ....... 

-YI -0 rrl 
:,:, 01 Q) ... 

N (.,.) .-i>- (0 .<D 50 (0 (0 co .e 
Cl) 0 

0 <, = 'tl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD ... 
Ill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .... 
..... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 '° "O 
'"I "' 9 - '"I 
� Cl) -(fl -YI ffi ffi -YI ffi ffi ::;i (0 

tF'J II) < ;;u ::s N .... .... -(fl CD = 0 01 -0 ... IT 
0) ..... s= (X) Q) .-i>- (0 (0 (0 (0 (0 (0 "° u, Cl) (/) 0 - 0 = >< 01 0 01 0 0 0 0 0 N 

Ill 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Cl) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 = II) ---- n '"I 

Cl) tF'J ffi ffi -YI -YI -YI ffi 'T.I 
C"") 

;;o >< 
0 ffi CD N 
(/) 01 w -0 ..... ...,,. w (0 (0 (0 50 (0 (0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 0 (") N 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 D 0 0 0 0 0 ... 

0 ;;u -(fl w -YI ffi ffi ffi 'T.I 
0 CD ;:u ;;u >< ""() 
a. 0 tr! -YI CD CD N -, 
CD 0 (/) .i,. w _.i:,.. -0 -0 5· -u 

3 i:t. w (0 (0 Q) (0 Q) (0 ... 0 rn CJ1 0 u, 0 - ::::!. 
:J 3 !3 D 0 0 0 0 r+ a· 
o' CD 0 0 0 0 0 CD D CD 0 N '< 

Ill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N CD ..., :J ..... < 0 a. Cl) 
L- 

CD ..... ffi s::i.. tF'J ;:u CD 
3 -, tF'J ffi ffi -YI -YI ffi 

� Ol ...>. 0 (1) 
::::,- 

CD :J 01 -YI -0 I a· 
:J .... ..... CJ) 0 (/) 01 w _.i:,.. w N ro 

ro' 0 'tl N 0 (0 (0 (0 (0 (0 N en 
-, 

)> 0 01 0 u, CD 0 0 0 0 0 N 0 (/) 0 0 0 0 0 0 D 0 c 
� 0 0 0 0 0 0 D 0 (JJ ,, n. z 

0 6' - :J Cl) w -f:F) -(;/') tF'J tF'J w tF'J >rj 
Q � 

;;o 
ffi CD >< - 01 w _.i:,... -0 (.D (.D .c.o .c.o N s= N (0 w (JJ 

Cl) 01 0 u, 0 (") 0 0 0 0 N 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 ,I>,. 

Page 92 of 142



-u 
I 
N 

--, 
0 
� 
::J 
0 - z 
� 
3 
ru -, 
7'" 
(1) 
r+ 

I 

0 
"U 

N ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... , ..... ..... m)u, 
co N ..... 0:, 0 (0 co '1 m u, � co N _,_ 0 (0 co '1 � <,.) N ..... 

-- 
:!1 - � )> )> 0 0 0 :!1 N )> m m ... -, (I) - c � ui" ui" co· -, (/) ::J 3 3 0 
CD s � 0.. CD ...... ...., 

= -, "O "O ;::;: r+ CD CD CD t:Tl t:::, 
OJ V) n 5· 0 ru ru � OJ ru ::J ca -, ,g ...... 0 !:!". (0 ('!) ru ... � ::0 � 0 ru 0 ::J CD CD "O (/) 0 ..... CD 0 er zr OJ (/) ::J ru ::J ::J ,e· t:i 
CD C' = ru CD (/) 

= 
(I) � 0 Q: � � (/) 0 � � ::0 (I) 0 ;:o G) V) n ro (D (1) n ..... -, -, -, ui" t:S ru ., � ru ro G) G) ., 8 0.. (I) 0.. ;:o 0 0 ;:o 0.. "O .... .... 

5· 'O 't:I ::J ru 0 0 ru 5· � (D CD P> 'O ('!) - ..... (0 0.. 0 ::J ::J t:S a. 
Sl,) ..... 0.. ::J ::J I CD CD p. = I � 0.. 0.. a" I 0 0 n � a" -, -, IT G) (I) 

..... G) :::, ru ru <'! t:S 
::ti 0 (/) c c I (/) 0 0 (1) -, Q. ::J � G) I 0 e: (D ..... co co ::J ::J -, -, 

ru ::s V) 
;::;: ;::;: ;::;: I CD ... 

r+ 0 � G) "U co ;- 
I 'r:1 -, N ..... I 0 ...,:: � 

V) 

- - -- - 1--l co > 1t, CX) "Tj n u, ........ N ..... N N N N N N N N .c ....:: 
1--l i= 0 (0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 = (I) 

"° = ..... (0 ..... ..... 0 0 0 0 ..... 0 .... Ill 

°' m co 0 u, 0) co 0) '1 0 m ., ., "U 
(I) 2. Q. 

0 

ffi ffi 
(D 

..... ffi ffi ffi ffi ..... ffi ffi f 0 a: co ..... N ffi ffi N N u, ..... ffi N ("") (D 
Sl,) N m CXl m m 0 0 0 0 m u, 0 "O 
::,:;' (0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

V) 'O ru ... - ;::i. (I) N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Sl,) 
........ N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n 3 a: (I) ,_ - - s � CD 
0 >i::, � Q. ., N N N N N N N N N N ....:: (I) 
(I) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (I) t:S - 'C N N N N .....>. .....>. .....>. N N N Ill ... 

0 (J) N 0 OI -..J (X) (0 0 .....>. N ., 
V) 

>------- (1) 
p. a: 'Tl c: z .... z z z z z z z z z - t:S )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> )> (I) ...:i p. Sl,) .... CJQ 

� t:S 
(IQ (I) 

('!) 
ffl -Efl -Efl ffl ffl ;;u -Efl -Efl -Efl ffl ffl =i 0 m --+, -u 1--l tT1 

::i:i N � 
.....>. 

(I) co .....>. .!'-> N .!'-> .....>. .....>. co .c 
'O -.i,. (J) co (J) (J) 0 0 OI .....>. (J) (J) <, s:: 

Sl,) (J) 0 0 0 0 m 0 0 0 0 (J) 1--l ..... .... (J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (J) "° "O 
- 

., '"ti 8 - ........ ., a: (I) ffl -Efl -YI ffl ffl ffl ;;u -Efl -Efl -Efl � =i ('!) 
Ill :5. m = ..... 0 N -u __. 1--l t:S IT ... = (,) .....>. N N � N .....>. ..... "° (I) V) -.i,. (J) o:> (J) (J) 0 01 .....>. (J) (J) ........ 
t:S ....:: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N 
Sl,) (I) 0 0 0 0 0 0 m 0 0 0 0 0 

- -· ::s Ill - n ., 
-Efl -Efl (I) ffi ffi ;:o ;:o ffi ffl -Efl -Efl -Efl 'r:1 

("") m m ....:: 
0 N "U "U ..... N 
V) ..... N s;: N ... .i,. s;: N N .....>. .....>. 0 0 

N m CXl 0 0 01 .....>. (J) (J) ........ ui" 
(J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (J) N 
(J) 0 0 m m 0 0 0 0 0 (J) 1--l "O ru ...... 
-Efl ffi ::0 ffi ffi ffi 

0 
-Efl -Efl -Efl -Efl ;;u 'r:1 :r 

m m ,< -u 0 "U -, -u N a" 0 
N ..... s;: _N ..... r 1--l 3 tT1 ..... N N ..... )> ........ ::!. 

V) 0 
CJ) 0 m m 0 0 01 ..... (J) 0 N '< 3 a. 0 0 m 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 m N c s 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ::J 

- -·- Sl,) - ff 
0 ... -Efl ffi ffi ffi ffi ffi -Efl -Efl -Efl ru 

(I) ;;u ;;u >rj ..... 
O" Q. m m 5· 
(j) -<! 
0 t:i -u -u ::J 

ro ..... ..... N N � � 
N z (/) ..... N N ..... ..... N 

ct V) 
'O (,) m co m m 0 0 0 ..... 0 (J) i:J 
0 (J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 m 0 m (J) (,,) 
{I) (J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (J) 

- - - Sl,) 
C' - -Efl ffi ffi ffi ffi ffi ::0 ffi ffi ffi ffi (I) m <: -u >rj 
Sl,) s;: -<! - = N 
(I) 0 ..... (,,) 

N ..... N _N m N ..... ..... i:J (,) 

-:i,. m co m m 0 u, ..... m m """ (J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 m 
(J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0) 

Page 93 of 142



Page 94 of 142



I 
I 

n 

)> 

"" VI 
Q) ..... 

t::I 
Q) 
e-+ 
(1) 

'"O ..., 
0 
(1) 

g_ ;,<:: 

n ;:c, 
0 (1) 
Vl n 
rt nl 

Q) 

t,q. �- 
0 
:::, 

� CJ 
(1) 
Q) 
n 

� � 
3 
(1) 
(1) 

G) fn rn 
a'ii' 0 
QJ r- 
::i Q) 
Cl. :::, 
(1) Cl. 
r-+ "" 0 n 

::, 'Tl 
(1) 

N 

rl' 
0 

c 
0 
e+ 

'Tl (1) 
"" VI 

�- @ 
::, n 
..... (1) 

- N <' (1) 
p... 

d ..... 
Q) 

� 
N 
N 

N w 

� 
N 
>--> 
N 
N 

� 
N 
0 

N 
>--> 

l>,J 

l>,J 
l>,J 
l>,J 

l>,J 
(JJ 
l>,J 
l>,J 

y.> 
l>,J 
l>,J 
l>,J 

w 
w w 
w 

w 
(JJ 
w 
w 

l>,J 
(JJ 
l>,J 
l>,J 

...... 001---+�+--+�+--+�.f---+�-+------I - ...... 
\.D 

;:c, 
I ...... 

\.D - N 
-...J - N 
0 ...... 
-...J 

Page 95 of 142



I..O - N N N N N N N N w w N N N ....., ....., ....., ....., ....., ....., ....., ....., ....., ....., I..O 00 -....J ()) l./1 .i::,. w N ....., 
-....J ....., 0 I..O 00 -....J ()) l./1 .i::,. w N ....., 0 I..O 00 -....J ()) l./1 .i::,. w N ....., 0 - N n 0 tr1 c;, to n c;, -(/). co rn � :E 0. w r+ 0 )> N co r � 0 0 e-+ ::J '"! OJ (I) N (1) Vl c r 0 c (1) (1) 

0 C". (1) (1) 'TI ....., 
8 ::i- r+ OJ ::J '"d ::J .!') OJ OJ Vl 0 .... -· OJ 0 

-....J (1) � :::, 3 I:""' r+ - - 3· .. � 0 ::r: :::, c;, )> (1) p.. ;::;: (1) 0 .-+ ....... Vl r s '"! '"! rt (/) � 
.., 

'"d 0 ro· OJ en· zr vi' r OQ 0. ':'1 0 (1) OJ (1) (/) '"d Vl OJ z ::J � 0 .-+ rt (1) � :::, i:: '"d 
('I) '"! '"i I (1) .... :::, :::, 0 .-+ (n 0 I 0. (1) = cii' :;a 'Tl -9. 0 ::J n 0 0.. ::r .,... 

� §. 0 .... '"! o" '"i 
.0 -(/). OJ .-+ :-3 (1) 0 0 n (!) (!) c :E 0 .... � 0 � s ('I) 

(/) (t) c ....., s r+ 0 (/) :::, (1) n 
'Tl (!) ::J n 0 n ,o-. ::I ::r n ::i- '"! c (1) '"! := n ::r '"'CJ ...... (t) 

'Tl c '"! p.. rt .-+ .... (1) 0. (1) zr 0 (!) 3 0. 0 rt .... (1) .., � n co <: (1) 0 0 2: 0 rt 
� ::J 'Tl 0 (I) � '"d ::i- 0 (l) 

(1) 0. ;:::+' 0 er c ?. >-'.3 p.. i:: ....... 0 ........ :::!. 3 (/) 
...... 0.. 0 (1) 

� OJ (/) :;o ...... 
'Tl ::J er ::n ::I Vl co n Vl (1) .-+ i:!. c .-+ '"! Vl r+ ::::!) (1) (1) tt:l 0.. ....., 0 (I) PJ (!) Vl .... 

� 
::I 

::J ()) s Vl .-+ (/) s 0 .-+ (1) Vl "O (l) 

p.. (/) I .... 3 c .-+ ;:!:' zr .-+ OJ .... (1) PJ OJ ;:::;: (1) r+ (1) (1) 0. (1) OJ n 
Vl 0 "O ::J 7'" (1) 

.... ::i- ::J er 0. ::J (1) n 
a: r+ (I) Vl (I) OJ co n � 0 OJ p.. 0. rt 0 n )> .... n .-+ c ::J ....... :- (1) 

(1) 0 0 
N (I) ...., ;::;: r+ OJ (/) rt 
w ,<.n (I) zr 0 (!) (!) Vl rt c 3 ::::!) 

r (1) (1) (!) -l ::I (/) .., (1) - OJ .... s ::I 3 r ....., ::I 0. p.. ::r (1) (1) (I) N 'Oj ::I N ::::!) .-+ (I) 0 rt 0. ...., ::r ·-.) 0 (1) 0 .i::,. p, 0. ro· (1) :i' I r+ §' Vl N (1) Vl .... 
§ Vl 0 a: 0. 

...., 
(I) 0 0. g. !::::!. .-+ r 0 n ::I r ro· OJ :E .... '"d 0 OJ 

OJ c (1) OJ (1) OJ ::I ::I 
() (1) 3 a: Vl '"! c ::I 0 0 n >--'l 0 (1) 0. 
(1) ,Vl .... ::I OQ x· 0 c 3 ::I 0 0 <: .... 0. .... 

Vl r "O 0 :;o rt OJ ;:!:' � (!) OJ OJ ...., (!) OJ vi' .... 0. c ::I n 
OJ 0 ::I x 0 Vl Vl ::r 1;,<) Vl � ...., ::J (1) .-+ 0. 
::I .... 0. ...., n ro· "O (!) (1) 

r '"! (1) .... 0 s c Cl) 0 '"! .-+ (1) 
(/) (!) 0 .... r+ a: :5. .... 0 .-+ )> (1) ...., .... ....... .... 
(1) 0 n 0 n .-+ (1) Vl Vl -< OQ. RO m z ::I (!) ::r ::r rt z n er ::I c '<:' .... ·--> ::r OJ ,ro OJ Cl) ('t) 

Vl Vl r Vl Cl) (1) 0 OJ (I) .-+ .-+ G) ::::!) 
0 OJ ...... 

� 
� o-3 (!) (1) ...., � (1) ::I '"d 6' r+ .... (1) n .... ::I ro· ::I 0. (1) (I) 

0 p... < '"! 0. 0 OJ 0. (I) ::::!) 0. (1) ::I .... 8 [ ::I ::I .... .... 0. (1) x OQ 
PJ 0 Vl OJ 

::I 0 c .-+ OJ p.. Vl � 0. OJ a: ,(1) '"! -< c ::I � 
(1) n OJ ...... 3 c ,_. ::I (1) :,;;" Vl ;:::;: Ill 0. "1 n n ::r 0. r+ n .-+ v, C". 0 (1) OJ 0. 0 3 (1) (!) a. (!) ::!.. co @'" 0\ -l Vl rt ::I (1) 'TI 
0 ::I )> ::::!) (1) •-.) <: 3 (1) 

::I OJ ::::!) Vl 
0\ ::I .-+ !" ::r -< ...... Ill ....... .... n (1) .... � 

(1) 
--..) Vl ::!"! (1) ::I 0 a: (1) (j N (1) (1) n 0. 0. ro· ro 3 c .... n 

3 � � 0. -< OJ 
-l :: .... 0 I 

VJ. 
(1) .... $20 ::I x· 0 "1 "'O 0 ::I Cl) 0 n 

.-+ n .-+ ::I .... (1) :E 0 ..... 
'Tl OJ 0 .-+ n < ........ ....... 
-< Vl Cl) ro n ('t) � 

r+ Vl 0 � e, .... - )-1, -(/). .-+ ::I P- 0 (") 

co 0 0. PJ ;:::+' G) ....... � 
::I ::r rt 

� 8 .......... w �: OJ (!) 
,o-. ,o-. (1) 'TI 

)-1, 00 0 .... ro· 
:;o w w "° 0 ::I 0. ('t) "'O 

I 0 0 0 a: ..c "1 
N 0 0 0 = 0 

('t) -< 
-(/). VJ. 00 ('t) 

'Tl "° ....... 8 -< U1 )'rj ('t) 
)-1, I 0 = "° N "1 ....... 

,o-. ,o-. .......... 0 8 � w w N 1--' 
0 0 0 -....:i "1 
0 0 0 

(JQ 

VJ. -(/). 
"1 
� 

'Tl '"'CJ 8 -< ::i. 
N 0 ..- 
0 .., (j 

,o-. ,o-. .......... 
....... 

w w N � 0 0 )-1, 
0 0 

._, 

-(/). -(/). 

'Tl -< Sl.l 
N 0 ;:l. '- )-1, s ,o-. ,o-. .......... 

w w N (l) 

0 0 N ::J 
0 0 ::' 

VJ. VJ. '"d 
'Tl '"i 

-< 0 

N 
(l) 
n 

N rt ;,;: 
� ,m ,o-. .......... n 0 N :;o 
� w w w 0 (1) 

::i 0 0 Vl n 
0 0 ::' .... 

0 (1) ..... OJ 

z VJ. VJ. tA- C". 
(1) 'Tl 0 

� -< ::I 

OJ N w 
'"1 w � r 
:,<;" ,o-. ,o-. .......... 
(1) w w N 0 
rt � 0 

0 0 
0 0 0 0 

-0 Page 96 of 142



0 

() 

)> 

(/) 

:§. 
:J 

N 
SX) 
0 
0 
0 

""d ::0 
>-i ro O q 
(0 � 
C"l �. 7' 
rt O 
n ::i 
0 
{/) 

rt 

(/) 
ro 

?. ;;; 
3 .-+ 
ro r ro ro 
G) 0 

()Q. � 
QJ :J 
:J 0.. 
0.. ...... ro o 
.-+ n 

:::y 
ro 

0 
:J ro 
0 ..... 
N 
(/) 

:§. 
:J 

O'Q 
(/) ro 
.-+ 
(/) 

.-+ 
0 
O" 
rn 
...... ro 

"O 
DJ 
n ro 
0.. 

\.D 00 -...J CTI V1 +:> W N � 

'"r1 ><: 
N 
>-l 

.......... 
N 
N 

"!1 ><: 
N 
N 
<, 
N 
w 

� 
N 
0 

.......... 
N 
>-l 

� 
N w 
<, 
N 
� 

""d 
>-i 
-3. 
(0 
(") 
rt 
'Tl 
§ 
o, 
{/) 

N 
�!--+�+--+�+--+�+--+�-+-� 
N ._, 

W W W N N N N N N N N N N I-> I-> I-> I-> I-> I-> I-> I-> I-> I-> 
N I-> 0 \.D 00 -...J CTI V1 +:> W N I-> 0 \.D 00 -...J CTI V1 +:> W N I-> 0 

n 
'"O 

::0 
I w 

Page 97 of 142



rn 

n 

' C'll 
0 

-....J ' 0) 

v, 
0 
0 

..... 
C'll 

:,0 
C'll 
:G- a o 
0 
3 

OJ ,I 
::i OJ 
� Q. 
r+ �: 

� OJ 
G) rl' 

V> 
QI 

3 
"O 
ro 
"O 

� c ..... ro 
0 
::J 
-< 

r ro 
0 

� ' QI 
ro ::J 
iii" a. 
� 0 
�- n n :::, 
QI ro 
..... a 
0 
3 

� 
N 
w 
N 
.{:,, 

"!'l 
....::: 
N 
N 
N 
w 

� 
N 
0 

N ..... 
� 
0 
0 
0 

lD 
0 
0 
0 

I.O 
0 
0 
0 

........ 
,o ,o 
1.11 0 
0 0 
0 0 

.... .... 
lD O 
0 0 
0 0 0 0 

OJ 
n 
rt 
'Tl 
C'll 
C'll 
(/) 

.... .... 
� ,o 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 

w 
.j:::,. 1.11 
(.fl O 
0 0 
0 0 

N 0 1--+�+---+�-+-----lf---+-�+--+-----i - N .... 

Page 98 of 142



I 

r 

G) 

m 

0 

n 

,.., 

)> 

'"Cl 
'"1 
0 
(0 
(') 
rt 
n 
0 ::,:;, 
{/) (1) 
rt n 

nl 
-(/)- �- 

0 
::i 

a, 
::i a, 
0.. ..... 
ro r 
..... (1) 

0 
r a, 
::i 
0.. -, 
0 
n zr 
(1) 

w 
0 _o 
0 
0 
0 

\.D - v, - N 
0 .....,. 
-...J 

� 
N w 
N 
..i:,. 

CJ) 

0 
0 
0 

51' 
0 
0 
0 

w 
,o 
0 
0 
0 

.....,. 
N W lJ1 
,U1 ,o O 
000 000 000 

N .....,. 
..!--' 
0 
0 
0 

w 
,m 
0 
0 0 

WWNNNNNNNN 
t-->0\.000-...J(J)U,.i:,.WN 

"Tl 
(I) 

-Ill- � 
00 c 
O ri1 O v, 

0 --- 0 $ 
(I) 

-l n 
0 ::r 
..+ QJ 
QJ :::, 

-Ill- Gl 
� "I/l- 
o I-' O N 
0 ,o 

1--1-�1---+�+-��+-��+---+�-+----10 0 
0 
0 

::,:;, 
I u, 

\.D - N 
-...J - N 
0 .....,. 
-...J 

Page 99 of 142



Page 100 of 142



f--' 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

"1:l ., 
0 
(t) 
('") 
rt 
n 
0 
(/) 

:!' � 
::::, 

c 
::::, 
�: 
ro 
(/) 

'Tj 
><: 
N 
N 

N 
w 

� 
N 
1-', 

N 
N 

� 
N 
0 
N 
>--'- 

....., 
0 
() 
0 
0 

w 
0 
0 
-....:i 
00 

....., 
? 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
0 
() 
0 
0 

....., 
0 
() 
0 
0 

....., 
? 
0 
0 
0 

....., 
? 
0 
0 
0 

N u, 
<, 
N 
CJ) 

lD 
<, 
N 
-..J - N 
0 ....., 
-..J 

Page 101 of 142



Page 102 of 142



--+ 
0 
::'i: 
:::J 
0 ....., 
z 
� 
3 
n.> .., 
;>(" 
CD 
.-+ 
I 

N-' ....>. ....>. ........ ....>. ....>. ....>. ....>. ....>. ....>. 

WN-' 0 <D CX) --.J 0) oi .i:,.. ,(,.) N ....>. 0 <D CX) --.J 0) oi .i:,.. s» N ....>. - ti:I � .� � Vl Vl � � � � � .-t � rt> rt> 
('!) ru ru ru :f :f ru ru ru ru ru 0 

El � ..... ...,. ..... ...,. ...,. ..... ..... ..... ...., 
= rt> (1) rt> rt> rt> rt> rt> rt> fl) fl) t:Tl 0 Vl � � � � .... � <, � <; .... ,g .-t ("') "TI "TI (I) 
ct) Vl Vl Vl � Vl Vl Vl 

0 fl) rt> rt> 0 fl) rt> rt> fl) 0 ,a· 0 "O 
C' -· :f :f :f ru .... :f s :f :f ""1 � = ..... 0. 0. s ('!) 
('!) fl) fl) rt> fl) fl) rt> fl) fl) Vl ::+ � .... .... .... ""1 -0 � .... ""1 ""1 -0 � n >1 ---- c c !:. ('!) � "TI "TI c 0 "TI -0 c >1 s 0 0 0 0 .... 
'C 'C ""1 !:!. ""1 c !:!. 

� 'C - ru .... a. ru .... - (I) -· 0. .... 0. ;::;: i:t. Ill ...+ ::::l .... ::::l p.. = n � -0 -0 -< -0 -c 0 
('!) - < c c "TI < c "TI <:! = r! 
p.. :;,::, ru 0 ru 0 Q .... 0 ""1 0 .... e: = ct) 0 0. 0 0. 

Vl ::::l -0 ::::l -0 c. 
� 

ct) c * c Q 

� 
(I) .... - 

co ct) * ;i;.. 
.......... "1'1 :::0 n ><: .... = N N N N N rt> N N N N N ..c 
I.O = 0 0 0 0 0 --+, 0 0 0 0 0 c:: ('!) 

0 ....>. 0 0 0 c 0 ....>. 0 0 0 Ill 
s:l, ""1 .... 

.i:,.. .i:,.. <D --.J .i:,.. CJ'" .i:,.. .i:,.. <D --.J .i:,.. >1 >1 
('!) 

Vl p.. � ::r 
fl) n.> w w w w w w 0. ti') w w w w ...... 

OJ N CD 
....>. 0 -, 
0 I)) ..... (,.) ri 0 
01 .i:,.. ....>. N N iii en N ....>. ....>. N co 0 ,, CD (,.) .i:,.. 01 ....>. N <D :I 0 01 01 01 0 Vl 

.-t ('!) -0 
a:: <D CX) 0 N <D ....>. 0 0 0 0 0 0 'C n.> 

01 .i:,.. 0 01 N --.J (t) 0 0 0 0 0 - ;:::J. 
� 

Ill 
--.J N 0 0 .i:,.. 0) 0 0 0 0 0 n 3 

('!) 
('!) 

<, !3 CD 
a:: '"C ('!) ::J .., ...... 
0 0 N N N N N ><: = p.. 'C 0 0 0 0 0 ('!) .-t 
('!) ....>. N N ....>. ....>. Ill - 0 0) 0) ....>. <D 0) >1 
<, Vl ><: ct) 

('!) i:;l. - ll) 
>1 "7:1 a:: = --.J --.J co .I>, <D = 01 01 (,.) .... 

O> - s:l, --.J --" 01 ....>. ('!) >-3 -· 0 (,.) N --" 01 Ill = 0 .I>, N w ....>. ()'Q :a (JQ ('!) 

(I) 

ffl ffl ffl ffl -fF) .., 0 
ffl ><: ....., 
--" t"r.1 ,, _.i,.. .... 

--.J --" --" _N N co .c 
('!) 0 C,J • N 'k, .......... = 'C 0 0 0 
I)) N w 01 01 co co .... ..... 
::j' 

.I>, 0 0 .I>, .I>, I.O "O 
"1:l s .......... >1 a:: ('!) ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl .., 

(I) 
Ill $. ffl ><: = --" .... 

0 _.i,.. .... r! = .-t c:: 0 --.J --" --" N N I.O 
('!) ti) 0 (,.) N N 0 0 .......... 

= ><: N w 01 01 co co N 
Ill ('!) .I>, 0 0 .I>, .I>, 0 

= Ill ....._ 
n >1 
('!) ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl .., 
ri ffl ><: 

--" .. 
0 .I>, N 
ti) 

0 --.J --" --" _N N 0 .-t 
0 (,.) • N .N 0 0 .......... 
N w 01 01 co co N 

.I>, 0 0 .I>, .I>, .... 
ffl ffl ffl ffl -fF) 

� ffl 
tT'l --" 
ti) .I>, N 
i:t. 0 --.J --" --" N _N ..... 
!3 0 C,J N N 0 0 N -I N (,.) 0, 0, co co 
ll) .I>, 0 0 .I>, .I>, N -, 
.-t c 
('!) 

' 0 p.. ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl "'.rj '?\ 
0 ffl (/) .... --" ><: 
Vl .I>, N 
'C 0 --.J --" --" _N N N 
0 0 C,J N N 0 0 N Vl N w 01 01 co co 
Ill .I>, 0 0 .I>, .I>, w 
C' - ('!) ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl "'.rj < ffl >< ll) --" - _.i,.. N c:: 0 --.J --" --" _N N w 
('!) 0 (,.) N N 0 ·a N N (,.) 01 01 co co .j:o. .I>, 0 0 .I>, .I>, 

I • ,,··!,'I 

Page 103 of 142



G) 

0 

)> 

n 

Vl ::::, 
(1) () OJ .., 
::::, (1) 

G) � 
Cl> ...... 

(1) 
(JQ. � 

OJ rn 
r+ 
(1) 
...... 
Vl c 
"O 
"O 
-< 

8 
Cl> 
rt 
·-...) 

OJ 

� c 
0. -c 
r+ ,::::: 0 0 
0. rt 
(1) (1) 
r+ (/) 
(1) '"1 
.., (1) 

3 hl 
:J �- 
(1) Cl> 
q- p... 
Cl> 
OJ 
r+ 
3 
Cl> 
::::, 
r+ 
OJ 
::::, 
0. 

N 
0 p 
0 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

N 
0 
,o 
0 
0 
0 

N 
0 p 
0 
0 
0 

N 
0 
p 
0 
0 
0 

N 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

� 
0 
rt 
II) - 

N N 0 0 0 0 o o 0 0 
0 0 

N 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 � 

I 
N 

>-l 
0 

§ 
0 ...... 
z 
(D 

� s 
Sl.l 
'"1 � 
(D 
rt 

Page 104 of 142



r 

G) 

I 

)> 

n 

� 0 
OJ 
rt 
Cl) .... 

Vl s IB OJ 
::s ::s 
G) ;:o m 
.... Cl) 
(1) "O 

citi', OJ 
() 
(1) 

3 
m 
::s "Tl 
rt 

s 
(1) 
rt . ..., 

� � 
�c 
� � 
0 ::::l O OJ 
0.. s 
)> m 
(/) 0 
(/) ....., 

� [ 
OJ OJ ::s ::::l Jg c, 
Cl) 

3 :i. 
Cl) () ::s (1) 
rt O 
;:o ....., 
m 
"O c 
0 0 
.... rt 
rt (1) 

(/) ., 
m 
() 
m �- 
m 
p.. 

,..... 
l.11 
,o 
0 
0 
0 

I-' 
l.11 
0 
() 
0 
0 

,..... 
l.11 
0 
() 
0 
0 

I-' 
l.11 _o 
0 
0 
0 

.v,. .v,. 

,..... 
l.11 
0 
() 
0 
0 

.v,. .v,. 

,..... I-' 
l.11 l.11 _o O 
0 () 
0 0 0 0 

.v,. .v,. 

,..... ,..... 
l.11 l.11 o _o 
() 0 0 0 
0 0 

,..... 
l.11 _o 
0 
0 
0 

,..... ,..... 
l.11 l.11 
,o O 
0 () 
0 0 0 0 

� 
0 
lit - 

� 
I w 

..., 
0 

§ 
0 ....., 
z 

� 
OJ 

* (1) 
rt 

co - N 

" - N 
0 
f-' 

" 

Page 105 of 142



Page 106 of 142



lD - N w N -..J w N N N N N N N N N p p p p p p p I-' p p lD ()() -..J 0) lJ1 � w N I-' - p 0 lD ()() -..J 0) lJ1 � w N p 0 lD ()() -..J 0) lJ1 � w N I-' 0 
N 
0 ("') 0 tT1 (;") td n (;") :;f � w "D -l -l ::) ro -l � 
I-' 0 r+ :::s '"1 0 (I) ro ro :::, :::, 0 .n :::, 
-..J e ::, r+ p.i :::s :::s 

.., .., ro ro r+ c ro 
ro (1) :::l ...... citi" r- ...... ...... VI 0 C') )> 

0, (1) VI 0 3' 3' OQ e '"1 '"1 r+ r+ '"1 :::, ...... ....., 
'"1 ro "D OJ (1) 

V> VI � � '"d r+ Vl z g:. ::) ,r+ 3 (I) :::l VJ 
CD '"1 .., I 

r+ ::) "D -c � '"d 
:;::$ en· :;i::, 0 "C :::l 0 fj;" (i) .., "D ro (1) cr' .., 

(1) 'Tl p.i _'""'.l 0 (I) ::) :;;,:;, '"1 0 
n (1) Vl § (i) (i) 8 p.i < � r+ 0 � a 
CD 'Tl (1) () 

.., ::, n (i) Vl (I) (I) ...... n '"1 (I) Q. '"'Cl 
'Tl c � 0, rt (1) (1) 0 (1) 3 .., ;:+ ..., ro '"1 OJ 

� :::l 'Tl 0 � '"d 0 (1) 0 "C 0 (0 
0, 

(1) � rn ....., � c ::) 
.., 0 c 

Vl p_. 
'Tl :::1 ..+ ::n � ..+ ..+ ..+ < 3 c 3" '"1 

(') VI VI :::, (1) 0:, p_. p.i (1) (1) .., �. :::l 8 Vl 8 (I) �. 0, V> (I) ::) O'Q w ::) 
..+ p.i r+ (1) Q. (1) 0 O'Q 
(1) ::, 

:::l (1) :::l 3 ::) (') 
::) -c Vl 

-(/). 0, r+ (1) (1) ,...,. 
"Tl w :::s n 0 (I) 

-< ;:::;: (I) .., (I) 
()() (1) 

.., Vl (I) .., !:!". p p (1) (1) ::) (1) r+ ,...,. 
VI 0 

lD 8 r+ (I) V> ,...,. 
0 - to 0 0, (i) VI r+ zr ;, 0 ::) 

N 0 
·-...) ::) (1) 0 (1) 

Q. � 0 p) (I) ,...,. -l ...... 0 '"1 r+ (1) 

§ (1) ::) zr ::, x :::, (I) (I) 

s n (1) (1) vi' ro ::) Vl 

o c � ,...,. "D Q. c � 0 "D >-3 ::i' "D 0 c c 0 (I) :::, 
r+ 3 � (I) O'Q 

� � .., 
(1) VI < (I) 
V> "D :::1 (1) Q. :::, 
'"1 8 ::;) 0 (I) (1) (1) 
(1) O'Q ....., < x 0.. '.Z 

t"3 (') (1) VI z ro (') ::) rn 
(1) r+ 3 (1) (t) 

>--' �:f ·-...) r+ ::) 

0 (I) (1) e-+ Q. Vl � ...., r+ § (1) 0 ro p ..+ 

0 N (1) a· ::) Q. lD (I) 8 p.. er ..... .� ::) :" ro ..+ 
()() !:!" . 

� >--' .., p.i VI :::; YJ 0 � - w '"1 ::) (1) "D (1) -l ""f 
---l iii' 

:,;-' (1) .., :::; @'" (1) (') (1) 3 "Tl 
er r+ iii' c 

•-...) Vl "D ........ - ro .., �- -< ..., c 0 (""'_) c 3 < 
(I) 3 "D 

(1) � � 
::) (I) ::;; Vl 3 ""f "'O 

'Tl 0.. Q. � (I) (1) 0 ...... 
..,:: .., ro ::) ::) -· ........ 

(1) :;f t:::l ,...,. (t) � 
� 0.. 

Q. VI - 00 c (1) p.i G) (') 
r+ ........ � n n (1) ::0 8 � (1) (I) 

VI \0 ::) 

:;f 
(t) "'O 

I 
� ""f 

p = 0 
-(/). -(/). 

(t) � 
� r,:i (t) 

........ 8 CJ1 � 
p p (t) 

w w I 0 = 0 _o ""f ........ 
b 0 8 � 
0 0 
0 0 ""f 

0 

-(/). -(/). 
(JQ 

""f 
� 

I-' I-' 
8 

w w ,,-..., 
_o _o (""'_) 
0 0 s 0 0 
0 0 ,., 

-(/). -(/). 

I-' p z w w p ,o 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

'"d .., 
0 
(0 I 
() 7' 

( 
rt 

>--l 
(') :;f 

0 0 

§ (/l (I) 

,!" VI ..... 
0 

(1) 

..., tA- � 
z (I) 

(l) 
..... 

§ 
(1) w .., 

co 
Ill 0 

,- 
., 
;,;-- 0 
(l) 0 
rt 0 
n 
'"Cl Page 107 of 142



-Ell-Ell-Ell-Ell-Ell-Ell� 

N 
--"-.J_._,.NN O 
01(,.)NNO� <, N 0 <,.> 01 01 co u, 
o.i>.oo.i>.-.JI-" 

c» 
WW-"-"NW 
0 0 CJ1 CJ1 CJ1 N 
000000 000000 000000 

OJ w 
iii 
:::, 
(') 
<D 

CX> .J:>. __,. N 
01 __,. _.J:>. CJ1 __,. N 
01 01 co o N co 
-"O.J:>.OCJlN 
O)ONOO.J:>. o 

-Ell ..... 
0) 
0 
co 
01 

-Ell ..... 
Ol 
0 co 
01 

0 
N 
.j:>. 

'"Cl 
""1 
0 

't:I 
0 
Ill 
CD Q.1---+--l--+-+---1i---+--+--l--+-+�l---+--+--l--+-+---1i---+-+--l--+--I 
'Tl = = Q. s· 

l1Q 

("') 
0 :,::, 
ti) (!) 
rt 't:S - w n l---+--4�+----+--+--11--+--+--4�+----+--+�l--+--+--4�-l--+--+--l�+--l(!) e 

(!) 
t::l 
rt 

-, 
...... c o 
A° 
(/) 

� ru 
(/) ...... 
(1) 

� 
� 
(1) ...... -Ell-Ell-Ell-Ell-Ell-Ell� 

_,.-.J__,._.NN� 
01WNNO-OltJ 

g�gJgJ��w 

{fl -Ell -Ell -Ell -Ell -Ell � 

__,. -.J __,. __,. N N N 
�W-NNOO)� 

o�gJgJ��.i. 

-Ell ..... 
0) 

0 co 
01 

-Ell ..... 
0) 

Cl co 
01 

-Ell -Ell -Ell -Ell -Ell -Ell >zj 

� � � a � _,.-.J_._.NN� 
i,,i' co 01 ·w N N o m -<, 
� 01 OW01010'.>0)� W O-l>-00-l>--.J 
g1---f�+---+--ll--+---+--+�+--+---+--l�+---+--+�+--+---+--l�+---+--4-�1--+---l 
Q. 
0 .... 
ti) 

't:l 
0 
ti) 

� _1---f�+---+--l�+---+--+�+---+--+--f�+---+--+�+---+--+--f�+--+--4-�1---+--l 
(!) 

i 
i= 
(!) 

Page 108 of 142



-l 
0 
� :::, 
0 
---+, 

z 
CD 
� 
3 
ru -, � m. 

w co N 
NIN N N N N N N N __. __. -->. __. __. __. __. -->. __. __. c.o co N CJ) 'oi .t,.. w N __. __. 0 c.o. co ---1 0) <J1 .t,.. w N -->. 0 c.o co ---1 0) <J1 .t,. w N __. 0 . 

I N __. -->. __. __. __. __. __. __. __. __. )> WN __. 0 co co ---1 0) <J1 .t,. c» N __. 0 c.o co ---1 9) <J1 .t,.. f» N __. 
t:,; - - i:ii Cl Cl 

� 

(/') 

� � � 
'"d '"d '"d � >"d 

� 
� ::0 [;i ..+ n, - (1) g 0 i:: i:: i:: �� 0 0 

i:ii = 3 3 3 (1) ...... 
!3 G CJ CJ CJ g, 0 

= (1) � -e -e "d H) 

� 
tr1 e 

V) n ..... 0 w N ....... 0 § .c ro 
..+ ro a a :,t> l.>J N ...... 

� E:. "O 0 ..... 0 0 t:,; [ 'O 0 ..... ..... '"d ,:I) 
C' = � 

0 s n, 
>-J § V) ""1 

(D C'"l ..... (/') 

� 
ro q .... 

"1 i:ii $>) (1) 

@ = 3 (D ::l � t::, ... �· OJ 
'C "C "' � 

Ill ro ..... (ti' (1) = o. - ...+ ::l t:,; = I)) i:ii ..... o p.. 0 
(") - o» 

� 
< = r. n, � � ro 

i:i. ;::;.· e: s· n, t::, 
Vl o l'.2. 
Cb 

:::,- 
I� 'Tl 

ro 
� � 

V> 
,- ,- 

..... Cb :i,. 
co 'T1 N 

(") � <, = N N N N N N N N N N ...... N tv N ....... ,J:J ..... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -o 0 0 0 <o i:: (D 0 
'° = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0\ ...... ...... 0 0\ ..... I)) 

� 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -o --..) 0\ 0 so "1 "1 n, 
i:i. - 

-ff) €,"! (;,'} (;,'} (;,'} {i'l E,13 E,13 &') &') {i'l {i'l &') E,13 &') � __. ru 
0 ....... ("') (/) 
N 0 " 

..... 0 
_.i:,.. 0\ ...... ...... N ...... ....... ....... 0\ 0\ 0\ ...... N ....... N V) (1) 

_v. 0\ l.>J 0 ...... ....... ....... N N N N 0 -o Vl ..+ � � s= __. 0 0 00 "o "u. V\ V\ 0 0 0 V\ "o 0 0 w 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - ru 
I)) ---1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

I)) .-+ 

� (") (1) 
(D ..., - n, !3 <, 

"ti s= n, 
0 '"1 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N � = i:i. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n, ..+ m 
n, "C N .j>. N N N N N co (,.) co N co (,.) N !:l - 0 0, 0 0 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, N N 0, 

......... Vl � Cb 
(D � ,- - I)) 
"1 'T1 s= = = ..... - � n, � "Tl ..... kfc: = :a (1Q n, 

ro - 
fl') (fl fl') fl') {fl {fl fl') fl') {fl {fl fl') {fl {fl fl') {fl 'Tl 0 

� ....., 

" 0, ..... tT:I 
n, ....,. --.J (,.) .!" .... .... ...,. 0) _m _m ....,. ...,. _--.J N co � G) 

"CS "o, rv 0) ".i:,.. N -N .N N co ():) ():) <,.) <,.) c.o --.J ......... = �. 0 N 0) 0, N --.J --.J --.J ():) ():) ():) ():) (,.) (,.) --.J ..... .... 
.j>. N --.J c.o N ():) ():) ():) c.o c.o c.o c.o (,.) (,.) ():) '° "O 

"1 "ti 3 - ......... "1 s= (D {fl (fl fl') {fl fl') fl') fl') {fl {fl {fl {fl {fl fl') {fl {fl 'Tl ro 
I)) < ....:: = ..... c5· = 0, ..... r. I ,.... i:: ....,. --.J <,.) .!'-' .... ...,. ....,. 0) 0) _m ....,. .... --.J N I.O 
n, V) -0, -N 0) ".i:,.. N N .N rv co co ():) <,.) ·w c.o --.J ........ 
= � 0 N 0) 0, N --.J --.J --.J ():) ():) a, ()) (,.) <,.) --.J N 
I)) n, .j>. N --.J c.o N ()) ():) ()) c.o c.o c.o c.o (,.) <,.) ()) 0 

= I)) ,__ >-- 
(") "1 
(D fl') (fl fl') fl') {fl {fl fl') fl') fl') {fl {fl (fl {fl {fl {fl 'Tl 
("') 

,- ....:: 
0 CJl N 
V) ---' --.J <,.) .!" .... ...,. ....,. 0) 0) pl ....,. .... _--.J .!" 0 0 - ..+ 

CJl -N 0) ".i:,.. N -N N N co co ()) (,.) <,.) c.o --.J ........ ..., 
0 N 0) CJl N --.J --.J --.J ()) a, a, ():) <,.) (,.) --.J N (D 
.j>. N --.J c.o N ()) ():) ()) c.o c.o (D c.o (,.) (,.) ()) ..... co· 

:r - fl') fl') fl') {fl (fl {fl fl') fl') (fl {fl fl') (fl (A fl') (fl 
.-+ 

>,rj 0 
tr1 >< ::::, 
Vl CJl N (/) c_ :::,; ....,. --.J <,.) N .... ---' ....,. 0) 0) _m ...,. ---' --.J .!" 

.CJl -N ".i:,.. � .N -N .N co co <,.) 1--' .-+ 

!3 0) a, (,.) c.o --.J i::l ..., 
0 N 0) 0, --.J --.J --.J ():) ()) a, ():) (,.) (,.) --.J (1) 

I)) .j>. N --.J CD N ()) ():) ()) c.o c.o CD c.o (,.) <,.) ()) N (1) 
..+ .-+ - n, 
i:i. fl') {fl (fl (fl {fl (A fl') fl') (fl {fl (fl fl') (A (fl -El) >,rj 

"'O 

9- 
c >< 3 

V) CJl N "Q. ;,::; "CS ....,. --.J (,.) N ---' ....,. ....,. 0) pl _m ....,. ---' _--.J N N 
0 01 N 0) ".i:,.. -N N N .N co ()) ():) (,.) (,.) c.o --.J i::l :::, 
V) 0 N 0) CJl N --.J --.J --.J ():) ()) a, ():) (,.) <,.) --.J co 
I)) .j>. N --.J c.o N ():) ():) a, c.o c.o c.o (0 (,.) (,.) ():) f.,,l 

C' (/) ,__ - ..... 
(D (fl fl') (fl (fl (fl (A fl') fl') {fl {fl fl') (fl (fl {fl (fl >,rj ru 
< .-+ 

I)) i-< a· - 0, N :::, r i:: ---' --.J <,.) N ....,. ---' ---' _m _m _m ___. .... --.J N f.,,l 
(D 01 -N 0) ".i:,.. N -N .N N ():) ():) a, ·w (,.) (0 ---.J i::l 0 N 0) 0, N --.J --.J --.J a, a, a, ():) (,.) <,.) --.J 

-l;> N --.J c.o N ():) ()) a, c.o (0 (0 (0 (,.) (,.) ():) ... 

Page 109 of 142



' 
I 

(t) I (") ;;,<; rt 

>-3 n � 0 0 

§ (/) Q) 

:t v, 
rt 

0 
(1) 

...., -Vl- � 
z Q) 

ct> 
..... 

� 
(1) ..... 

'° r 
'1l ? 
'"1 ;,:;-- 0 
ct> 0 
rt 0 
n 
� 

ill - N w w N N N N N N N N N N -..J I-' I-' I-' I-' I-' I-' I-' I-' I-' I-' ill 00 -..J 0) lJ1 .i::, w N I-' - I-' 0 ill 00 -..J 0) lJ1 .i::, w N I-' 0 ill 00 -..J 0) lJ1 +'> w N I-' 0 
N 
0 n 0 trJ C') td n C') rn � w Q) (1) (1Q ;,:i I-' 

. ' I-' 0 g. ::::s '"1 0 Q) (1) � rt 
(1) (1) (1) ,'. 

:--J 8 rt Q) ::::s ::::s C!9. ...... -0 n � "D 

·' · (1) (1) ::::s p.. rt (1) � !:""' ...... 
,(/) 0 Q) rt (1) Q) C') :i::, ' 

8 '"1 .., rt .., ...... ......, .., n ..... ..... (1) I• 
(/) (/) � 'lj (1) (/) z g. ri' Q) ..... (/) 

� .rn rt - " rt ::::s 'lj 
(l) .., .., 

0 0 (1) Q) Q) (1) � 
= v," :::0 >Tj 0 ..... ::::s v," � ..... 0 � .., er' .., 

(1) rn Q) _>-3 v, ..... Q. 0 
t"l (1) c Q. � s (l) 

(/) (l) v, s Q) (1) ., vi' CY 
>Tj (1) ::::s (") �. � .., .., Q) c ..... 

� 
(l) 

'Tl c � c. rt 3 (1) 0 
..... (1) 'cl (") (1) 0 :::!. 0:: "D .., rt OJ 

� ::::s 'Tj Q) 0 � 'O v, 
CY 0 (t) 

p.. (1) � rt ......, � "D 
Q) o, >---3 

� 
c � n >Tj ::i (1) ::n c ..... (1Q 

...... 
n (1) c. c o, .., 

Sl.l (1) 3 5· !" ttl 
::::s � s v, (t) 

(/) (/) s "D � (/) ..... 
p.. ..... ..... ..... 

cm· Sl.l � (1) � (1) 0 c 
::::s ::::s (1Q ..0 3 n n 

::::r c, (1) rt n c ..... ..... ::::s 0 v, (1) c 
I-' ' rt (/) ..... "D ..... 
-..J -0 (1) (1) !tr Q) 3 

(1) (1) - (1) s ..... >< v, 
(1) 0.. a· Q) 

I-' ttl ..... rt (1) Q) 

00 n . ...., 0 = � 3 � e.. (1) ..... .;-+ "D Q. 

§ J � ..... ro (1) 
0 

o -(/)- (1) (1) v, ..0 
(D ill c >-3 "O Q) c 

0 0 0 ii, ..... -0 
b rt § n (1) "D ,C (1) (1) 3 (/) 

� 0 (/) ..... (1) 3 
0 .., s n (1) (1) Sl.l "D 

(1) 0 0 "D � ::::s z ......, ..... ..... (/) n (1) ..... Q) 
C') ..... rn 

(1) rt z 0 ..... Q) Q) � �- . ...., 
(1) Q. rt .., rt � '""3 � (1) n rt !!:. (1) 0 ::::r 0 

0 p... a Q. � (1) � a rt ........ Q) n 
� Q) � ..... "D 3 � 

C> .., 
Q. 

(1) c '"'l N :,:;- rt 3 "O 
".p.. (l) � (1) ..... 

� rt c v, �. 0 ., 
........ . ...., (/) rt < ..... 
l;.) ..... Q) � (1) 
-....) (1) ..... (1Q 3 o a.. _vi v, 

rt (1) � � (1) Q) � ..0 "D '"'l "C ..... rt rt 
'Tl c 0 a· •V, 0 ...... 
....:: "D :s. � c..... ...+- 

3 v, t:::, � � � ..... a. Q) n - .i::, .i::, co (1) (1) Q) rt (1) G) ...+- � 
lJ1 lJ1 � � � �· a. �= b b ..... _rt (1) a. c 

l/) 

� 0 0 '° :E 3· � "C 
0 0 ,.Q '"'l 

I 0 .i::, = � < 
00 � 
...+- a � � 

I 0 = ""l ...+- a � 
'"'l 
0 

(fCl 
'"'l 
� a 

,,-..., 
(j 
� 
� .._. 

Page 110 of 142



(/) 

� 
I 

01 

z 
� 
3 
Ol .., 
7-" 
(D 
..-+ 

I 

0 
·-u 

N N N ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. (0 co --.J 0) 01 � (.,J N ->. 
0J N ....,. N ->. 9 (0 co -:-.J 0) 01 � (.,J N ->. 0 I 

'' - trJ 
� 

tJ::j ?=' � "O 'O o tJ 0 tJ::j ?=' � trJ [/) [/) [/) tJ tJ "O "O � 
'/ � 

11) 0 0 0 0 g 0 0 0 0 0 < 0 8' 8' 8' 0 0 §' §' g,. s ..... 0 (/) 'g � ::;; � �· 0 ::;; � c:,) 
() >- 1f ....., 

� < 0 H) >- () c, p.. o, s· l:Tl � s-. � c:,) q (Jq r,q (JQ � � � � e. Vl o 
� � .... .... o n· 0 0 0 ..... Ct) � () a f:!l 0 0 0 0 

0 a 0 .... .... a >-l >-l C) .... .... = 0 "'O 
0::, () .!g .... .... s· ..... i i .... s· s· [/) � c:,) 'O � C" "O N ....... (Jq = "O s· (JQ (Jq 8' = :3 11) 

11) � § � "' {fQ § 8. r» 0 Vl ::i - ..... "O o, "O l c, (") 
"'I � 0 .... c:i to to f:!l ] (Jq (IQ 0 = "'I 8 11) ::s g. s· s 0 §: g. 0 0 0 0 c:i ,.. ,a· 

't:I (/) (/) Ul Ill - (") 0 "' ::;; ::;; l i !:. = ct. Ct) 
I).) ct> Q. ::s "O =· 0 0 tv ....... c.: Q.. 0 (") .... 

] 
.... .... < = rt 11) ::s lrQ N ....... =· CD Q. 

('"') N ....... IIQ e: s· 
� 

....... (') 

'Tl ;- 
-< VI - .... ;i.. co (") 
<, N N N N N N N N N ->. ->. N N N N N N N N N N ....>. ..0 -< .... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0 (0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0 = 11) 
\!) ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. co 0) ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. ->. 0) ..... I).) 

--.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J 01 (0 --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J --.J (0 "'I "'I 
11) 
Q. 

{;fl � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � {1'3 {1'3 � � � � ->. 

0 
0) 

N ....... N U\ � (/) 
0 ::r:, ....... � ....... .p.. N w ....... 0\ U\ .p.. >--' w .p.. U\ .p.. N N tv N N N N (I) 

-...) >--' N ....... s- -'° "U\ _N 0 0 w --.) 0 00 00 .p.. 00 00 00 00 Vl 11) 
->. � :§: 

:s: (.,J 0 0 0 0 v, 0 0 0 0 0 ".._i "u, 0 ".._i "-.1 0 ".._i ".._i ".._i "-.1 't:I - 0) 
I).) --.J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 U\ 0 0 v, U\ 0 U\ U\ v, U\ I).) .-+ 

:i;' 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (") (I) 
11) .., 

11) s - "ti :s: 11) 

0 "1 N N N N N N N N N ...... N N N N N N N N N N -< = Q. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11) � 
11) � 01 (,) .p.. .p.. N (,) (,) (,) (,) CD .p.. .p.. .p.. .p.. .p.. (,) .p.. .p.. .p.. .p.. I).) - 0 N -..J N N -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J CD N N N N N N N N N N "'I - Vl -< ct> 
11) Po - I).) 
"'I 'Tl 

= :s: 
::s .... - Po 11) ...., .... I).) 
::s (JQ '< 

(1Q 11) "'O 
Ct) 

ffl -(fl ffl ffl ffl -Y'I -Y'I -Y'I -Y'I ffl ffl -Y'I ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl -Y'I 
� 

0 ...... 
::r:, .p.. ...... .... tr1 

CX) N ...... ...... ...... N N ...... _-..J ...... N 0, ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... co ..0 
11) N -0, -01 � (;) ".i,,., 0) - = "C ...... 0) 0 01 01 0 01 ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 
I).) N .p.. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 01 0 N 01 01 0 01 0, 01 01 .... .... .... N (,) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 \!) "'O 
"'I 'ti 8 - "'I :s: (1) ffl -(fl -Y'I -Y'I -Y'I -(fl ffl -(fl ffl ffl -Y'I {fl -Y'I -Y'I ffl ffl -(fl {fl {fl {fl 

� 
Ct) 

I).) ;S. ::s s· 0 .p.. ...... .... rt � = CX) N ...... ...... ...... N N ...... _-..J ...... N 01 ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... \!) 
11) Vl -N ...... 01 0) 0 01 01 0 01 01 :...i (,) ...,,. ...... ...... 0) ->. ...... ...... ...... - = -< N .p.. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 01 0 N 01 01 0 01 01 01 01 N 
ll) 11) N (,) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

= I).) >-- 
(") "'I 
11) ffl -Y'I ffl ffl -Y'I -Y'I {fl -Y'I ffl -Y'I ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl {fl -Y'I 'Tl 
� -<: 
0 .p.. 

.. ...... N 
Vl � CX) N ...... ...... ...... N N ...... -..J ...... N 01 ...... ...... ...... ->. ...... ...... ...... 0 � -N ...... -01 0) 0 01 01 0 01 01 � (,,,) ...,,. ...... ...... 0) ...... :..... ...... ...... - N .p.. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 01 0 N 01 01 0 01 01 01 01 N 0) 

N (,) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .... (/) 
.-+ 
(I) 

-Y'I -Y'I -(fl -Y'I -Y'I -Y'I ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl {fl ffl ffl -Y'I ffl ffl -Y'I ffl ffl >rj :§: 
t'1 ,of!'! 0) 

.-+ 
Vl .p.. ...... N (I) 
ct. CX) N ...... ...... ...... N N ...... _-..J ...... N 01 ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... .., 
s N ...... -01 0) 0 b, 01 0 01 0, � (,) ...,,. ...... ...... 0) ...... ...... ...... ...... N -, 

N .p.. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 01 0 N 01 01 0 01 01 01 01 
ll) N (,) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N .., 
� (I) 
11) 0) 
Q. ffl -Y'I ffl -Y'I {fl -Y'I ffl -Y'I ffl -Y'I ffl ffl ffl ffl -(fl ffl -(fl ffl {fl -Y'I .-+ 

>rj 3 0 ,of!'! I 

ui' .p.. i ...... (I) 
N ::::, 

't:I CX) N ...... ...... ...... N N ...... -..J ...... N 0, ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... 
N .-+ 

0 N ...... 01 0) 0 01 01 0 01 01 :...i (;) ...,,. ...... ...... 0) ...... ...... ...... ...... N ,, 
Vl N .p.. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 01 0 N 01 01 0 01 01 01 01 

� N (,) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 w 0) - Q. 
11) ffl ffl {fl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl -(fl -(fl -(fl ffl ffl -Y'I >rj 

;::::;: 

� 
'< ,of!'! I - .p.. ...... N ->. 

= CX) N ...... ...... ...... _N _N ...... -..J ...... N 01 ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... ...... w 
11) -N ...... b, 0) 0 b, 01 0 01 01 � -(,) ...,,. ...... ...... 0) ...... ...... ...... ...... N N .p.. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 01 0 N 01 01 0 01 01 01 01 

N (,) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 """ 

Page 111 of 142



-1 
� ::::, 
0 
--+, 

z 
(D 

� 
3 ru -, 
;>'\'" m. 

: N .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... 
(0 (X) -..J CJ) (J1 .i,.. co N .... 

(.,.) N--'- 0 (0 � -..J CJ) (J1 .i,.. (.,.) N .... 0 - tTl 
� 

C/J tp � :s: :s: � � i � i tp tp tp (') 
r1' 0:, IP � g 8. s s "' "' i 0 0 0 & !3 II) (') >- � 0 (J) � � � � - q ......, g g .... 0 
Vl II) o ..... (l) (l) (l) (l) � 2. ..... 
r1' = o· >- 0 0 C/J C/J ..... ..... t:rl 0 C/J C/J C/J 0 n e. "O "O c c c c c w N ...... to ..c (t) 
O" (t) "Cl (l) � 0. 0. 8. =· "O ..... 0. 0. 0. 0 IP ,..., § a a (IQ (IQ (IQ (IQ (IQ i 't:J ,:l,) 
'"I = (l) (l) (l) (l) (l) !3 IP 

(l) (l) (l) Cl) >-S IP ("') en 0. 0. "Cl "Cl "'C1 "'C1 "'CJ IP q ,.,. 
't:J II) < < i i i i i 

(IQ a 9 ...... .... 
I)) � e. "' � 't:I n ,..., r i:t. (t) 
IP .-+ <: N ...... = c.. II) (l) t..,) N ...... Q. 0 .... - N .... < = rt 
= � CTI 

� 
(t) e: 
(/) a. 

.... Cl) CTI 

00 � "' 
<, (t) .... - \0 'T1 ;... i:: = N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N n -<:: ,.c 

,::).. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 i::: IP .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... !!l -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J '"I 
IP c.. 

w w w tn tn tn tn {;fl tn tn tn tn w {;fl w tn 

.... � (""l 
� 0 .... 0 ru 

N (0 .i,.. (J1 N .i,.. .... .... N N N N N .i,.. .i,.. .i,.. en I)) .i,.. _.i,.. .... (.,.) _-..J (,,.) co co CJ) CJ) (0 (0 (0 (X) _o::, (X) Cl) .-+ 
::i;' r1' ::,:, (D 
IP .... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 IP s <, co 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 't:I 
� -..J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - ru 

I)) .-+ 
0 n (D 

c.. IP -, 
IP !3 - <, ..., IP 
-<:: i= N N N N N co N N N N N N N N N -<:: = IP = r1' 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 IP 
I)) p. c.n co c,) .i,. .i,:.. c,) c,) .i,:.. .i,:.. .i,,. .i,. .i,. c» c,) c,) I)) 
'"I s· N -...J N -...J N N N N N N N N -...J -...J -...J '"I 

()'q 

{Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl ffl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl ffl 
� � 

::,:, .... .... (t) 
CD c,) ...... N .... .... ...... ...... 00 

IP -c.n (J) N (J) (J) -...J --...J ......... 0 
't:I CD c.n 0) -...J CX> CX> CX> -...J -...J 
I)) 0) -...J 0 (J) 0 0 0) (J) N N 0 0 0 c.n c.n c.n .... ...... .... N .... 0 -...J 0 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 \0 l:'l1 
'"I "ti ,.Q ......... '"I 
� IP {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl -YI {Fl {Fl {Fl 

� = ::;, ..... 
s· "O 

0 .... .... 9 r1' i::: CD c,) .... N ...... ...... .... .... \0 
IP Cl) CD 01 01 0) 0) N (J) (J) -...J -...J CX> CX> CX> :--i -...J --...J ......... (t) 

= -<:: (J) -...J 0 0) 0 0 (J) 0) N N 0 0 0 c.n c.n c.n N = I)) IP N .... 0 -...J 0 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 iJ1_ = I)) 
n '"I � 11> {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl -YI {Fl {Fl {Fl "!j 
(""l -<:: ' ru 
0 ....... N U> 
Cl) CD c,) .... N ...... .... .... .... 0 .-+ 
l"t (D 

CD 01 c.n (J) (J) N (J) (J) -...J -...J CX> CX> CX> :--i -...... -...J ......... � 0) -...J 0 (J) 0 0 (J) (J) N N 0 0 0 c.n c.n c.n N 
N ...... 0 -...J 0 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .... ru ....... 

(D 

{Fl {Fl {Fl {Fl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl ffl {Fl ffl -YI ffl {Fl {Fl 
-, 

>zj -I 
trl � -, 
Cl) .... N (D 
i:t. CD _v.> .... N ...... ...... ...... .... .... ru 
!3 CD c.n 01 -(J) (J) N (J) (J) -...J -...J CX> CX> CX> -...J -...J -...J N ....... 

(J) -...J 0 0) 0 0 (J) (J) N N 0 0 0 c.n c.n c.n 3 I)) N ...... 0 -...J 0 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N (D l"t 
IP ::J c.. {Fl {Fl {Fl ffl {Fl ffl ffl {Fl {Fl ffl ffl ffl -YI ffl ffl ffl >zj 

....... 
0 ' � "11 
ui' .... N ru 

't:J CD c,) .... N ...... ...... .... .... Q. 01 01 (J) (J) (J) -...J -...J CX> CX> CX> -...J :--i -...J N 
0 CD (J) N N - 
Vl (J) -...J 0 (J) 0 0 (J) (J) N N 0 0 0 c.n c.n c.n ;:::;.: 
I)) N .... 0 -...J 0 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 vJ '< 
C' I - N IP {Fl ffl ffl ffl {Fl {Fl ffl {Fl {Fl ffl {Fl ffl {Fl ffl ffl ffl >zj 
< -<:: 
I)) .... N - CD c,) ...... N ...... ...... .....>. .....>. 
i::: vJ 
IP CD 01 01 (J) 0) N 0) (J) -...J -...J CX> CX> CX> --...J -...... :--i N (J) -...J 0 (J) 0 0 0) (J) N N 0 0 0 c.n c.n c.n 

N .... 0 -...J 0 0 -...J -...J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ,!:,,. 

Page 112 of 142



-i 
0 
� 
::::J 
0 ...... 

Q 
"U 

,N N N N N __. __. __. __. __. __. __. __. -->. __. co 00 ...__, 0) 01 .t,,.. co N __. . 
W N __. .t,,.. (,) N __. 0 co 00 -...J 10) Ul .t,,.. (,) N __. 0 I - 0:, a a 'Cl'.l co 

� 
Cl'.l > > 1:i:,. > > > > > > L' L' "'O Cl'.l Cl'.l >--3 "'O "'O tzi . I : rt 2' 2' 2' 0 0 [ (1) (1) g ..... ..... ...... I ' ('I) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) ..... 

s � t:l t:l ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... � � o () §' §' (1) - (1) (1) 
o, p. p. &- �- !=l. Pl !=l. �- tt. !=l. !=l. !=l. 0 0 f 0 

Cl) � ..... ..... (JQ (JQ (JQ - (1) (1) t:l t:l Q Q < (1) (1) (1) (1) 5· 5· 5· 5· 5· 5· ..... ..... t .... 
S" = !=l. � 0 0 0 "'O "Cl 

c, p. �. tr:I 0 l"'l 0 0 � � � � t:l t:l t:l t:l t:l t:l t:l t:l t:l Q Q '§ 
O' ('!) ..... ..... 0 0 0 0 > g g >--3 >--3 >--3 >--3 ...., >--3 i s o o g C'D 
('I) ... >--3 p'. p'. p'. p'. t:;· 

� � � � � � 
..... o o d [ � ,a· t:, "O 

= .... (1) (1) "O s· s· s· S' Cl'.l [ [ .... 8i i3 ('I) � 
""l § � s s Cl'.l ;4> '< ':;::' � 

� 
Cl) ..., 

('I) ('") 
C/l 

(JQ (JQ (JQ (JQ 
"d e?.. e?.. z � � � � � - C/l (1) (1) � (1) (") r-t 'C � 8' >--3 >--3 >--3 i s· � !=l. 

� 
� � .... l:S ""l s - "C g1 g1 $? x· x· x· x· x· 5· 5· (1) (1) d d � 

.... .... 
ll) ... -e 

� � � 
(JQ .., ..... Ill 'C n .-+ Cl'.l (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) t:l t:l d d 

.... ..... l:S a. C'D 
(1) () () ..... .... ..... .... .... ..... ':;::' ':;::' = a � '< '< "'O "'O p.. 0 Qi N ...... to to 0\ v. .t,,.. I.;) N ...... 

i i ::l. ::l. (1) (1) !:"! ::;.· o o � = s :,::, () > > 0 0 (D (D < < N ...... 
(1) (1) 

('!) ::,"' t:;· t:;· � � ::'. 
� Vl "'O "'O N ...... 

"'O "'O (1) (1) s s N ...... n 
('!) ..... ..... ;- 

""' � 
-5· -5· N ...... 
t=r s· "d "d II> co - ('!) (JQ (JQ N ...... 

""' 'Tl - IO i= ;i:.. 

= n � I 
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N ..... N N .c J:l,. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 co 0 0 = (1) ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... CXl ..... ..... .... ll) 
-..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J -..J 01 -..J -..J ""l ""l 

�- 

-(;fl ti} ti} ti} f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l ti} f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l f;,'l 
� 

__. 0) 
(/) 

0 
(') 
� 

....+ 
...... ,-..., ...... ,-..., ...... ,-..., 0 (t) :s: N N '-" ...... ...... N N � N N N N N N N N 0 v. '-" 00 N N Cl) 'C ::§: 

ll) 
.t,,.. 00 0\ 0\ 0\ ...... ...... -...) N N ...... ...... ,-..., ...... ...... ...... N N � 0 0 0 v. '-" rt - rt -->. "o "o "o "o u, u, "o "o "o "o "o "o "o "o "o "o "o "o "o "o "o ll) 0) 

0 0 ....+ 
(,) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N N 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(") (D (1) - -...J 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0\ v. 0 0 0 0 0 0 s , 
:s: 
0 

(1) 

Q. � = N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N rt 
(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1) - 0, � � � w w 01 w w w (.,.) w w (.,.) w w w (.,.) � � ..... .ts � ll) 

� 'Tl 
i= -..J N N N -..J -..J N N N N N N N N N N N -..J -..J -..J 01 -..J -..J ""l 

(1) = ll) 1-- 

""l i::i.. :s: I ... = .... 
CJ'Q - (1) 1-3 ll) 

(IQ '< (1) "O 
C'D 

-f:fl w w -f:fl w -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl {Fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl w -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl 

� 0 
o-+, 

� w ""' t:rj 
(J) 0, ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... w w w N N co 

(1) 0 I\.) I\.) N -N -N N (Ji --..J (.,.) (.,.) :...i :.-i - � 
'C w 0, 0 0, 01 co co N N (J) 

ll) 01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 <J) <J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 ()) (J) 01 w w CXl 0:, ""' s= 
::;· 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 w (,) w w IO ..... 

"'O "O - ""l s :s: (1) -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl {Fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl -f:fl w w {Fl -f:fl w ffl -f:fl -f:fl 

� ll) < C'D .... .... 
0 w ""' = = rt = ()) 01 ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... w w w N N IO !:"! 

(1) Cl) (.,.) 01 0 01 01 co co 0 N I\.) N N -N I\.) N N <J) 0) -..J (.,.) (.,.) -..J -..J - = � 01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ()) 0) 0 0 0 0 0 0 ()) 0) 01 w w CXl CXl N 
ll) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 w w w w 0 = ll) 1-- 
(") ""l 
(1) ffl ffl {Fl -f:fl -f:fl ffl -f:fl -f:fl w ffl ffl ffl {Fl ffl -f:fl -f:fl w ffl ffl w ffl w ffl 

� (') 
0 w N 
Cl) 
rt ()) 01 ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... w w w N N 0 

� w 0, 0 0, 0, co co 0 N I\.) N I\.) N N N N 0) <J) -..J w w --..J :...i - 01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ()) ()) 0 0 0 0 0 0 <J) ()) 01 w (,) 0:, CXl N 0) 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 w w w w ""' CJ) 

....+ 
(D 

(fl -f:fl -f:fl ffl ffl {Fl ,(f) -f:fl -f:fl w -f:fl ffl ffl ffl -f:fl ffl w ffl {Fl {Fl ffl -f:fl -f:fl 

� 
::§: 

t"rl 
0) 

w ....+ 
Cl) N (D a. ()) 0, ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... w w w N N 

w 0 0 N N -N N -N I\.) -w .... , 
El 01 01 01 co co N N <J) ()) -..J w -..J -..J i:l -I 01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 <J) <J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 <J) ()) 01 w w CXl CXl 
ll) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 w w w w N , 
rt (D 
(1) 0) 
Q. ffl -f:fl -f:fl w ffl ffl -f:fl -f:fl ffl {Fl ffl ffl ,(f) ffl -f:fl -f:fl w ffl ffl ffl ffl w ffl 

� 
....+ 

S! 
I 3 

CD 
Cl) w N ::::J 
'C (J) 01 ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... w w w N N N ....+ 
0 w 0, 0 0, 01 co co 0 N N N I\.) N N N N <J) ()) -..J (.,.) (.,.) :...i :...i i:l .,, 
Cl) 01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ()) ()) 0 0 0 0 0 0 <J) ()) 01 w w CXl CXl 

� 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 (,) w w w w 0) - Q. 
(1) ffl ffl ffl {Fl {Fl ,(f) ffl -f:fl -f:fl w ,(f) ffl ffl -f:fl -f:fl ,(f) w ,(f) ,(f) ffl -f:fl w -f:fl 

� 
;:::;: 

<: '< 
ll) I - (..) N <.,.) 

= ()) -°' ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... w w w N N w 
(1) w 01 0 01 01 <!) <!) 0 N N N -N N N I\.) I\.) <J) ()) -..J w ·w -..J -..J i:l 01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 <J) <J) 0 0 0 0 0 0 <J) ()) 01 w w CXl CXl 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 0 0 0 0 0 -..J -..J 0 w (..) w (,) ,!:>. 

Page 113 of 142



r 

C) 

0 

n 

"1:1 c 
3 

u, ..... 
(D 

3 

(/) ...... 
Q) ...... 5· 
::, 
(/) 
n 
)> rn 
0 
)> 

<o 
U1 I 

N 
0 
f-' 
'1 

'"'CJ 
""1 
0 
(D 
() 
rt 

n � 
� 

Q) 

rt � 
<1> 

�� 
.-+ 
(D 

f-' ., 
0 
U1 
0 
0 
0 

s 
<1> 
rt 
•-.} 

.., 
<1> 
<: 5· 
i::: u, ....... 

c � 
::J 

� r< . -, c:;;· 
: :§: rt 

0 ::i 
O Q) 
0. s 
rn <1> 
::, �- g, ::, ::n 
<1> .., 
<1> s 
v1 Q) 
[;;! ::i 
!:!". o, 
3 
Q) 
.-+ 
(1) 

V). 
� 
0 
� i::: 
0 0 
0 .-+ 
0 � .., 

<1> 
() 
<1> 
<i" 
<1> 
P- 

� 
�o 
0 
0 
0 

� 
0 
0 
0 
0 

� 
� 1----1----11----1----1�--1----1�--1----11--� ...__ 
� 
00 

W W N N N N N N N N 
� 0 � 00 � m � � W N 

(/) 

� 
I 

00 

Page 114 of 142



Page 115 of 142



"Tl 
Q) 

Q. 
do ro 
1/) 

(/l 

'1 g. 
""1 0 
� 0 

:s::: 0 
SlJ (1) 

::L� m � 
(1) 
::J ..... 
--0 
n 
� 
c -a ..... ..... 

t:, � 
SlJ-;,;; 
,-+ ro 

..... 
OQ 
ro 

CY z 
� _o - 
� � ....... z 
1/) 0 ..... 0 

7',:--3 
� ::,- 
Q) 0 

� � 
ro � 
::J SlJ 

OQ (/) 

g- g. 
::J (1) 
(1) ::::1 
� (1) 
;:::.: ro 
:::; 0.. 
V> '"d 
:::; ""'( 

0 � < ...... ro o 
vi ,:::: 
Q) (/) 

::J '< 
0. 8 
� (1) 
Q) ..... 

-;,;;- ·-...l 

CY ro 
:::; 
::J 
0. 
V> 
::J 
0 
� 

'3 :!:> a r- 
3 vi" 
O rt 
c ::::1 
,-+ SlJ :::; 8 
n ro 
::r O 
� ....... 
-< ::n 

""'( 

8 
SlJ 
::::1 
0.. 

'"d 
::i. 
n ro 
0 ....... 
,g 
0 
� 
(/) 

""'( ro 
n ro �- 
ro p.. 

� 
N 
N 
<, 
N 
w 

.j::,, 

0 
0 
0 

I 

y, 
...... 
0 
0 

u, 
...... 
0 
0 

� 
N 
0 

.......... 
N � 

u, 
...... 
0 
0 

.:"" 
0 
0 
0 

""3 
0 
S' - 

...... 
�1---+�+--+�+--+-b:I-+�+--+�, 
I.O � 

[ 
(l) 

Q 
--0 

--f 
0 
� 
::J 
0 
--+, 

z 
ro 
� 
3 
Q) ..... -;,;; 
ro ..... 

(/l 
I ...... 

I.O - ...... ...... 
<, 
N 
0 ...... 
-...J 

Page 116 of 142



Cl) 
OJ 
n ::r 
Cl) ..... 
..... 
Cl) 

t:l � 
� OJ 
(1) [ti 

3 
Cl) 
:l ..... 

OJ 
.-+ 
o' 
3 
VI 

)> -i 

:l 
.-+ 
0 

0 ::r 
)> Cl) 

OJ � 
:l O 
CL ro· 
VI (") 
OJ .-+ 

� �- -c 

w -< 
Cl) ....... ,Ul ::;:; Ul ..... z rt Cl) ::r -0 0 ..... 

'� 
Ul OJ 
SU n 

(1) ::r '"1 3 0 (1) 

� 'O Cl) 

iii" :l 
� ..... n 

0 Ill (1) ....... Ul s w g:. (1) 0 ::s -< (1) 
rt 

Cl) ::s ;:::;: OJ Cl) (1) ..... (1) s 0 p.. 
·-...) Cl. 'O 

rr '"1 
(1) 

'° :5. OJ 0 n ,:::: ::r 
Ul Cl) 

'< ..... 
VI s 

(l) 
rt 
·-...) 

I r- .i,. 
0 c: ..... VI Cl. t""' VI 
Cl) ..... Cl) 

Ul '"rj -c OJ rt '"1 (/) :l ::s 2. (1) Cl. SU OJ n s Cl) 
!:::!". n 0 (1) rt :l 3 OQ 0 'Tl -0 ....... � OJ ::n ::i :l '"1 0.. -< s Ul 

SU ::s c, 
'"d 
'"1 
c=;· 
(1) 

0 ....... 
.c ,:::: 
0 
rt 
(1) 
Ul 

'"1 
(1) 
n 
(1) 

<l" 
(1) 
p.. 

0 
z 
Cl) 

0 

!€ � (/) 
.-+ 
� 

Tl 
OJ 
Q. 

-i 

0 
0 
!€ 0 :l 

'"1'j 
0 

-< 
....... 

N 
z 

w 
Cl) 

.......... 
!€ 

N 
3 

,(::,,. 
OJ 

0 

..... 
7' 

0 Cl) ..... 
Q 
--0 

(!) - N 

trl C) t:o .n (;") 
'-J 

0 
SU· (1) - n g:. ::s '"1 0 

'"d ::s 
N 

0 
rt SU ::s ;:::;: (1) 

0 
9 (1) (1) ::s p.. 

'"1 

I-' 
'"1 '"1 rt Ul e:. e:. 

'-J 9 '"d Ul 
'"1 ::0 'Tl 

Cl) iii" = (l) ,:::: (1) Ul ::s n 
(1) Cl) 'Tl 
'"1 c, '"1'j ,:::: <: ::s (1) � c, 
'Tl ,:::: ::s 
0.. 

I-' 
00 

to - I-' 
p) (!) 

� 
() 
0 

Page 117 of 142



"Tl 
Q) • 
Q, 
;:::;.: 
iii' 
Vl 

::0 
(0 
"O 

t:l � 
Q) (0 
rt 3 
(l) (0 

::J ..... 

}> -l 
Vl ::r 
� (0 
..... ::J 

"O rt> 0 :E ........... 
(0 0 
8-. � 
g �- 

w 

""I 
(l) 

'O 
iii" o 
(1) s 
(l) 
::1 
rt 

::J ..i,,. 

I 
O t'. c (/) 
(/) rt 
rt> ::1 

§ 8 
..... (1) 
(1) 0 ;, ....... 
3 � 
�- s 
::J Q) 

(JQ :::, 

CT" 0.. 
Q) 'O 
(/) ""I 
rt> ;:;· 
D.. (l) 
0 0 
::J ....... 
::0 ..a 
Vl ,= 
� � 
(l) (1) 
Q) (/) 

::J ""I 
Vl (1) 

n 
(1) 

<i' 
(1) 
p.. 

'Tl 
><: 
N 
0 
' N ..... 

I-' 
CJ) 
-....J 
b 
0 
0 

I-' 
CJ) 
,-....J 
0 
0 
0 

Q 
""O 

Vl 
I w 

-l 
0 
� 
::J 
0 ...... 
z 
rt> 
� 
3 
Q) 
...... ;,; 
rt> ..... 

l.D - I-' 
I-' - N 
0 
I-' 
-....J 

Page 118 of 142



'Tl 
QJ 
C}, 
;::;: ro· 
V> 

QJ 

Vl n � g 
0 

G) 
� 

...... 
(1) 

cro 

w 

QJ 
::1 
0.. 

'"d 
::::!. 
n 
(1) 

0 ....... 
...0 
i:: 
0 
rt 
(1) 
Cl) ., 
(1) 
n 
(1) �- 
(1) 
p., 

� � 
::::i 

� � 
(1) rt 

)> ::1 
...... QJ 
n S 
� 

(1) 
(1) 0 n ....., 
� � _., 
� s 
;;,;- 
3 
QJ 
::::i 
n 
0 
::::i 
!G. 
...... c: n 
!:!". 
0 
::::i 

'Tl -< 
N 
w 
<, 
N 
� 

� 
N ...... 
<, 
N 
N 

'Tl -< 
N 
N 

.......... 
N 
w 

_....., 
CJ) 
00 w 
lO 
N w 

_....., 
CJ) 
00 w 
lO 
N w 

n 
0 s s � 
= r, 
� 
; 

p 
001---+�l---+�l---+-�+--+-�+----I - p 
lO 

Vl 
I � 

---l 
0 
� 
::::i 
0 
--t, 

z 
(1) 

� 
3 
QJ 
...... 

" (1) 
r+ 

0 
lO - N 
-...J - N 
0 
p 
-...J 

Page 119 of 142



(/} 
n ::::,- 
0 
0 

'"1 
11) 

'"d 
iii" n 
11) s 
11) 

;?,. 

:::,- 

� 
� 
Pl 
(/) 

g. 
(1) 

:::i -· (1) rt 
11) (1) 

p. s 
'"d ·-.J 
'"1 
(1) 

;'.'i. 
0 c 
(/) 

'< s 
11) 
r+ 
·-.J 

:?;' :"'" 
::, 
:"fr � �· 
}> :::i 
..., Sil s s 
M". <1> 
(1) 0 �;; 
� '"1 � s 
7' Sil 
3 :::i 
"' p. ::, '"d 
n ::J . o n 
::, (1) 
v, ,.... 0 ..., ...... 
c .0 � c a· a ::, nr 

(/) 

'"1 
(1) 
n 
(1) 

'<:" 
(1) 
p. 

....., 
-< 
N w 
<, 
N 
,!>, 

....., 
-< 
N 
N 
<, 
N 
w 

� 
N � 

......... 
N 
N 

� 
N 
0 

......... 
N � 

a, 
N 
N 
'.i:, 
N 
\.D 

a, 
N r- 
00 
N ...... 

a, 
N w 
'.i:, 
N ...... 

CJ) 
N 
.!" 
00 
CJ) 
00 

Cl to n 
'"1 0 Sil 
Pl g '"d,... -· 
(/);=;. ..... (/) e 

a, 
N 
N 
00 
N ...... 

a, 
N 
N 
'.i:, 
N 
co 

a, 
N w 
'.i:, 
N ...... 

a, 
N 
N 
00 a, 
00 

...... '-.Jl----1-�l----+----l�+---+�+---+---1 
'<, 
I-' 
00 

) 

-l 
0 
:"f 
::, 
0 
-+, 

z 
11) 

:"f 
3 
"' 
� 
rt 

(/} 

l/1 

Page 120 of 142



CHARTERED JANUARY 1, 1991 FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
By the Newmarket Town Council 

Resolution 2017 /18 - 15 
Town Council Chamber Dais Improvements 

The existing Council Chamber Dais electrical, cabling, and audio systems are in 
need to updating as well as the overall appearance; and 

The Director of Facilities has solicited proposals from several contractors for the 
repairs to systems and structure; and 

the existing systems are experiencing operational malfunctions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE NEWMARKET TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

Town Council authorizes the Town Administrator to enter into an agreement with 
Educational Building Consultants, Access A/V and Daniels Electric for Town 
Council Dais Improvements with a costing not to exceed $10,000 utilizing l-Net 
funds (fund 17). I-Net (fund 17) current balance is $27,385.00 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Approval: 

September 20, 2017 

October 4, 2017 

Approved:------------------------- 
Dale Pike, Chair Town Council 

A True Copy Attest: _ 
Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 121 of 142



PREPARED BY: Greg Mades, Director of Facilities 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

'fol: {603) (>5<)-3(,f;.1 
F,,1c ((iQ'J) <WHl;Q$ 

fow11Hfi!I 
186 M�in Street 

N�wm:,rket, NH 03857 

Founded Dr,(�1t1!>cr IS, 11'1:7 
Ch�rl�r,dJanllilry 1, 1991 

STAFF REPORT 

2017 /2018-15 Town Council Dais renovations 

September 11, 2017 

BACKGROUND: The existing dais needs updates in electrical, cabling, network, and audio 
improvements. We have created an in-house design that will allow for upgrades to the systems 
contained within the existing structure at the same time improving the general appearance of the dais. 
The support structure will remain in place which will provide us a saving in reconstructive costs 
during this process. 

TITLE: 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS -RECOMMENDATION: 
I recommend passage of this resoluti� 

DATE: 

FISCAL IMPACT: We requested proposals from two contractors for the construction services, as 
well worked with om current AN vendor, and our electrical contractor to create the costing for this 
project. One of the construction contractors backout of the project, leaving us with one respondent to 
our request for pricing. 

DISCUSSION: Given the existing condition of the electrical, network, cabling, and audio systems; 
cost effective updates to these systems would provide for more consistent operations within the 
Chambers .. With the level of improvements to the electrical, audio, and cabling we would have to 
remove several sections of the structure to allow for the installation of these new systems. therefore 
it would make sense at the same time we would update the appearance of the dais 

Educational Building Consultants 
AcoessA/V 
Daniels Electric 

construction services ( quoted pricing) 
audio services (price reduced from original) 
electrical contractor (in-house design/estimate) 

$5,400.00 
$2,600.00 
$2,000.00 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend moving forward with the dais reconstruction project 
utilizing funding from I-Net (fund 17) in the amount of $10,000.00 based on the in-house design and 
estimates from vendors. Current I-Net fund (fund 17) balance is $27 ,385.00 (as of July 31, 2017) 

ATTACH ALL PERTINENT DOCUMENTS TO SUPPORT THE REQUEST. 
;, 

•• t , :•·I 

••• • , ••, . I·;.-;',.:\�,•···, .. �:·: I, ; . :•':., -�.' �· ·...._ : . ."( . :.- .-.��� Page 122 of 142



. t:J � l, '<:::, 

5 
�- t 

!l 
� 

� 
--.s � � 

d 
( � � 

't. � 
-c " 

;;l 
I � 

� 
\) 

- � 

r/ 
...J ,, 1 ti 

.; 
� 

.l 

-b .. 
x: 
!!11 

Page 123 of 142



I 
..... ACCESS A/V .. 

Qtv. Manufacturer Model# Descrlotion Cost: Ext.Cost 

................ 
JNewmarkot.NH................ 

. .. J... . . 
··········-·___:ATIN:_Tim Cr�mmen 

j _· 

.. 

!617-777-7639 i i ! 1 . 
Date: l112e1201s 1 f . 

I lausn Drh'e • Conro1d.,N1l03301 
Phono: 603-224-2300 • Pu: 603-224-2308 

www.11cc••••vnh.com 

8 Shure MX412S 12" Cardioid Gooseneck Microphone with Switch 
lnstallaUon, connectors,Travel 

s 222.00 s 
$ 1,428.00 s 

1,776.00 
1,428.00 

......................................... ..i i........................................................... . j l . 
����;�,:�·ti��1�,!�' ;�i�ays +.............................................................................. . .. . . ; c;os,:_: 1.t. .. �,29..�:00 

Page 124 of 142



.. 
J: 
0 c 0 � � .c ... ... c "' "' I .. .. 0 c 0 c !" ...... 0 c 

c 0 ct> 

Page 125 of 142



R�CEIVEO 

SEP u 2011 
. . 

I 

TONN OF NEW MARl<FT 
ADMINISTRATOR'S or ' '· f· 

Al'PL:n:CATION FOR APPOINTMENT ro A BOARD, 
COMMISSION, OR COMMKTTEE POSl[T][ON WJITHKN THE 

TOWN OF NEWMARKE'f 

Applicant's Name: c· 2v I Bide ks tulA( 
Address:_C-f--'--'-'" 2--'vi_.._ E » Phone/Cell_6_ 'o_3_1_ Z �____:_7_2---'--3---'LJ:.___ 

RSA 669:19 Newmarket Registered Voter: (Yiei\ No # of Years as Resicllenti: __ 1- __ 
RSA 91:2 Are you an American Citizen? � No 

Email address: C b / .u ts f c,11\ ( Iii/ VJ{» � crf vYIJ • J • { ti VvJ 

Full membership (3 year term) position applying for {V LO ( 0Vc--.v>');rkf Cv'lniv11,}1 /)v, {ovv;(,O 
State what the new term expiration date is: .flMWel-JFZo J q. [)E (_ 
f N e.- 6 G '5 fr/-eflt,ber ,Jeri}'/ s 8o/J re tii i)eftfflbU- 

Alternate position (3 year term) position applying for � 

State what the new term expiration date is: _ 

[ �fft:, f'1t p1rkct b/r-.,,c/ of '#fh ht) 
2..,,cf {r&WJ J. c, v, c tr,1 �I 

011 ./-si2i,,c/, VJti Cc,01tn1--'vi,i71 

I }- ,, � ( c "'1 � 
� s ( c I <;(- It/. > f 

I feel the following experience and background qualifies me for this position: 1 hJ If () 

� f re-� bv�, vi(<;> bu /,�,c-v,.,J � p 2 1 r<::c.4 w If '1 d c/f{p lov( fc/ 

(need more room, please use the back) 

C 2 { l I� { u ks f c �(" 
Signature Date 

You are welcome to submit a letter or resume with this form. Applicants are requested to attend the Council 
meeting to address the Town Council prior to the decision making process. Applicants will be notified of the time 
and date of this meeting in advance. Thank you for your application and interest in the Town of Newmarket. 

Page 126 of 142



R�c�1vr� 

SEP 14 2011 
APPLliCATION FOJR APPOINTMENT TO A JBOAR]D), 

COMJ.\10I§SION, OR COMMJITfEE PO§]['fJION wrnns TJBDE TOWN.of N 
'fOWN OF NEWM�T ADMINISTRAr� 1 

Applicant's Name: #'//'4/1/) ...2), 

Address: t:Z �I/ 60.rJ·.z. J' � /-J'°T ScJ(., Phone/Cell Co.?- 'il"'.if- .,1-cf� 

]lSA 669:19 Newmarket Registered VoteJr: � No # ofYe2111.·§ as Re9ii.rllelllt: 2 O 
JRSA 91:2 Are you an Amerjcen Citizen? @ No 

Email address: 0d-h.l;(.AJ@-Qo/. Cog 

Full membership (3 year term) position applying for &ei�y 11 rv!) /;,;vi l.o/ll/J'l-ef'1/-r Cm.-,, 'ffee 

State what the new term expiration date is:.--L/11--'-'-'- .n= ,t.C= ' A�l---'2=->o,c_,µ�1c....._ _ 

Alternate position (3 year term) position applying for· _ 

State what the new term expiration date is: �----'---- 

I feel the following experience and background qualifies me for this position: . _ 

(need more room, please use the back) 

Signature Date 

You are welcome to submit a letter or resume with this form. Applicants m·e requested to attend the Council 
meeting to address the Town Council prior to the decision making [2_rocess. Applicants will be notified of the time 
and date of this meeting in advance. Thank you for your application and interest in the Town of Newmarket. 

Page 127 of 142



RECE"rVE'D 

SEP 15 2011 

row� c,f NL ADMIN)STRA rJR V ,MA S RKET • 
. OFFICE 

APPLICATION FORAPPOINTMENf TO A BOARD, 
COMMISSION, OR COMMITTEE POSl'flON WllTIDN ',fHE 

. TOWN OF NEWMARKE'lI' 

Applicant's Name: Daniel Smith 
Address: 41 Ladyslipper Dr, Newmarket Phone/Cell 603-292-5608 

RSA 669:19 Newmarlwt Registered Voter: /Yes II No # of Years as Reside,lf:.--'1�1:......-_ 
RSA 91:2 Are you an Ameriean Citizen? Yes No 

Email address: dansmithbudgetcomm@gmail.com 

Full membership (3 year term} position applying for Energy and Environment Cmte 

State what the new term expiration date ls: _ __._p_ er_Ti_o_wn_C_o_un_c_il_A_u_ th_o_nz _ · _ati_ · o_n __ ...- __ 

Alternate position (3 year term) position applying foi:·_ ------------- 

State what the new term expiration date is: _,__ _ 

I feel the following experience and background qualifies me for this position: _ 

20 years experience in the energy industry including 11 working at northern New 

England's largest non-regulated energy provider. 3years experience in public sector 

energy and �nvironment consulting. Entering third year on Municipal Budget 

Date 

You are welcome to submit a letter U1' resume with this form. Appltcqnts are 1·et.p1ested to attend the Counpil 
meeting to atltlrMs the Town Council or/or lo the decfs[on makfngprocess. Applicants will be notified of the time 
and date of this meeting fn advanu Thank y�u for your applf cation and inte1·est in the Town of Newmarket. 

Page 128 of 142



CHARTERED JANUARY 1, 1991 FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
By the Newmarket Town Council 

Resolution 2017/2018 -16 
Authorizing the Town Administrator enter into a contract with Educational Building 

Consultants for Town Hall Office Improvements: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

WHEREAS: 

it has been determined that our Town Hall requires improvements for ADA access, 
office safety measures, and operational synergies, and 

the Director of Facilities requested proposals based on provided designs to make 
improvements, and 

The Town received the following proposal, 

Educational Building Consultants 

Daniels Electric (in house estimate) 

$11,350.00 

$ 1,650.00, and 

WHEREAS: the Town Administrator recommends that the Town enters into an agreement with 
Educational Building Consultants of Standish, Maine 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE NEWMARKET TOWN COUNCIL THAT: 

The Town Council authorizes the Town Administrator to enter into an agreement with 
Educational Building Consultants to make Town Hall office improvements based on an 
amount not to exceed (NTE) $13,000.00 utilizing funding from the Building 
Improvement Capital Reserve fund. 

First Reading: 

Second Reading: 

Approval: 

October 4, 2017 

Dale Pike, Chair Town Council 

A True Copy Attest: _ 
Terri Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 129 of 142



Town Hall 
186 Main Street 

Newmarket, NH 03857 

Tel: (603) 659-3617 
Fax: (603) 659-8508 

Founded December 15, I 727 
Chartered January I, 1991 

TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

STAFF REPORT 
DATE: 

TITLE: 

September 26, 2017 

2017/2018-16 Town Hall office renovations 

PREPARED BY: Greg Maries, Director of Facilities 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS- RECOMMENDATIQNl9-<:>.,,/ 
I recommend passage of this resolution. The SAU is hiring a contractor to vations on their 
floor. It will move/create additional office space and meeting space. The Director of Facilities will 
have an office on that side of the building and out of the finance office. Director of Finance will have 
an office connected to both Town and School finance sides. The big work will be done on Friday and 
the weekend to limit interruptions. Smaller work will be done during the week. 

When he talked to me about it, I asked The Facilities Director to draw up a plan and get a price from 
the same contractor to look at our floor to address space issues since they will already be in and it 
would reduce cost. The reason for the renovations are as follows: 

1. Provide ADA counter access in the Town Clerk's Office - The current counter is not ADA 
accessible. 

2. Redesign the Town Administrator, Assessing and Town Clerk Offices - 
a. The current office set has a lot of unusable spaces, including odd bump outs and strange 
shapes. 
b. The redesign will change the shape of the Town Administrator's office to allow for larger 
meetings in it. Currently, the only conference space we have is council chambers, which is 
frequently used. Also, it will provide for a meeting space that we can have true confidential 
meetings. Currently, the Town Council could be listened in on certain issues if someone is in the 
Channel 13 room. Currently, I can only have a few people in my office for any meeting. 
c. It will create much needed additional locked storage. 
d. Will increase Clerk's office and reduce the contracted town assessor office size. The assessor is 
only here one to two days a week. 
e. Will create a counter in Town Administrator's Office to assist people instead of going through 
the door window. 

3. Will move the Planning Door and create a counter space for review of plans and security. 
Currently people can just walk right into the Community Development Director Office and the 
Building Officials Office. The counter will create an additional functioning barrier. 

Page 130 of 142



BACKGROUND: The existing town clerk - tax collector office, community development office and 
administrator's office is in need of updating for better flow patterns, ADA counter access, security 
improvements and operational efficiencies. Although these renovations are minor in the scope for a facility 
such as Town Hall, it will greatly improve operations and security. This becomes even more evident with 
the Town Hall security improvements that have been recently approved. 

DISCUSSION: Given the existing layout, ADA counter access, and security measure, it becomes 
necessary to look at changes to better meet the needs for staff, visitors, and patrons to the Town Hall. We 
are recommending to have the contractor that is currently doing other work within the Town Hall such as the 
dais improvements and School Department changes to continue working on these additional projects thus 
creating synergies and cost reductions. Additionally, we have been struggling to find contractors to respond 
to our needs for small jobbing type of projects. 

FISCAL IMPACT: We requested proposals from two contractors for the construction services, only one 
said that they could man the project. In addition, the contractor is already working in the building providing 
construction services for other projects within the town and schools. 

Educational Building Consultants 
Educational Building Consultants 
Daniels Electric 

Construction services ( quoted pricing) $8, 150.00 
ADA Counter construction allowance $3,200.00 
Electrical contractor (in-house design/estimate) $1,650.00 

RECOMMENDATION: We recommend moving forward with the renovations project utilizing funding 
from the Building Improvement Capital funds in a amount not to exceed (NTE) $13,000.00 based on 
provided estimates, drawings and in house costing. 

ATTACH ALL PERTINENT DOCUMENTS TO SUPPORT THE REQUEST. 

7/5/2016 
Paqe e of s 

Page 131 of 142



Educational Building Consultants 
1 Lakeview Lane South 
Standish, ME 04084 
Phone (207)329-0202 
jimgoodale@live.com 

TO: 
Greg Maries 
Newmarket, NH 

FOR: 
2nd floor renovation 

Quote 

DATE: 9/25/2017 

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 

Price quote to supply material and labor for work shown on plan dated 8/3/2017 2"" floor of 
Newmarket Town Hall. 

$8150.00 
Price to include demo of existing walls as specified, build out to create new spaces, ceiling 
work, moving of door openings and doors , and all finish trim and painting to complete space. 

New ADA compliant counter to be built to specs tbd later. Allowance to cover cost $3200.00 

TOTAL ($8150.00 + ada counter 
cost) 

Make all checks payable to Educational Building Consultants 
Payment is due on receipt 
If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact Jim Goodale-(207)329-0202 
Thanks for your business! 

Page 132 of 142



Page 133 of 142



TOWN OF NEWMARKET, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

By the Newmarket Town Council 

ORDINANCE NO. 1- 2017/2018 

Town of Newmarket, New Hampshire 
} 

Amendments to Chapter 32 Zoning, Article I. IN GENERAL Sec. 32-9 Special use permits. 
and Article V. Overlay Zoning Districts Sec 32-162 of the Municipal Code of the Town of 
Newmarket and Zoning Ordinance, adopted 02/14/1996, as amended through June 21, 

2017. 

The Town of Newmarket ordains that: 

WHEREAS, the Town of Newmarket has adopted a Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance to 

guide the character of growth, development, and change in order to provide for the public 

health, safety and general welfare; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board formed a sub-committee to evaluate proposed zoning 

recommendations of the Economic Development Committee and drafted new language for 
a skilled nursing facility overlay district on New Road to promote economic development 

opportunities within the Town. 

WHEREAS, the subcommittee met, reviewed possible changes and drafted 
recommendations for consideration by the full Planning Board; and 

WHEREAS, these proposed amendments are intended to allow opportunities for nursing 
homes with skilled nursing facilities and memory care units within an overlay district on 

New Road in areas that are currently zoned B-1 and B-2. 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board conducted two (2) formal public hearings on May 9, 2017 

and September 12, 2017 to solicit citizen input on the draft zoning amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board voted unanimously on September 12, 2017 to recommend 
and bring forward these proposed amendments to the Town Council for consideration and 

adoption. 

Page 134 of 142



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Chapter 32 Zoning of the Municipal Code of 

Newmarket is amended as follows: 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 

1. Amend Sec. 32-9 Special use permits. by adding the following uses to Paragraph (a) at 
the end after; "section 32-162 for nursing homes with skilled nursing facilities and 
memory care units within the Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Overlay District". 

ARTICLE V. OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICTS 

2. Add a new Sec 32-162, as follows: 

Sec 32-162. Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Overlay District. 

(a) Purpose. The intent of the Skilled Nursing Facility {SNF) Overlay District is to 
allow opportunities for nursing homes with skilled nursing facilities and 
memory care units within an overlay zoning district. 

(b) Overlay District Boundaries. The SNF Overlay District shall include properties 
that currently fall within the 8-1 and B-2 Zoning Districts on the southern 
portion of New Road. It includes the following properties: Tax Map R3, Parcel 
58-8 {39.5 acres), Tax Map R3, Parcel 56 (32.3 acres), and Tax Map R3, Parcel 
54 (20.93 acres). See Attached Map. 

( c) Definitions. 

Nursing Home/Skilled Nursing Facilities mean facilities which are licensed 

by the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services under 

Chapter He-P 800; Part He-P 803 Administrative Rules and provide a range 
of social and health services, including 24 hour a day supervision and the 

provision of medical care and treatment, according to a plan of care by 

appropriately trained or licensed individuals who are employees of or who 

are under contract to the facility. 

Page 135 of 142



Skilled Nursing Facilities (SNF) mean licensed healthcare facilities (often in a 

wing of a Nursing Home) for individuals who require a higher level of 
medical care than can be provided in a nursing home or assisted living 

facility. Such care is provided by trained individuals, such as Registered 
Nurses (RNs) and physical, speech, and occupational therapists. These 
services can be necessary over the short term for rehabilitation from illness 
or injury, or they may be required over the long-term for patients who 
need care on a frequent or around the clock basis due to a chronic medical 
condition. Examples of skilled nursing services include wound care, 
intravenous (IV} therapy, injections, physical therapy and the monitoring of 
vital signs and medical equipment. These facilities are built to the Life 

Safety Code NFPA 101 as adopted by the Commissioner of the New 

Hampshire Department of Safety (in Saf-C 6000,) and as amended pursuant 

to RSA 153:5, I. 

Memory Care Facilities mean supported residential health care designed 
for individuals who have memory related medical diagnoses, such as 

dementia, Alzheimer's disease, or any other diagnosed memory loss 
related malady. Memory care is licensed under Chapter He-P 800; Part He 

P-805 Supported Residential Health Care Facility Licensing Rules. Memory 
care units shall be staffed by skilled nursing professionals, who offer 

specialized dementia care and nursing services. Memory care units provide 
24-hour supervised care and can be a stand-alone facility or part of a 
continuum of care provided within a separate wing or floor of a nursing 

home/skilled nursing facility. 

Dementia is loss of intellectual functions (thinking, reasoning, and 

remembering) severe enough to interfere with daily functioning. It is not a 

disease in itself but a group of symptoms. Alzheimer's is the most common, 
others include Huntington's Disease, Lou Gehrig's Disease, Multi-Infarct 
Dementia (Vascular Dementia), and Parkinson's Disease. These facilities are 
built to Life Safety Code NFPA 101 as adopted by Commissioner of the New 

Hampshire Department of Safety (in Saf-C 6000) and as amended pursuant 

to RSA 153: 5 I. 

(d) Permitted Uses. 

Nursing Homes/Skilled Nursing Facilities 

Page 136 of 142



Memory Care Units 

Accessory Uses - related to providing residents with services such as 
meals, housekeeping, medical and health services, well-being programs 
and recreation facilities, and related management support services. 

(e) Design/Development Standards. 

Minimum lot size: 20 acres 

Road Setback: 100 feet 

Development Cap: For the SN F Overlay District a development cap of 75 
units of nursing home/skilled nursing beds and/or memory care units are 

allowed. 

Buffer: There shall be a 75 foot landscaped buffer around the perimeter 

Parking: Parking: 0.5 space per nursing home/SNF or memory care unit 

or bed. 

(f) Development Review Process. 

(1) Projects within the SNF Overlay District shall require a Special Use Permit 
pursuant to Sec 32-9 of the Town of Newmarket Zoning Ordinance and 
RSA 676:4 I and other regulations as set forth in the Town's subdivision 
and site review regulations. Given the limited scale of development 
envisioned by the SNF, it shall be required that all SNF development 
projects be constructed at one time without phasing. In addition, SNF 
Overlay District projects shall be subject to Site Plan Review approval by 
the Planning Board under Appendix B-Site Plans Sec. 1.02. Project plans 
need to be submitted to the State of New Hampshire Residential Care 
and Health Facility Licensing for approval prior to the submission of plans 
for Site Plan Review approval. 

(2) The Special Use Permit shall apply only to a specific project, as proposed, 
at the time of approval. Changes to the proposed project must be 
approved by the Planning Board, as amendments to the Special Use 
Permit. 

Page 137 of 142



(3) All understandings reached between the applicant and the Planning 
Board shall be outlined in a legally binding development agreement. 

(4) Special Use Permits shall be valid for two years from the date of Planning 
Board approval. Should active and substantial construction not have 
begun within two (2) years, the Special Use Permit shall be null and void. 
The Planning Board may, at its sole discretion, grant an extension to this 
two (2) year Period. 

(5) Unless specifically stated otherwise herein, an application for a Special 
Use Permit is subject to the application, submission, public hearing, 
notice and administrative requirements of RSA 676:4 I and Appendix A - 

Subdivision and Appendix B - Site Plan. 

Secs. 32-163-32-190. Reserved. 

This ordinance shall become effective upon its passage. 

Introduction Date: 

First Reading 

Second Reading/Public Hearing 

Final Action by Council 

Approved: 

October 4, 2017 

October 4, 2017 

October 18, 2017 

Dale Pike, Chair Newmarket Town Council 

A True Copy Attest:--------------------------- 

Terry Littlefield, Town Clerk 

Page 138 of 142



TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S COMMENTS-RECOMMENDATION: 

TITLE: Ordinance No. 1 - 2017 /2018 Amendments to Chapter 32 Zoning of the Newmarket 
Municipal Code regarding New Road Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) District 

TEL: (603) 659-3617 
FAX: (603) 659-8508 

TOWN HALL 
1 86 MAIN STREET 

NEWMARl<ET, NH 03857 

FOUNDED DECEMBER 15, 1727 
CHARTERED JANUARY 1 , 1 991 

Diane Hardy, Director of Planning and Development 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: In 2015, the Economic Development Committee presented several 
recommendations for zoning changes to further economic development opportunities here in Newmarket 
after working with two (2) planning and real estate development consultants, John Connery and Peter Kwas . 
One of those recommendations was to create an Overlay District on New Road to allow opportunities for 
skilled nursing facilities and memory care units. The Planning Board created a subcommittee to review the. r---� 
current zoning and developed language to implement this recommendation. After holding several work 
sessions and conducting two (2) formal public hearings, the Planning Board has unanimously come forward 
with the attached rezoning proposal for the Town Council's consideration. r T 

I 

FISCAL IMP ACT: There are no direct fiscal impacts associated with these changes. Positive indirect fisck� 
impacts will result from the improvement of property values resulting from proposed skilled nursing facility(" T , 
development ' � 

PREPARED BY: 

====-T_o_w_N�O- F�N_E_WM=A=Ri_ <E_T_ ,_N_E_w=H-A_M_P_s_H_ rR_E===��E 
., � 

= DA=T= E:-�S= ep� tem�b= er- 27= , 
2- 0�� 7 T=A=F�F_RE ==P�Q=R=T==�===�� 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend that a public hearing be scheduled for Wednesday, October 18 and 
approval following the public hearing. 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
1. Ordinance No. 1 Amendments to Chapter 32 Zoning of the Newmarket Municipal Code 

regarding New Road Skilled Nursing Facility (SNF) Overlay District 
2. Town of Newmarket Zoning Map 
3. Map of Proposed Skilled Nursing Facility Overlay District 

Page 139 of 142



-,, 
)> o 
' ---, 
-< 

0 
< m 
Al 

' )> 
-< 
0 
(/) ---, 
Al 
o ---, 

"""CJ 
Al 
0 
"""CJ 
0 
(/) 
m 
0 
(/) 

?'\ 
r 
r m 
0 
z 
c 
Al 
(/) 

z 
C) 

--- (/) 

z 
""Tl 

R3-•8, 30.34 AC 

Legend 
ta Proposed Skined Nursing Focifity Overlay District 
Existing Zoning Dlst,tct Boundaries 

B 1 - Business 
82 - Business 
Ml 
R l - Rural Residential 
R2 - Medium Resldenlial 

Q Digital Tax Parcel (20171 

Shoun G. ond MOt'f Both O'Sho�hneuy 
179 New Rood 

R3-2, 196.38 AC 

82 

lfonel R. loBonte. Truslee 
128NewRoad 

Rl·11,1.o6AC 
Rl·11·A 1 AC &:l!lOllo<ld Mo'ne l!oi'r..x,d 

Jowph ti. <ww:I Coro.",fl L M,"ICO!en I R�ghom Junclion 
17 A$h Swamp 1!:ood 

Mop Updated: 
September 6. 2017 

�·;.:�-:.��·,�:�:;�-1.:.�:1� ..... 
,,,i.ol)f'l,,-r.� « . 
o-,{ll/l'Ol1�-h 

,� .... ,h .... \.\t\ ... .,..,,.. .... \11.11�,o......\o1Aol 

-i. .. .-.,, .... .,..;111,;fOf, ... � -� - •• .. Go,..- .. _ ,-� .,. .. .,. ... __ ,_ -- ,� - � c-•·•-•--•-•,u.,q.,. __ .,..,c,r,., ........... -,�-�---- ........ ............ .. - � - . .., .. _..._._, .. - .. ,� -.-,..,.-..,h••r• ...... _ _ 
,-.,.h, , .. ,,,...,,x 1 -,, ,.., ........ _.., _ . 
........... -.�·----··-,;- ...... -,., • .--, ... - ••• ,u<c ......... __ ,. .. ,o;,,, ... -.- ...... .,_ 

Page 140 of 142



Legend 
� Skilled Nursing Facility Overlay District 

Updated Map 
7/11/2017 

Town of Newmarket 
Office of the Planning Board 

186 Main Street, Newmarket NH 03857 
www.newmarketnh.gov 

603-659-8501 

I ', 

0 500 1,000 
I I 

2,000 Feet 
I 

N 

A Proposed Skilled Nursing Facility Overlay District 

Page 141 of 142



IOli� z � :e 
to to to @" Jg 8 co N _. � 11010 '"1 

:,:;-" 
� 
1""I' 

s: s: s: s: s: N 
.i,. W N � _. 0 ::s >"' ....... 1000 ::s 

O'Q 
:: 

::0 ::0 ::0 ::0 
� 

.i,. c,) N ... "O 

\.. 
., 

i 
I 
I 
i 

Page 142 of 142


	Page 1 Agenda 10/04/2017
	Page 3 Meeting Minutes 9/20/2017
	Page 13 Report of the TA
	Page 42 CIP Intro
	Page 52 Capital Improvement Plan
	Page 121 Resolution 2017/18-15 Chamber Dais Improvements
	Page 126 Appointment to NCDC
	Page 127 Appointment to Energy & Environment Advisory Committee
	Page 128 Appointment to Energy & Environment Advisory Committee
	Page 129 Resolution 2017/18-16 Town Hall Office Improvements
	Page 134 Ordinance No. 1 2017/18 Amendement to ZO

